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CORPORATE PROFILE

DNENH

OVERVIEW

We are the leading and a rapidly growing home meal products
brand in China. We offer a variety of ready-to-eat, ready-to-heat,
ready-to-cook and prepared ingredients, with a focus on at-home
hotpot and barbecue products. With a carefully curated product
portfolio and an extensive network of community-based stores,
we enable consumers to enjoy meals at home with tastiness,
convenience and affordability. Leveraging our robust supply
chain and production capabilities and a nationwide network of
retail stores, we offer a wide variety of home meal products under
the Guoquan Shihui (B RE) brand, serving diverse dining

scenarios.

We are devoted to developing products under our proprietary
brand name carrying the “Guoquan Shihui” logo. As the leading
one-stop home meal products brand in China, we are well
positioned to capture the significant growth potential in China’s
home meal products market. We cater to different dining
scenarios underpinned by high quality food ingredients that have
an immense potential for creating new and diverse products. Our
product portfolio comprises eight categories including hotpot
products, barbecue products, beverages, solo-dining meals,
ready-to-cook meal kits, fresh produce, western cuisines and
snacks.

We have established a store network primarily comprising
franchised stores. Under our franchise business model, we derive
substantially all of our revenue from the sale of our products to
franchisees, who open and operate franchised stores under our
brand and sell our products to consumers. We do not charge or
rely on franchise fees.

We have also been developing online sales channels including our
Guoquan APP, WeChat mini-program as well as on popular social
commerce platforms such as Douyin. In addition, we partner with
third-party food delivery platforms, such as Meituan and Ele.me
to deliver our products to consumers. We achieve highly extensive
consumer reach by providing both online and offline shopping
options. Leveraging the highly efficient management and
operation of our supply chain and our digitalized management
system, we are able to ensure product quality and safety, as well
as achieve high operational efficiency from food production to
retail sales.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

DA

OUR VISION

Our vision is to become the go-to brand for dining at home in
China.

OUR MISSION

Our mission is to source quality food ingredients globally and
offer diverse, convenient, high-quality and value-for-money home
meal products in a one-stop shop manner to meet consumers’
diverse needs under different dining scenarios, from urban
centers to the most remote areas of China.
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DEFINITIONS
B

“Annual General Meeting”

[FEBRRAE]

“Annual Report”

=

“Articles of Association”
or “Articles”

[REIERR]N[ERE]

“Associate(s)”

[BEA

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

=3

“Board of Supervisors”

(=g

“Buyue Ertong”

[ &R

“Chengdu Quanyi”

(A& |

“Chengming Plant”

[ &8 T

“CG Code”

(BRI

“China” or “PRC”

(B

the annual general meeting will be convened by the Company on 27 June
2025 (Friday)
ARARER_ZE_RAF AT+ R (EHL) BANFERERS

the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024
ARARBE_ZT-_NMF+_A=1T—RHIFEZFERE

the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time,
adopted and came in effect on 21 December 2023

RRABRZZBZ=F+ A+ BEALERNETEHEFTN A RIER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EMARIFE TR AR

the board of directors of our Company

ARAEFE

the board of supervisors of our Company

NS -

Shanghai Buyue Ertong Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(EBTHMBEAIXEZEARTE(BERER)), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 18 April 2019
FETOMRABIEREGREE (ARAR)  R-ZE-NFOA+N\BRESD
BUERAMKLNBEREBER

Chengdu Quanyi Food Co., Ltd. (KEEH=RMAMRAR]), a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of PRC on 16 June 2009
KEEHRMARAR RZEZNFEANA T NBREBHBUEZTMK A
FY/NE]

one of our self-operated production facilities that engages in hotpot soup
base production

BREZEEERBHNET—F - EFAREBEE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules

ETAR RIS C B B EEI AT A

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of the Annual
Report only, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

i \NRHAE - RAFERET S FREES APIRAS
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Chongging Langyao”

[EEEARE | EC

“Companies Ordinance”

NSO &

“Companies (Winding up and
Miscellaneous Provisions)

Ordinance”
[RaE] OB 8 RMIBESO BEl) 18

“The Company” or “Guoquan”

AVNCIRE AR ]=N e

“Company Law” or
“PRC Company Law”
[REDE]I ST BEREE] |

“connected person(s)”

[BEAL] B

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ RS R B

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

wWERm (L&) ROBRATA

Chongqing Zhaoying Langyao Growth Phase Il Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EEMARFRKE _HREREESS
B (BRAEH)), alimited partnership incorporated under the laws of the
PRC on 23 September 2020

EEMHEARKR _HAREREESABLE (AREX)
AT =ZBRBHEVEETMA IO BREBEE

CRZTE_TFN

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIFE 622 R EMER) (BABHERT » TS AR T B2

the Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

EAREDIE 2B (R F] OFB FFETRIFS) 5H) (I AFRHERT ~ TR sAR M
A iEk)

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B R m( ) RMHBR AR, a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 11 July 2019
(formerly known as Guoquan Supply Chain (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ($f (£ fE5#
(B8)ABBR A7), and was converted into a joint stock limited company in
the PRC on 23 February 2023, and the H Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2517)

MERS (L8 BROHBRAE  RZE—hFLA+—BREFRBEEKILA
BREMCAT (FIEMEHERE (8)BRAR)  WR-ZT-_=F_A=+
ZREPERFIRROERAR] - HHRNEBBZAER B (RO R
2517)

Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE AR LMBE A FNE), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(R ARSFMEATE) GETHELT - BRIARMST RIS

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB MR AP T & e %R

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and,
strictly in accordance with such meaning, includes Mr. Yang, Mr. Meng,
Mr. Li, Guoquan Industry, Guoxiaoquan EM and Guoxiaoquan Tech;
and “Controlling Shareholder” shall mean any one of them
BEREELMRAME FZANRBELERKIBEZERE  BREEEE &k
L REEE - BBRE RR/ERE - B IERRE | EIEMB IR
PERIAL



DEFINITIONS
B=

“Daixiaji”
[ RAD

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Domestic Unlisted Shares”

[FEAAR TS
“Famous Wealthy”

[Famous Wealthy |

“Generation One”

[ Generation One ]

“Generation Pi HK”

[ Generation Pi HK

“Global Offering”

[2IREE]

“Group”, “our Group”,

“we” or “us”

(RS E M3

“Guoquan Industry”

[REE ]

Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. that engages in production of paste and other
products

EERBLRRMARAR  KEFERFEMLEE

director(s) of our Company

ZA/NCTE =5

ordinary shares in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are not listed on any stock exchange

ARABRAFRGREEARE .00 T EMERESFZR 5P L H &R

FAMOUS WEALTHY LIMITED, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong on 25 October 2019

FAMOUS WEALTHY LIMITED * R=Z—NF+ A=+ BREFEAEM M
BRI BB RR AR

Generation One Holdings Ltd, a company incorporated under the laws of
the British Virgin Islands on 24 December 2018

Generation One Holdings Ltd * R=ZZE—N\F+ = A=+ NHRERBR LA
EEETEMK AR E]

GENERATION PI HK INVESTMENT LIMITED, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong on 6 November 2019
GENERATION PI HK INVESTMENT LIMITED * R =ZE—h&FE+— F/NBiRE
BAEOIEMK I HBR AR

The Global Offering of an aggregate of 77,360,400 H Shares, including
8,557,600 H Shares issued by the Company pursuant to the partial
exercise of the Over-allotment Option

2IRBEESH77,360,400MHM - BIERRRIRZBALSITHEBRRAREE T
8,557,600 & H%

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of
its subsidiaries, as the context may require)

ARRREWBAR] (RWNEFE - FARRREEA—KKERMERR])

Guoquan Industry (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. SREIEZ(E/8)BRAF]), a limited
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 10 November 2021
and one of our Controlling Shareholders

REEX (L8 BRAR  RZE_—F+— A+ HRBHEVEETMKIA
BRATF - REMIOERRERZ —

Annual Report 2024
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“Guoxiaoquan EM”

[/ BT

“Guoxiaoquan Tech”

[/ R

“H Share(s)”

[ HAx ]

“Heyi Plant”

[F—T 7

“Huanhuan Plant”

[ BN T

“Hong Kong” or “HK”

(&%

“Hong Kong dollars,”
“HK dollars” or “HK$”

[Tl

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
or “Stock Exchange”
[ B P | ok [ B2 P |

“IFRS(s)”

B B s o s 2R

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

Shanghai Guoxiaoquan Enterprise Management Center (Limited
Partnership) (E8#/ B EERPL(EREH)), a limited partnership
incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 1 August 2019 and one of our
Controlling Shareholders

R IBrEERRL (ARAER)  RZZ-NFN\A—BREPEIERT
MR AREERE - BEMANERKREZ —

Shanghai Guoxiaoquan Agriculture Technology Service Center (Limited
Partnership) (BB BRERERBFL(ERAEE)), a limited
partnership incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 1 August 2019 and
one of our Controlling Shareholders
FERNBEREEMERBPL(BRER)  R-T—NF/\A-BREFEDE
BREMRINBEREBRELE - BERFINE HxHx%Z—

overseas listed shares in the share capital of our Company with nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are traded in HK dollars and are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RRABRAPZREEARE1.00TTHRI EHRD - WETEE - TRES
B3 Py T

one of our self-operated production facilities that engages in beef
processing

BB EEEREOEP —K - {FRFAMT

one of our self-operated production facilities that engages in the
processing of aquatic products

BB EEEREOES —F - LFREBREMINT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEFBENTHR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEEAET

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
EEMAERIAERAR  BEAERGMEREMARARNZENB AR

International Financial Reporting Standards, all applicable individual

International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting

Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)

IK’%;\.E FREEE ((ERETTER E?ﬁj)ﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘\]ﬁf’%ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬂﬂ PR
FERI SRR 53R E 2R - BN g2 ([EBREsHER ) Kk



DEFINITIONS

Bx

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

o A —

(B =7

“Listing”

=

“Listing Date”

[ £ A

“Listing Rules”

[EmAR A1

“Model Code”

[ =rAl]

“Macau”

&P )

“Mr. Li"
4]

“Mr. Meng”

[F5E4E ]

“Mr. Yang”

55t

“Prospectus”

(B ERE ]

“Reporting Period”

[ ¥R HIfA

to the best of the Directors’ knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, any entity or person who is not a connected person of our
Company within the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
RIEH VA BERERERMA  FRRFMEALTNEMNERIAL A
B LR AP T % AR E

listing of our H Shares on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
HIRR B BB P EAR £

2 November 2023, being the date on which the H Shares of the Company
are listed and from which dealings therein are permitted to take place on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

RAFHERR BRI L REEARKEENBEH  RZE_=F+—A=
H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to time)

EABARSHARRABE LRI ETRHET)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
under the Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
ETRBIMECIC EMBETAEFTETESFRSNRESTAD

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI R T IR

Mr. Li Xinhua (ZEfR%E), one of our Controlling Shareholders
FMELE - RMHZERREZ —

Mr. Meng Xianjin (&%), an executive Director and executive vice
president of our Company, one of our Controlling Shareholders

ST E  ARRMITEFREFE G - RPOIEBRER 2 —

Mr. Yang Mingchao (#583#8), the chairperson of the Board, an executive
Director and chief executive officer of our Company, one of our Controlling
Shareholders

BRABEL  ARFEER  WTESREFENTE - RAINERRR 2 —

the prospectus of the Company dated 20 October 2023 in connection with
the Hong Kong Public Offering
AARBHAZZS =+ A-THAREEEBE L ARABENHBRER

the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

—E-NNFE-A-—HE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—HHHE

Annual Report 2024
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
(AR

“SFO”

&5 REE D)
“Share(s)”

MRt ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A& = ]

“SKU”
[SKUJ

“Subsidiary(ies)”
[F 87

“Supervisor(s)”

(%]
“Taijiang Plant”
AT T

“treasury shares”

[ |
“Wanlai Wanqu Plant”
[ AR AT

s
[%]

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEIEEEE AR

Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BARBFLRPEEHEREZBE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FBEPIES71 ECES B GRD) (B AEHER] « MFE s AR M7 e

ordinary shares in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each
RAERAFZREEARE.007THEBR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
ESUESZ=DN

stock keeping unit
RMFEEM

has the meaning ascribed to it in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance

BB RAEDIE 1S IRPTIE T % r R E

member(s) of our Board of Supervisors

Taijiang County Miaomiao Sour Soup Food Co., Ltd. (B TE&EEHBSRRA
[R 2 7)) that engages in production of sour soup base products
BIREEMSRMARAR RERSEMEEREE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA EWARRIFTHE TR E

one of our self-operated production facilities that engages in meatball
production

B 2EEREOES —F - REANEE

per cent
ERiNd



CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EERYA

On behalf of the Board of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., | am
pleased to present the Annual Report of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2024 to the Shareholders.

Looking at the global perspective in 2024, inflationary pressures,
in-depth adjustments to supply chains and differentiation of
consumer demand still posed considerable challenges. However,
China’s domestic market has shown strong resilience, policies
and industrial upgrading mutually reinforced and the accelerated
innovation of Al technology has brought opportunities as well as
challenges for industry transformation and structural upgrading.
Under the dual effects of the change of consumer behaviour and
the empowerment of the industrial chain by technology, higher
requirements have been placed on industry participants. As an
industry-leading company, the Group has always been committed
to providing the Chinese people with “tasty, convenient and
value-for-money” one-stop home meal solutions, continuing to
upgrade the efficiency of its stores and supply chain, enhancing
its digitalization capabilities and deepening its industrial layout.

In 2024, the Group further consolidated its store operation
capabilities through a series of measures such as improving its
membership system, optimizing its product portfolio and using
online platforms, so as to effectively enhance its operation
efficiency and form a comprehensive network of instant retail
stores. At the same time, the Group continued to upgrade and
create store formats to make positive preparations for future
development. As of the end of 2024, the Group’s instant retail
stores had reached 10,150 in 31 provinces, autonomous regions
and municipalities directly under the Central Government.

It is worth mentioning that the Group’s hot product strategy in
2024 has received positive feedback from the market. Among
which, the Group has launched the beef tripe hotpot sets such
as “RMB99 Beef Tripe Freedom Hotpot Set” (997TFM B A
E%&) on its multiple interconnected Douyin accounts starting
from late May 2024, which have been well received by consumers
with cumulative sales throughout the year exceeding RMB500
million, gaining a total exposure of over 6.21 billion times on
Douyin throughout the year. This was a reflection of the Group’s
advantages in supply chain and product strength, and the
core of realizing the well-established brand value is the deep
development and layout of Guoquan in the industry.

AANELRRBERR (L8 RHERIQF
Exe MSURRMAZBAEEEE—
E_FE+ A=+ —HIFEZFERS -

ZTF - REIR - BRESH - HESE
REFAERBEEF RO FMAT RSk
B oo AT FERNFETSRRLEDEE
DR IS B E AR R - AR B IR Al
X BITESBR T 2RERBEAROKS
HIPkER - IEEBEETAERE - RTHEEZE
BNESEERAT  HTELEERLTES
BIEK o REBIERITHRBLDE @ 1R
TRAEPREEMRHHFEAEETE W
— I ERGCRERTT R - BEARPIER
HpEGE AL RAHTICE S - RLEXEM
5K

REBEBBATEGERR B
{LEmBE  BRELLTFEaE—RIEE -
iﬁ—*ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁmééﬁﬂ ﬁxﬂlhf%« N
RSN ER SRS o Bt
Hﬂv CREARAITEPEIER - RREE
RMFEREE #HE_T-NFEK - K&
ERNSEMEEEZ2H31EE - B8
KRBT » #E510,150%K o

—T_MEF

BEE—BHE  —T_NF  AEENER
WA W TMISHRIFRE - - =

Z_UE R A TG ASEBBCEE
WZERR FRREMEEELMN99TE
HEBRARERZ | SEHMREE  EZEKX
HEEEN  2FRAEHEBAARBSE
UL AFREBBEAEERWE2.1ER - ER
AEEHEHEDHERNNEE  MER
EREEILRNZL - B ESRBEEEERD
R o
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ESRIE

In addition to the long-term, stable upstream supplier partners
with economies of scale, in terms of the industrial layout of
core categories, in 2024, in addition to the three food ingredient
production plants owned by the Group, the Group continued to
deploy three food ingredient production plants, Huanhuan Plant
(ERERTI) for the production of aquatic products, Daixiaji (R ¥&RaC)
for the production of paste products and Taijiang Plant (&)L L)
for the production of sour soup base products. While optimizing
the product matrix and enhancing synergies, the Group continued

to promote the strategic layout of industrial ecology.

Leveraging on continuous enhancement of digital capabilities
and understanding of consumer behaviour, the Group launched
412 SKUs solely regarding the hot pot and barbecue throughout
the year, further enriching its products matrix to meet the
preferences of consumers in different regions, seasons and ages.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB6,469.8 million, representing an increase of 6.2%
over the last year. In 2024, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB1,416.8 million, representing an increase of 4.9 percentage
points over the corresponding period of 2023 and gross profit
margin was 21.9%. For the full year of 2024, the Group achieved
net profit of RMB241.2 million,
approximately 8.4% over the corresponding period of 2023.

representing a decrease of

After excluding items affecting comparability, the core operating
profit (Non-IFRS measure) for the year ended 31 December 2024
was RMB310.8 million,
of 3.1 percentage points, achieving steady and high-quality

representing a year-on-year increase

development.

Based on the Group’s operating performance, the Board will
recommend at the forthcoming annual general meeting the
payment of final cash dividend of RMB0.0746 per Share (inclusive
of tax), totalling to approximately RMB200.1 million for such
purpose.

Looking ahead, we will continue to integrate our brands, products
and channels, explore market potential, embrace breakthroughs
and innovation in terms of expansion and operation of stores,
membership strategy, industrial layouts and other aspects, in
order to consolidate our leading position in the market, through
which we can offer four meals a day at home dining solution for
thousands of households in the community, and continue to build
a central kitchen for millions of families in the community.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ESRIE

Finally, | would like, on behalf of the Board, to express my sincere
gratitude to all our staff for their endeavors and dedication,
and to all our customers, Shareholders, franchisees and
partners for their long-term companionship and support on
our road to growth. From small community stores to thousands
of franchisees operating Guoquan business; from hot pot and
barbecue ingredients to the light of countless homes woven with
love with relatively small things but having a multiplier effect, we
have integrated the relentless pursuit of long-term development
into every thoughtful service we provide to the consumers in the
community; a straw shows which way the wind blows and we
believe that every small choice will create a different picture for
the future. To this, guided by innovation and driven by efficiency,
the Group is willing to spare no effort in creating value for
consumers and long-term returns for Shareholders.

Yang Mingchao

Chairperson of the Board, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

28 March 2025

Note:

(1) The accounting basis of the final cash dividend is founded on the total
number of Shares (excluding the treasury shares) of 2,682,783,200 Shares
of the Company as at 28 March 2025. However, as the Shares will be
repurchased and held as treasury shares by the Company from time to time,
the actual aggregate amount of the final cash dividend to be paid will be
based on the total number of Shares (excluding the treasury shares) on the
record date for the payment of the final dividend, which will be announced
by the Company separately then.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*BEEKkRE

OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Omni-channel sales network

The Group has established the largest one-stop home meal
products retail store network in China. The Group’s extensive
nationwide store network with wide geographic coverage
contributed to enhancing brand awareness and was also
conducive to generating consumer insights and thereby improving
the Group’s responses to the rapidly changing market trends
across different regions. The density of store network improved
the efficiency of logistics and transportation. Moreover, the
Group’s retail stores provided consumers with both online and
offline shopping options, achieving highly extensive consumer
reach.

In 2024, consumers became more rational and cautious about
their daily consumption. The Group has proactively grasped
changes in consumption trend, improved stores’ capabilities
of operation and management by optimizing product portfolio,
and embraced multi-faceted initiatives such online leads, which
formed a holistic and instant retail store network. The number
of stores increased from 9,660 as at 30 June 2024 to 10,150 as
at 31 December 2024, with its retail store network covering 31
provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities.

The table below sets forth the total number of franchised stores
and self-operated stores of the Group as of 31 December 2024.

ERXBRUBRR
SREHEME

=

AREBR A BT T RAH — U E KR
EREMTEMERE - AEEEMZEN
FERREBEERZR - BRI G
HEFHBERR  tMEHAKEE TR
@ RF B TIH BB RIE - PIERG
MZERS TYRMEBERE o o - K
SENTEMEREEERHER LA TEY
EE - BREZNHEEERE -

—ENE - HEEHRBEEBESEM
BHEMEE AEEXHICETEBBY
V&L BREBLCERES  IRAFIEESR
EBAEEEN  BILRERESS AR
B ERT 2T EESS 0 M
EHER T -_MFEA=+HMI,660K
PMEREE_ZE_NF+_A=+—HK
10,150K PG - TEPEREEE2F31E
‘- BRREKEED -

TREVNAEEBE T _NF+-_A=+
—HEMNBAPIEM B EPIE RS -

As of 31 December

BE+=-A=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF B

Number Number

of stores % of stores %

FIIEE B % PYEEE %
Franchised stores hnERJE 10,135 99.9 10,300 99.9
Self-operated stores SRS 15 0.1 7 0.1
Total st 10,150 100.0 10,307 100.0

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wWERm (L&) ROBRATA



BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
EBCEKRREE

Meanwhile, the Group has also actively developed innovative
stores, renovated and upgraded existing stores, such as
developing stores for farmer’s market and upgraded stores for
township-level market. Based on in-depth understanding of
markets in lower-tier cities, we also have achieved outstanding
performance on expansion of stores in township-level market.
There were 287 net new township-level stores for the year of
2024. The new township-level stores differs in product structure,
store display and other aspects from the standard stores,
and better meet the needs of consumers from township-level
markets.

The Group achieved a total revenue of RMB6,469.8 million in
2024, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.2%. The table
below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s product sales
revenue contributions by channel during the Reporting Period:

EERIE - AEEBEEBAIFPIEHRE -
WHRIRBPIEETBEEMAR - LT
ETEHREETSNEER  ARFRTER
BETHNEL - AR AT HHRAE
7 RPERETSOPERALIET
MRE - T - NFEFEFHIL 287 KA
JE o FABEFE - EEMGBMPTERIE
HEIEAE R HAFIHREPIE - Eifim e
THETIGHEBEER K -

TEINFEARSEHERBRAARE
6,469.8F& T * FLLIERG.2% o T&RHE
RRERRRNAERIZREBEHDNERIBE
WA B BRI -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—ETWF —T=F
Amount % Amount %
ot | % -t %

(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)

(ARETT - BALKRIN

Sales of meal products and HEEREMREBER

related products
Sales to franchisees SHE TINEER 5,445,007 86.3 5,365,567 90.3
Other sales channels ™ HgHeERED 867,239 13.7 574,951 9.7
Total st 6,312,246 100 5,940,518 100
Note: Bifat -
(1) Other sales channels primarily include (i) sales to enterprise customers, (1) HHERETZEENHETLERF (B2

including food wholesalers, supermarkets, restaurants and other
enterprises; and (ii) direct sales to end consumers.

The franchise business model contributed significantly to the
growths of Group’s revenue, market share and brand recognition.
The Group believes the effective and systematic management
of our franchisees is critical to the success of our business. The
Group considers each franchised store to be a conveyance of
our business philosophy and brand image. Therefore, the Group
values each of our franchisees beyond merely as a business
partner, but also as a teammate who was committed to our
business philosophy and motivated to grow our brand and store
network with us. The Group strives to continuously support
and empower our franchisees in store operations and business
development and provides comprehensive training for franchisees
and their employees to help our franchised stores succeed.

RMHLER - BT -
T RImEESE -

BEREMDZE)  R>IVE

FRFEEEBRA - RAKENKRA - 15
MENMEMNEENERELERER - K
SERE UNERETARMERICER
HEBORNWEREE - AEERE 8K
0 B2 5 45 18 i AN SR [ ) 45 8 TR R R Y
R Bt AEETESENBABES
et MABEBARIEERAE
B RS S WTE G EARE LR RS
MPIEMENBRR - AEEBHEFES
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
*HEERREE

The franchised stores are managed by the Group’s regional
management teams. The regional management teams provide
support and guidance for franchisees with respect to market
development and store operating strategies, among others.
With the support of the Group’s headquarters and management
by our regional teams, the Group is able to empower and serve
franchisees more effectively to drive their sales growth and, in
turn, our revenue.

To empower franchisees and facilitate their sales growth as
well as further expand consumer reach and offer more flexible
shopping experience, the Group has also developed multiple
online sales networks, including the Group’s Guoquan APP,
WeChat mini-program, third-party food delivery platforms as
well as on popular social commerce platforms such as Douyin
to promote interplay between offline stores and online leads.
In 2024, the Group continued to conduct consumer reach for
Guoquan’s products on its multi-level Douyin accounts, gaining
a total exposure of over 6.21 billion times throughout the year,
among which, the “RMB99 Beef Tripe Freedom Hotpot Set” (997T
EMHBAHNAEE) and other beef tripe hotpot sets successively
launched since late May were well received by consumers with
accumulated sales exceeding RMB500 million in 2024. Through
the spread of popular social media commerce platforms, the
Group interacted more and had wider connection with consumers.

Membership subscription

The Group’s membership program built close online and offline
connections and engagement with consumers and fostered
consumer loyalty. In the second half of 2024, the Group has
thoroughly upgraded the membership system and increased
member benefits by making adjustments to tiered membership
system, so as to further promote the membership growth and
stickiness. As at 31 December 2024, the number of the Group’s
registered members reached approximately 41.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 48.2%. The Group
continued to enhance and develop the prepaid cards program.
The value stored in prepaid cards for the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately RMB0.99 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 36.6%.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
EBCEKRREE

Meal products brand and product portfolio

The Group is committed to enhancing the efficiency of at-home
food preparation and strives to be a community kitchen around
consumers. Our home meal products that are mainly ready-
to-eat, ready-to-heat, ready-to-cook products or prepared
ingredients provide consumers with an efficient and easy way
to prepare a meal at home, regardless of their levels of cooking
skills. Meal products offered by the Group aim to strike the
balance of nutrition, taste, hygiene and efficiency. The Group’s
product offerings conveniently meet consumers’ diverse dining
demands in a one-stop shop manner, encompassing hotpot soup
base, condiments, meatballs, shrimp paste, meat, vegetables,

beverages, pots and grills, etc.

In 2024, the Group has continuously implemented the philosophy
of providing consumers with “tasty, convenient and value-for-
money” meal products. We successively launched “RMB99 Beef
“RMB99 Sauerkraut Fish Freedom
Hotpot Set” and other product portfolio with high quality-price

Tripe Freedom Hotpot Set”,

ratio that is popular with consumers. In addition, the Group
constantly expands product portfolio, launches new products
and upgrades existing ones from time to time to satisfy changing
demands and preferences of consumers. For example, the Group
established a total of 412 new SKUs of hotpot and barbecue

products in 2024.

Efficient supply chain management and digital and intelligent
operation

We operated under a streamlined and highly efficient supply
chain from production facilities to central warehouses and further
to retail stores, eliminating redundant intermediate parties
in the supply chain, thereby optimizing cost control to offer
affordable products to franchisees and consumers. Partnering
with warehousing and logistics providers, we achieved next day
delivery from central warehouses to retail stores for most orders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
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In particular, the digitalization of the Group’s supply chain
comprising production, procurement, warehousing, and logistics
allowed us to monitor the supply and demand dynamics from
procurement-end to store-end and closely monitor our inventory
level, enabling highly efficient management of our entire supply
chain. By tracking and processing orders received from stores
across the country through our supply chain system empowered
by digitalisation, the Group was able to communicate with our
upstream suppliers in advance to ensure timely availability
of products for all of our stores. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group achieved swift circulation of products, in cooperation
with warehousing and logistics providers, through digital stock
and barcode management leveraging on 18 digitalized central
warehouses across China.

Adopting a one-product-one-factory model, the Group has
strategically acquired food ingredient production capabilities
to achieve stronger control over the production and supply of
our staple products. The Group has created industrial layout of
essential ingredients of hotpot at all levels. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had six food ingredient production plants,
namely, Heyi Plant (Ff1—T &) for the production of our beef
products, Wanlai Wanqu Plant (LML A LRR) for the production
of meatballs, Chengming Plant (BB3 L&) for the production
of our hotpot soup base products, Huanhuan Plant (& T
&) for the production of aquatic products, Daixiaji (i##&R2) for
the production of paste products and Taijiang Plant ()T T
&) for the production of sour soup base products. The Group
has continuously enhanced its bargaining power in upstream
procurement, increasingly realized economies of scale of
production and continuously optimized production costs by
development and deployment of industry.

Meanwhile, the Group has established long-term and stable
partnership with major upstream product suppliers, which is
helpful to boost production efficiency of the product and quickly
launch more product portfolio. The Group’s generation of a large
demand from consumers across China gave rise to large scale
procurement needs, which has given the Group the ability to
negotiate with suppliers from a position of strength, allowing
us to secure high quality, consistent products at competitive
costs. The Group’s long-term stable relationship with suppliers
and control over the production of our staple products further
ensured the supply of high-quality food which is tasty, convenient
and value-for-money to consumers.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Expand and deepen the network and continued expansion of low
tier markets

The Group plans to expand the multi-level sales network, improve
market penetration, and promote new regions’ network expansion
via new store types of stores for town-level and county-level
markets, covering more towns and counties. Meantime, the Group
will continue to launch products and services to meet consumers’
demand from low-tier markets, in order to capture more market
share in low-tier markets. Focused on long-term vision of “China’s
good neighbor” and continuous optimization of store operation
and management, the Group will pay attention to between major
and minor issues to improve the service of store so as to better
serve customer’s shopping experience.

The Group will continue to cultivate more entrepreneurial
franchisees by encouraging existing franchisees to open more
franchised stores and develop their regionally integrated
operations as a long-term business. The Group also plans to
propel franchisees’ sales growth and cultivate entrepreneurial
franchisees by continuously adding more product portfolio
with “quality-price ratio”, and developing more online sales
channels. Going forward, the Group will continue to optimize its
internal training system and strengthen franchisees and store
manager organizations to facilitate the sharing of management
experience amongst them, thereby continuously improving store
performance.
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Strengthen the membership ecosystem construction to
empower brand reach by IP

The Group will continue to extend the channels for expanding
customers, encourage members to introduce new customers,
improve public and private traffic, and reach consumers through
popular TV commercials, offline advertising and social media
and e-commerce platforms, such as Douyin, so as to expand the
Group’s member groups. The Group will continue to optimize the
membership benefits program by enriching the points redemption
portal and upgrading the member’s rights system. The Group will
gradually create and distribute various contents with high quality
in the form of image text and videos focused on our brand’s
cartoon image of IP “Guobao” (#%) to emotionally connect with
consumers, so as to better convey our brand value concept. The
Group will enhance the understanding of consumer behaviours to
provide the most suitable marketing, services and products, so as
to raise engagement velocity.

Strengthen its position as community central kitchen by
increasing real-time retails and intelligent retails

The Group will continue to dive into hotpot, camping and home
barbecue consumption scenarios, and lay out new product
matrix and consumption scenarios by focusing on home meal for
consumers, such as Chinese cuisine, western cuisine, beverages
and midnight snack, to provide thousands of households in
the community with home meal solutions for four meals a day,
thereby building it into a community kitchen for billions of
households.

The Group will also continue to innovate its sales channels,
and develop the business model of “one shop, one store and
one warehouse” by vigorously developing various online sales
channels such as Douyin and Guoquan WeChat mini-program,
so as to provide unlimited shopping experience, expand the
product portfolio and remove the restriction of retail space
of brick-and-mortar stores. Once consumers place an online
order, the products will be delivered to the nearest offline store
for consumers to pick up. This empowers online-to-offline
integration and facilitates the additional functionality of our
offline stores as satellite warehouses, driving up the sales of both
our online and offline stores, which in turn will boost the growth

in revenue.
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Depending on the Internet of Things, big data and Al technology,
the Group will upgrade from instant stores to intelligent and
unmanned retail to further extend the opening hours, to serve
for more consumption scenarios as to home meals, building 24/7
intelligent retail network.

Expand its presence in the industry, consolidate supply chain
system and build up core competencies of products

The Group will continue to adopt its one-product-one-factory
strategy to achieve economies of scale and increase its cost
advantage. The Group plans to expand its presence in the industry
through investment or collaboration and further integrate its
upstream resources and source quality food ingredients by joining
hands with selective and qualified domestic and overseas food
suppliers who have market potential and can achieve synergy
with the Group, developing a strong industrial supply chain.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to increase R&D investment
and enhance the Group’s R&D and innovative capabilities through
continuous cooperation with upstream suppliers. The Group
intends to optimize, upgrade its existing products, create tasty,
convenient and value-for-money specialties, and offer more
product portfolios with high quality-price ratio by continually
adjusting its production processes according to consumer
feedback. Leveraging on its strong capability in supply chain, the
Group intends to continue to explore sales channels for corporate
customers and strengthen the regional supply chain of home
meal products, to cater to the needs of consumers.

Explore overseas markets to deliver the good taste of China

The Group plans to initially explore overseas regional markets
by prudently evaluating and selecting suitable locations, such
as Hong Kong, Southeast Asia and other regions. The Group will
try to arrange the sales of its products, export its supply chain
capability to abroad, and deliver the good taste of China, so as to
continuously improve its global recognition and explore overseas
sales growth points.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWNE D

The following table sets forth the consolidated financial results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2023:

TR AEERBEE_T-_OF+=_A=
T—HIEFEZGREMBEANREHE
TR =FFT A= —HIEFEZLRY
=

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—RHILEE
2024 2023
—ECWEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Revenue WA 6,469,810 6,094,104
Cost of sales SHERCA (5,053,058) (4,743,163)
Gross profit EF 1,416,752 1,350,941
Other income and gains, net HAn A R Yz 558 26,134 104,915
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DAY (664,194) (578,820)
Administrative expenses TR X (454,282) (497,235)
Other expenses HEMMAX (1,240) (8,652)
Finance costs BT AR (4,421) (6,432)
Impairment losses on financial assets, CRUYEERERRE
net of reversal IR Bl 797 (2,292)
Profit before tax R A1 RS 319,546 363,425
Income tax expense Frigfif X (78,308) (100,023)
Profit for the year FRAE 241,238 263,402
Profit attributable to TR AT EMLTE
Owners of the parent NAER A 230,558 239,636
Non-controlling interests SRR i 10,680 23,766

REVENUE

L/ ON

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue
by nature and channel for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2024, in absolute amounts and as percentages of total revenue:

TRBINEE_ZE_ZFR T _NF+=
A=+ BHULFEAEBEEELEBEE D
MU ARRAE LA & B RIEBW AT S L
H7R

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2024 2023
—EmF S

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T % AREFIT %

Sales of meal products and HEERERRK
related products HRER 6,312,246 97.6 5,940,518 97.5
Sales to franchisees e Pﬁfﬁ% 5,445,007 84.2 5,365,567 88.1
Other sales channels HibsHeERE 867,239 13.4 574,951 9.4
Service income PR WA 157,564 2.4 153,586 2.5
Total Fy 6,469,810 100.0 6,094,104 100.0

The Group’s total revenue increased by approximately 6.2% from
RMB6,094.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
RMB6,469.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

Revenue from sales of meal products and related products
accounted for the majority of the Group’s total revenue,
representing 97.5% and 97.6% of the total revenue in 2023 and
2024, respectively. Such revenue increased by approximately
6.3% from RMB5,940.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to RMB6,312.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2024, mainly due to that the Group launched a number of
meal suites for the year, which catered the favour of extensive
customers impressively, coupled with an increase in sales to
corporate customers during the year. Service income increased
by approximately 2.6% from RMB153.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to RMB157.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, mainly due to the number of franchised stores in
2024 was more than that in 2023.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales increased by approximately 6.5% from RMB4,743.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB5,053.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly due to the
increase in the cost of inventories sold as a result of the increase
in product sales volume.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit increased by 4.9% from RMB1,350.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB1,416.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, the gross profit margin slightly
decreased from 22.2% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
21.9% for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly due to that
the Group launched a number of new meal suites, which catered
the favour of extensive customers impressively, such as “RMB99
Beef Tripe Freedom Hotpot Set” (997t EM B H A AEZ) launched
in late May, resulting in lower gross profit margin of the Group.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Other income and gains, net, decreased by 75.1% from RMB104.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB26.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly due to the change
from gains for unrealized fair value gains on unlisted convertible
redeemable preferred shares (i.e. the investment in Dmall Inc.) at
fair value through profit or loss, to losses before listing, partially
offset by the increase in interest income and foreign exchange
gains.

HEEREMMEBMEMNWBAGREER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 14.8% from
RMB578.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
RMB664.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. This was
mainly due to the Group’s increased investment in brand building,
as well as the construction of sales channels such as Douyin,
live-streaming e-commerce, and new store formats during the
year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by 8.6% from RMB497.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB454.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly due to the absence
of the Group’s listing expenses during the year.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a profit before
income tax of RMB319.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2024, representing a decrease of approximately 12.1% from
RMB363.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by approximately 21.7% from
RMB100.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
RMB78.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, mainly
due to the decrease in the Group’s taxable income.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit decreased by
approximately 8.4% from RMB263.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to RMB241.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2024. The Group’s net profit margin decreased from
4.3% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 3.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE SR

NON-IFRS MEASURES

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial information
prepared and presented in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, the Group has also adopted
adjusted net profit and adjusted net profit margin (each a non-
IFRS measure) as additional financial measures. Adjusted
net profit refers to net profit for the year adjusted for listing
expenses. Listing expenses refer to the expenses relating to the
global offering completed by the Group in 2023. Adjusted net
profit margin is calculated by dividing the adjusted net profit for
the year by the total revenue for the relevant year.

The Group also uses core operating profit and core operating
margin (each a non-IFRS measure) as additional financial
measures to further exclude items affecting comparability.
We consider both quantitative and qualitative factors when
assessing whether to adjust for the impact of items that may
be material or may affect the understanding of our ongoing
financial and business performance or trends. Items that are
affected by external factors and factors that are different
from or unrelated to our core operations, such that they are
considered to significantly affect the results for the current
or comparable periods, are generally considered to be “items
affecting comparability”. Items affecting comparability include:
(i) listing expenses; and (ii) gains or losses on fair value changes
on unlisted convertible redeemable preferred shares. Core
operating margin is calculated by dividing core operating profit
for the Reporting Period by total revenue for the Reporting Period.
We believe that the presentation of core operating profit and core
operating profit margin provides additional information to further
enhance the comparability of our historical results of operations
with the trends in our underlying results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

The Group uses unaudited non-IFRS measures as additional
financial measures to supplement the consolidated financial
information and to assess the Group’s financial performance by
eliminating the impact of certain non-recurring items that the
Group considers to be non-indicators of the Group’s business
performance. Other companies in the industries in which the
Group operates may have non-IFRS measures that are different
from those of the Group. The use of non-IFRS measures poses
limitations as an analysis tool, you should not regard such
measures as being independent of, or a substitute for, the
analysis of the Group’s results of operations or financial position
as presented in accordance with IFRSs. The Group’s presentation
of such non-IFRS items should not be regarded as an inference
that the Group’s future results will not be affected by unusual or
non-recurring items.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of adjusted net
profit and adjusted net profit margin (non-IFRS measures) for
the years indicated to the most directly comparable financial
measures measured and presented in accordance with IFRSs (i.e.
net profit for the year and net profit margin for the year).

AEBFERRERTIFBRYBREERG
BEREINUBE  URHRGAMBER
FMBEBMBEARERRLFAREXBERER
EENETHERERENFETEARHE
MEBAR - AEEEEMETENEMR
BIH) JEBIFR B 75 R 5 R FT & R e AN SR B
TR - FBERM B mE LT EERIITT
AFERRYE - BT IEEERTERASE
VR A B RN ERER BB E R
P2 LRESIMBERRNDN - AEH
2IZ RS B REERNIAR TERRR
AEBMRREEHIZ IS EIIEEMER
EEZ Jiofid

RBP4 R A AR S B F A R A
EFMNEX FERM B REEAGFE) BR
BEEEMEREENFENERNOREEA
LB TR BT (A 3R R A R 3 A
R YR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=1T-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFIT
Net profit for the year FARFANE
(as reported under IFRSs) (IR BB B B S ERIFT 2 5) 241,238 263,402
Adjusted for: KA BRI
Listing expenses WX - 54,570
Adjusted net profit for the year FRKARFFE
(non-IFRS measure) (GERIRR iSRS HERIGT 2) 241,238 317,972
Net profit margin SEF R
(as reported under IFRSs) (IRIRBIR B I S RIFT 2 5) 3.7% 4.3%
Adjusted net profit margin KRR ARE
(non-IFRS measure) (GEEIRE iSRS HERIGT 2) 3.7% 5.2%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of core operating
profit and core operating margin (non-IFRS measures) for
the years indicated to the most directly comparable financial
measures measured and presented in accordance with IFRSs (i.e.
net profit for the year and net profit margin for the year):

T%ﬁﬂ%%%i?%ﬁ/g WAIDEP SN
REFBE GEERMBRELERFTE) BR
BEERMEREENFTERERRERA
L B 15 ET B 1R (BNF % AR M A
BR) MR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLEE

2024 2023
—EME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Net profit for the year FRFFE
(as reported under IFRSs) (RIEBR R EEAIF 2 W) 241,238 263,402
Adjusted for: BUATEIERE -
Listing expenses X - 54,570
Gains or losses on fair value changes LAk ERE LR
on unlisted convertible redeemable ARBEEZBERD
preferred shares!” 69,609 (16,490)
Core operating profit for the year FRZOEL LT
(non-IFRS measure) (GERR B R R S ERIGT &) 310,847 301,482
Net profit margin (as reported under IFRSs) SRR E (RIEBR M RS EAIFT 2 8) 3.7% 4.3%
Core operating margin RO &R %
(non-IFRS measure) (GEEIRR B T3R5 AR =) 4.8% 4.9%
Note: AR
(1) The Group invested in Dmall Inc. and recorded it as financial assets at (1) REERBRZHHESARAR - WEH EHAT
fair value through profit or loss prior to its listing. Dmall Inc. was listed in VMR IEARBESABRNEMEE - ZHH
December 2024 and was subsequently recorded as the equity investments BERAFN-ZZZNF+=A L - HEHI®
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income. RIETRANEBES AL M2 E KRS HRER
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES REBEEREXER

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash
generated from operating activities was RMB530.9 million, as
compared to RMB678.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2028.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits amounted to RMB1,935.7
million as at 31 December 2023, as compared to RMB2,124.7
million as at 31 December 2024, comprising long-term bank
deposits of RMB106.0 million, cash and bank balances of
RMB1,929.9 million and restricted cash of RMB88.8 million.

HEZZ-_WOF+ZA=+—HLFE"
ZK%IZ“%/E@J% S ARMES30908E
T MBEZZTZ=F+-A=+—HIF
EAANRKE78.3AETT °

RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H AEEHR
& RIBITFEHRBARE1,935.78ET © MR
ZECNFFZA=FT—HAAEARY2124.7
BET BERHRITEXRARE®.106.08
B Re MBITEBRARKE1,92095E8 T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE S

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounted to RMB67.5 million, comprising
non-current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
RMB4.0 million and current interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of RMB63.5 million. This represents a decrease
of 15.9% from RMB80.3 million as at 31 December 2023. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB and bear interest at fixed
rates. The Group has not implemented any interest rate hedging

policy.

The Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its daily liquidity
management and capital expenditure requirements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the net asset value of the Group was
RMB3,264.8 million, as compared to RMB3,378.8 million as
at 31 December 2023. The net asset value as at 31 December
2024 mainly comprised current assets of RMB3,268.5 million,
non-current assets of RMB1,483.0 million, current liabilities
of RMB1,404.4 million and non-current liabilities of RMB82.3
million.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were mainly denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in
RMB and HK$.

The Group’ s gearing ratio (gearing ratio equals total interest-
bearing borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities and total equity attributable
to owners of the parent at the end of the year, multiplied by
100%) decreased from 3.3% as at 31 December 2023 to 3.2% as
at 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

FINANCIAL RISK

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to cash
and bank balances, bank borrowings. The Group considers that
the overall interest rate risk to be insignificant. The Group has
cash at bank in foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to
foreign exchange risk. The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against foreign exchange risk. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of foreign exchange rates and will take prudent
measures to minimize the currency translation risk.

INVENTORIES

The inventories of the Group decreased by 3.8% from RMB719.5
million as at 31 December 2023 to RMB691.8 million as
at 31 December 2024. Due to the Group’s better inventory
management, inventory turnover days decreased from 68.0 days
in 2023 to 51.0 days in 2024.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The trade receivables of the Group increased from RMB54.3
million as at 31 December 2023 to RMB233.8 million as at 31
December 2024 mainly due to the increase in sales to corporate
customers during the year. The trade receivables turnover days
increased slightly from 6.0 days in 2023 to 8.1 days in 2024,
mainly due to the increase in the collection periods of new
corporate customers during the year.

TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payables of the Group increased from RMB457.3 million
as at 31 December 2023 to RMB647.1 million as at 31 December
2024. The trade payables turnover days increased slightly from
39.8 days in 2023 to 39.9 days in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged property, plant
and equipment amounting to RMB124.4 million and right-of-
use assets amounting to RMB11.5 million for its interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of our capital management are to
safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support our business
and maximize equity holders value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, we may adjust the dividend payment to equity
holders, return capital to equity holders or issue new shares. We
are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the Reporting Period.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB16.8 million, which were mainly used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
S ERE SR

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Company completed the acquisition of 41% equity interests
in Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. (“Daixiaji”) on 24 December
2024 at a total purchase price of RMB246 million, which was
funded by the Company’s internal resources and in part by the
proceeds from the Global Offering. Following the completion of
the acquisition, the Group held a total of 51% equity interest in
Daixiaji. As an associate of the Company, the portion of Daixiaji’s
net profit attributable to the Group was recognized in Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Daixiaji is principally engaged in the production, research and
development and sales of shrimp paste, beef paste, pork paste,
chicken paste, cuttlefish paste, fish paste and other paste food,
with shrimp paste as the main category and other paste products
to enrich the product matrix, which has a good synergistic effect
with the Group. The Group has always been committed to food
safety and quality assurance, with high requirements for its
suppliers. The acquisition enabled the Group to enhance its
control over the upstream supply chain of key products under its
one-product-one-factory strategy and to strengthen its stability
of obtaining the supply of high-quality products that meet food
safety standards, so as to intensify the Group’s upstream supply
chain market layout, deepen the synergy and resource integration
and further improve the Group’s overall profitability.

Daixiaji is a substantial associate of the Group and was recorded
by equity method. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount
of investment in Daixiaji of the Group was RMB299.5 million,
representing approximately 6.3% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Group did
not have any significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
INVESTMENTS IN CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, save as disclosed herein and
the Prospectus, the Group did not have plans for material
investments and capital assets.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao (BEA#E %), aged 54, is our founder,
chairperson of the Board, executive Director, chairperson of the
Nomination Committee of the Board and chief executive officer.
He is primarily responsible for the overall business strategies and
operations of our Group.

Mr. Yang founded our Group in January 2015 and has been
working in our Group and our certain subsidiaries, including
Henan Guoquan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (A ifE
HEEEIRER AT since January 2015, where he has been
working as the chairman; our Company since July 2019, where
he has been serving as a director; Shanghai Guoquan Shihui
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (E/EBBREFEEEER
A7\]) since June 2020, where he has been serving as a director;
Luyi Heyi Meat Industry Co., Ltd. (BEE%M—AZEEFRAF]) since
August 2021, Luyi Chengming Food Co., Ltd. (BEE8%EHRMAR
‘A a]) since November 2022 and Guoquan Huanhuan Food (Hubei)
Co., Ltd.(SABIEER M OHIL) AR A R]) since January 2024 where
he has been serving as the chairman.

Mr. Yang received a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from
Zhengzhou University (88 KX28) in the PRC in June 1994.

Mr. Meng Xianjin (ZEi# %), aged 44, is our co-founder,
executive Director and executive vice president. He is primarily
responsible for the market development and store management
of our Group.

Mr. Meng co-founded our Group with Mr. Yang in January 2015,
and has been working in our Group and our certain subsidiaries,
including Henan Guoquan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
OB HEHEEIREAR A F]) since January 2015, where he has
been serving as a vice president; Zhengzhou Guoquan Shihui
Network Technology Co., Ltd. (EpM BB RIEAZBHLER AT
since February 2017, where he has been serving as the director;
Shaanxi Guoquan Shihui Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (P&
TRERIEmESIEEGMRAR]) since August 2019, where he has
been serving as the director; Beijing Guoquan Shihui Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (Jt RiBREBEEEARAA) and
Nanjing Guoquan Shihui Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (FI 5
MEREFEEIEAMR A A]) since August 2019, where he has been
serving as the supervisor; and our Company since October 2019,
where he has been serving as the Director.
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Mr. An Haolei (Z%& % %), aged 40, is our executive Director and
vice president. He is primarily responsible for the exploration and
management of new online sales channels of our Group. Mr. An
joined our Group in July 2018 as vice president and has served
as executive Director and vice president since March 2020. He
currently serves as a director at several subsidiaries within our
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. An served as a general manager in
Zhengzhou Anzhong Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
(EMNEZROEERAZHREGMRAR]) from January 2012 to May 2015,
and a general manager in Henan Kangzhiyuan Trading Co., Ltd. (/]
AEZBREEARAF) from May 2015 to July 2018.

Mr. An obtained a junior college diploma in mobile Internet
application technology (B E B ERFEMEZ) in the Open
University of China (BIXFMAEZ) in January 2024. Mr.
An is currently pursuing an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) Program at The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology.

Ms. Luo Na (B2 t), aged 43, is our executive Director and vice
president. She is primarily responsible for managing the product
chain of the Group.

Since March 2017, Ms. Luo has been working in our Company and
our certain subsidiaries, including Henan Guoquan Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (fFE$R B EHE IR FR 2 R]) since March
2017 and our Company since July 2020, where she has been
working as the director of product center; Luyi County Wanlai
Wanqu Food Co., Ltd. (BEE%IRAERBEMRAR), Luyi Heyi
Meat Industry Co., Ltd. (BEBHM—AEARAF]) since August
2021 and Guoquan Huanhuan Food (Hubei) Co., Ltd ((REEE & &
(#1E)BRAR]) since January 2024, where she has been serving
as the director.

Ms. Luo obtained a junior college diploma (through correspondence
course) in business and corporation administration in Henan
Normal University (R EEATE5 K EZ2) in the PRC in July 2023.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhengzheng (2|##$#), aged 33, has been our non-
executive Director since September 2023. He mainly participates
in evaluation and approval of business plans, strategies and
major decisions of our Group through the Board.

Mr. Liu has extensive experience in the capital market. From
November 2014 to March 2017, Mr. Liu worked in Henan Jiarui
Investment Co., Ltd. CAFEERIEEARAF]). From April 2017
to March 2023, Mr. Liu served as the board secretary of Henan
Huahuaniu Dairy Group Co., Ltd. CAEEEF I EEBRHBRA
A]), primarily responsible for its initial public offering. Since April
20283, Mr. Liu has been working as a manager in the securities
department in Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. (Z2BmRMHER AR,
a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002216), primarily responsible for the information disclosure and
investor relationship management. Since August 2023, Mr. Liu
has been the board secretary of Suanquan Food Co., Ltd..

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in Finance from Henan
University of Economics and Law (7 @ 87 & BUAKRZ) in the PRC in
July 2013 and a master’s degree in Accounting and Finance from
University of London in United Kingdom in November 2014.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

FHTES

BFH L 0 BT —FAAR—
EREFATES - REERBTFEELE
S RAE A EEN EEH B BEREA
o o

BRI ERERAMIGHBLYERR - B2 —
ME+—BE-T—+&F=F  ZLLEATR
WA ERRERRAR - BT —+FNW
REZZZ=F=8  3kEETIETL
FUAEEBERGBERADNESTWE  F2
BEHEAAARE BT -_=FWA
B RAREERIBESFRGHMETARI =2
BEmBRHBRAR (RERH - 002216) £
BEPEE  FEBABREEHRBNREEH
REE AT =F)\ARR " BErEr=
2RBEHBERAFTNESSWE -

Bl AR =B —=F L ARBPRTBHE
BOEASERMBLEM - YRZB—MOET
— AEGEAREAB R RSB LS -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EENEREEAERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong (GEE#%4%), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2023, and the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee of the Board and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board and providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business and operational management of the
Group.

Mr. Zeng has extensive experience in finance and investments.
Mr. Zeng worked at Bank of China’s New York Branch (FEIE7T
B #5317) from February 1999 to July 2005 with his last position
as a vice president in the Corporate Banking Department. He
joined J. P. Morgan (EEIR KXI@ILE$RTT) in July 2005 as an equity
analyst of the Equities Research Department before moving
to the investment banking department covering financial
institutions. From August 2008 to September 2022, Mr. Zeng
worked at Greenwoods Asset Management Hong Kong Limited
(EMEBEEEEBEEBER AT, a private fund manager focusing
on the management of Greater China investments, with his last
position as the general manager and partner. Mr. Zeng started
and served as the chairman of Arcadia Fund Management Group
Asia Limited (RISE BB EETMNBERAA) in December 2022
to be focused on investments into listed and to-be-listed Asian
companies. He is also a director of its parent company, Arcadia
Fund Management Group Limited (RisESEIREB AR AR,
and its affiliated company, Arcadia Fund Management GP Limited
(BISESLEBRLREAZAABREARA). Since December 2024, Mr.
Zeng has served as an independent non-executive director of
Xiaocaiyuan International Holding Ltd. (/NEEBE AR A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0999.HK).

Mr. Zeng has been a holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) designation ($FF& B2 17AT) since 2003. And he is also
a member of the board and a Vice Chairman of the Great China
Committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association (HKVCA) (BB EIE R EREHE).

Mr. Zeng graduated from Wuhan University (RJZAE) in the
PRC with a major in International Finance in July 1995, and then
attended the International Finance program at the Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China (R B A RERITHIZTAEF) (now
the PBC Graduate School of Finance, Tsinghua University) from
1995 to 1997. Mr. Zeng then further studied at and graduated
with a Master of Science degree in Accounting & Finance from the
London School of Economics (LSE) in United Kingdom in August
1998, where he received the Robert Fleming scholarship.
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Ms. Yu Fang Jing (BFBF¥Z +), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Board. She is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board and providing strategic advice
and guidance on financial management and internal control of
the Group.

Ms. Yu has professional legal experience in Hong Kong capital
market for almost 20 years. From August 2003 to October 2010,
Ms. Yu worked in the Hong Kong and Beijing Offices in Freshfields
Em{EERERFT), with her last position
as a senior associate. From February 2011 to April 2018, Ms. Yu
worked in the Beijing and Shanghai Offices in Clifford Chance LLP
(SEHZEDEFFT) with her last position during the above period
as a partner. Ms. Yu then served as a partner in the Hong Kong

Bruckhaus Deringer LLP (

Office of Tian Yuan Law Firm from September 2019 to February
2021, and as a partner in the Hong Kong Office of Paul Hastings
LLP (EZE&ERMEBFT) from March 2021 to November 2022. From
December 2022 to March 2024, Ms. Yu served as an in-house
counsel and a managing director in Mont Avenir Capital Limited
(RREBERA
independent non-executive director in China Oriental Group
Company Limited (FEIERFSEZERAERAE]), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0581.HK).

dl). Since June 2024, Ms. Yu has served as an

Ms. Yu has been a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong
since 2006 and she was qualified as a solicitor of Hong Kong in
December 2005.

Ms. Yu obtained the bachelor’s degree in Law from University of
New South Wales in Australia in January 2002.
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Mr. Li Jianfeng (Z=8II&%4), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board and providing strategic advice
and guidance on financial management and internal control of
the Group.

Mr. Li has over 15 years’ experience in the catering industry. He
has been working in China Hospitality Association (the “CHA”)
(FEIERE1#%E) since July 2006. From July 2006 to February
2013, Mr. Li worked as the project manager in the celebrity chef
working committee of the CHA, and was primarily in charge of
daily work in the office. From February 2013 to February 2014,
Mr. Li served as the deputy director in the training department of
the CHA, primarily responsible for hotel catering training. From
February 2014 to March 2022, Mr. Li worked in the hot pot special
committee of the CHA with his last position as the secretary
general, and was primarily responsible for affairs in the hot pot
sector. Since January 2023, Mr. Li has served as the deputy
secretary-general of the CHA and the director of the Southwest
Office.

Mr. Li obtained the professional qualification certificate of senior
(BN = A (—4R)) granted by the
Hubei Provincial Vocational Skills Appraisal and Guidance Center
in the PRC (it A B R AEZEFHE A1) in July 2010.

Chinese chef (level 1)

Mr. Li obtained the undergraduate diploma in biological
engineering from Chengdu University (BX#AER) (formerly known
as Chengdu College (AX#FE2E7)) in July 2006.

SHIERE 425 R-T_=—F= kX
Eﬁﬁi#ﬁﬂﬁ%&i%A%MKﬁgﬁ
EECeENRLESLE - REIEEBEE
§%$Alﬁﬁhfﬁiﬂﬁ’lﬁ$ﬁl
BB IR R NIE SR RS M2k 3RS -

FREECBERERBBBISFNLER - 8
ZETRNFLAR $%$E¢ BlER S e
([FERE]) T8 - —TTFLAE=F
—=F_f  FEREEFHPEHRBEEREE
ZESHEEBEA TEAFENRAEAETL

fee " T—=F_RAE"FT-NE_F - F
EERTHEBRBHININBEIEE E2AT
BEEFENIE  —T-MFE_AE_F

“oFZR FEREAETEBRBARELTS
8 xEBERNER  TEAFENHRIR
WEER - BT _=F— Al FREE
EhERBRIWE RFOAEMREREEE -

FRAR T -TFLARPBRILEBE
REEETHEHOBEENP TR SR
B (—4) BEBERES -

FRAENR_TZTRFL ABEHREARR (R
REEEN) E M T IREE B2 o

Annual Report 2024
“ZTMFEFR

39



40

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEE EENEREEAERE

Mr. Shi Kangping (HEEEF %), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023 and the
chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board and providing strategic advice and guidance on
financial management and internal control of the Group.

Mr. Shi has over 20 years’ experience in accounting and
finance. From January 2002 to July 2005, Mr. Shi worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (EZEXESTAISESFT) with his
last position as consulting department manager. From July 2007
to September 2011, Mr. Shi worked in Microsoft Corporation (ff
B), a company listed on NASDAQ (Nasdag: MSFT), as a global
finance manager. From September 2011 to December 2016, Mr.
Shi worked in Baidu, Inc. (AES£ERHBERZAE]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (9888.HK) and on NASDAQ (Nasdag:
BIDU), with his last position as the director of its financial
planning and analysis department. From December 2016 to
December 2017, Mr. Shi worked as the chief financial officer at
Ping An Healthcare and Technology Company Limited (‘P22 @ 28
BRI AR AR, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1833.HK). From February 2018 to November 2020, Mr. Shi
was the chief financial officer of Maoyan Entertainment (SRR
#4) a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1896.
HK). From November 2020 to June 2022, Mr. Shi was the chief
financial officer of Waterdrop Inc. (ZKJ#AF]), a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: WDH). From December 2018
to July 2023, Mr. Shi served as the independent non-executive
ERSERERA
Al), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8056.
HK). From June 2022 to August 2024, Mr. Shi served as the chief
financial officer of Terminus Technology Group Co., Ltd. (4FHT
R EE AR A F]). Since September 2024, Mr. Shi has been
serving as the chief financial officer of MDL Commercial Group
Co., Ltd. (1B EEE AR A, responsible for financing and
accounting affairs.

director of Life Concepts Holdings Limited (4

Mr. Shi has been a Chartered Professional Accountant of Canada
since August 2000.

Mr. Shi obtained the bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Tsinghua University (BZEXE) in the PRC in June 1998, and a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Michigan in the United States in April 2007.
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Zheng Min (#8Z 1), aged 44, is our Supervisor and
chairman of the board of supervisors who is responsible for
supervising the performance of duties by the Directors and senior
management of the Company. Ms. Zheng joined our Group in
January 2017 as an operating director responsible for franchisee
management and has served as the Supervisor since December
2019. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zheng worked as a regional
manager in Zhengzhou Guoguo Catering Management Co., Ltd. (Zf
MIEFHEREIEBLR A A]) from August 2004 to March 2012.

Ms. Zheng completed the China Chain Enterprise CEO
Development Program organized by Shanghai Jiao Tong
BRBRIHYE R

Ft) and obtained the certificate of completion in June 2024. In

University, Lifelong Education College (/8%

addition, she is currently pursuing a junior college diploma in
business administration in the Open University of China (BZ 5k
A2 in the PRC

Ms. Xue Hong (B8 Zt), aged 46, joined the Group in January
2015 and currently serves as the deputy financial director of
the Company, responsible for supervising the performance of
duties by the Company’s Directors and senior management,
etc. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xue worked at FUREN Group
Pharmaceutical Limited Company (Bi{- 2% EEEBEEFR QA A])
from January 2008 to May 2014, with her last position held as a
financial manager.

Ms. Xue graduated from Zhengzhou University (Z8MAE2) in the
PRC, with a bachelor’s degree in accounting. Ms. Xue obtained the
qualification of intermediate accountant in the PRC in May 2006.

Ms. Zhang Yifan ([RE L 22 L), aged 36, is our Supervisor who
is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Ms. Zhang
joined our Group in August 2019 as the chairman assistant
and has served as the Supervisor since February 2023. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Zhang concurrently served as an editorial
reporter in Zhengzhou TV Station ()&% &) and a director of a
subsidiary within our Group from October 2011 to July 2019.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in broadcasting and
hosting arts from Zhongyuan University of Technology (R T £
B) in the PRC in July 2010.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEE EENEREEAERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For details of the biographies of Mr. Yang Mingchao (158 B 5T 4),
Mr. Meng Xianjin (T 7ci# % 4), Mr. An Haolei (Z/&Z % %) and Ms.
Luo Na (%22 L), please see “Directors” in this section.

Mr. Wang Hui (ERESE4E), aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer,
our Board secretary and joint company secretary of our Company.
Mr. Wang is responsible for managing the overall financial and
capital market related work.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in September 2020. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Wang worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian
(KB KSR EEFT) from September 2006 to August 2014
with his last position as an audit manager. From August 2014 to
May 2015, Mr. Wang worked in Bayer (China) Limited (FFH (&)
ABRZAFR]). From June 2015 to August 2016, Mr. Wang vvorked in
Covestro Polymers (China) Co., Ltd. (RIBAIZ &Y (T E) AR D
From September 2016 to September 2020, Mr. Wang worked as a
financial director in YANG’S DUMPLING Enterprise Management
Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (MBERIGCEERERE(LS)H
R 2A]).

Mr. Wang has been a Certified Public Accountant of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FREIEM &A1 E)
(CICPA) since December 2009 (currently non-practising).

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics and
applied mathematics in East China University of Science and
Technology (EERIZT KZ) in the PRC in July 2006.
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EE EENEREEAERE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Hui (EIE%4) was appointed as a joint company
secretary of our Company with effect from October 2023. For the
biographical information of Mr. Wang Hui, please see “Senior
Management” in this section.

Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie (3RERE%4) was appointed as
our joint company secretary with effect from June 2024. Mr.
Cheung has extensive experience in the corporate secretarial
field and has been providing corporate secretarial services to
listed companies incorporated in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr.
Cheung is a senior manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (“SWCS”), which is principally engaged in
the provision of company secretarial services, and is mainly
responsible for assisting listed companies in professional
company secretarial work. Prior to joining SWCS, he served as the
company secretary and financial controller of certain companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has more
than 20 years of professional experience in company secretarial,
accounting, and finance matters. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He obtained a Bachelor Degree of Arts (Honors) in
Accounting and Finance at the University of Glamorgan in the
United Kingdom.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are the leading and a rapidly growing home meal products
brand in China. We offer a variety of ready-to-eat, ready-to-heat,
ready-to-cook and prepared ingredients, with a focus on
at-home hotpot and barbecue products. We are devoted to
developing products under our proprietary brand name carrying
the “Guoquan Shihui” logo. Our product portfolio comprises
eight categories including hotpot products, barbecue products,
beverages, solo-dining meals, ready-to-cook meal kits, fresh
produce, western cuisines and snacks. With a carefully curated
product portfolio, strong supply chain capabilities and an
on-demand retail network of franchised stores across the
country, we provide consumers with a wide variety of tasty,
convenient and affordable meal products under the Guoquan
Shihui (S8R [&) brand, serving diverse dining scenarios.

We have also been developing online sales channels including our
Guoquan APP, WeChat mini-program as well as on popular social
commerce platforms such as Douyin. In addition, we partner with
third-party food delivery platforms, such as Meituan and Ele.me
to deliver our products to consumers. Online and offline shopping
options achieve highly extensive consumer reach, forming a
comprehensive on-demand retail store network. Leveraging the
highly efficient management and operation of our supply chain
and our digitalized management system, we are able to ensure
product quality and safety, as well as achieve high operational
efficiency from food production to retail sales.

For further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal
activities, please refer to the sections headed “Chairperson’s
Statement”, “Business Review and Outlook” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” in the Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Company’s performance during the Reporting
Period, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and analysis using the Company’s financial key
performance indicators for the Reporting Period are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in the Annual Report. Main risks and uncertain factors faced
by the Group are set out in section headed “Major Risks and
Uncertainties” in this report. A discussion of future development
of the Company’s business is provided in the sections headed
“Chairperson’s Statement”, “Business Review and Outlook” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in the Annual Report. A
discussion of the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) policies and performance and related key performance
indicators, together with a discussion of the Group’s material
relationships with its stakeholders, is provided in the separate
2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report. Compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Company are provided in the sections headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Policies and
Performance” and “Compliance with Laws and Regulations” of
this report. The Company’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant
impact on the Company and on which the Company’s success
depends are provided in the “Relationship with Employees,
Customers and Suppliers” of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, to the best knowledge
of the Board, the Group has complied in all material respects
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial position,
results of operations, and business prospects may be affected by
a number of risks and uncertainties relating directly or indirectly
to the Group’s business. Some of the major risks that we face
include: (i) Awareness, recognition and popularity of our brand,
whether in our existing markets or new markets, are pivotal to
the success of our business. Any negative impacts on our brand
or reputation, or failure to effectively promote our brand, could
adversely affect our business and results of operations; (ii) Our
business is affected by changes in consumer tastes and dining
preference, which we may not be able to anticipate and identify in
a timely manner or at all. Our efforts in developing, launching and
promoting new products, and diversifying our product and brand
portfolio may not be successful, which may expose us to the risks
of extra costs and expenses; (iii) Any failure by us, our franchisees
or our suppliers to maintain effective quality control systems of
our products could have a material adverse effect on our brand
reputation, business and operations; (iv) Our extensive store
network primarily comprises franchised stores that are operated
by franchisees. Our results of operations are largely subject to
the performance of the franchised stores. We cannot control and
may not be able to effectively monitor the operations of these
franchised stores or maintain our current relationship with the
franchisees; (v) We rely on third-party warehousing and logistics
providers to store and deliver our products to our stores, and
risks associated with warehousing and logistics may adversely
impact our reputation, business and financial performance; (vi)
Our revenue growth in the past was largely attributable to the
rapid expansion of our store network. We cannot assure you that
we will maintain our store network or successfully implement
our expansion plan in the future; (vii) Our development strategies
may not achieve the expected goals in the near term, or at all;
(viii) We operate in a highly competitive and fast-changing market
and may lose our market share if we fail to compete successfully;
(ix) If our suppliers do not deliver quality food ingredients and
raw materials at competitive prices or in a timely manner due
to deteriorated relationships with us or insufficient production
capacity, we may experience supply shortages and increased
procurement costs; (x) We may experience reduction in our
production capacity due to force majeure events, mechanical
failures, or utility shortages, which may have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations; and (xi) We may not be able to maintain an active and
expanding member base.
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Please refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors” of the
Prospectus for other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group shall comply with relevant laws and regulations on
environmental protection, including the Environmental Protection
Law, the Cleaner Production Promotion Law and the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution.

We believe environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters
are essential to our continuous development. We are committed
to integrating ESG criteria into our daily business activities. We
have been, and will continue to be, committed to sustainable
corporate development by focusing on areas such as product
quality and safety, consumer service, compliance employment,
environment protection and public responsibility.

For details of the Group’s ESG policies and performance, please
refer to the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 2,119
employees. In 2024, the total employee benefit expenses arising
from the Group amounted to RMB528.3 million.

The Group recruits employees primarily by way of headhunting,
referrals, on-campus recruiting programs and recruitment
websites. The Group recognizes the importance of training
its employees to enhance their technical skills and overall
capabilities. The Group provides a comprehensive training system
to enhance the technical skills and management skills of its
employees in practical areas.
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The Group is dedicated to providing fair and equal opportunities
to its employees, and has formulated detailed career
development and promotion plans covering all levels of
employees, and conducts regular performance assessments. The
salary and benefit levels of the Group’s employees are determined
with reference to the market and the individual's qualifications
and competence, and performance bonuses and other
incentive systems are established, which are paid based on the
performance of individual employees and the overall performance
of the Group’s business upon evaluation. Employees who have
made outstanding contributions to the Group’s business are
recognized and encouraged with a competitive remuneration

policy.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the proportions of the
revenue from the top five customers of the Group and the
proportions of the purchases from the top five suppliers of the
Group were both less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term goals. The Group maintains a good
relationship with employees, customers and suppliers. During
the Reporting Period, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, customers and/or
suppliers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 219 in the
Annual Report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group’s for the last five financial years is set out on page 220 in
the Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
RMB0.0746 (tax inclusive) per ordinary share, equivalent to an
aggregate amount of RMB200.1 million®™, for the year ended 31
December 2024. However, as the Shares will be repurchased
and held as treasury shares by the Company from time to time,
the actual aggregate amount of the final cash dividend to be
paid will be based on the total number of Shares (excluding the
treasury shares) on the record date for the payment of the final
dividend, which will be announced by the Company separately
then. The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and
paid in Hong Kong dollars to the holders of H Shares. The final
dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be converted from
RMB at the average exchange rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars
as published by the People’s Bank of China for the five business
days prior to the forthcoming annual general meeting and the
final dividend payable to the holders of Domestic Unlisted Shares
of the Company will be paid in RMB. If such profit distribution
plan is approved by Shareholders at the annual general meeting
to be held on 27 June 2025 (Friday), the final dividend will be paid
no later than 29 August 2025 (Friday), to the Shareholders whose
names are listed on the register of members of the Company on 9
July 2025 (Wednesday). All treasury shares held by the Company
are not entitled to the final dividend.

Note:

(1) The accounting basis is founded on the total number of Shares (excluding
the treasury shares) of 2,682,783,200 Shares of the Company as of 28
March 2025.

The Company will not be liable for any claim or dispute over the
withholding mechanism arising from any delay in, or inaccurate
determination of the status of the Shareholders.

The Board is not aware of any Shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently do not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. The Board and the Company may declare dividends after
taking into account our results of operations, financial condition,
cash requirements and availability and other factors as they may
deem relevant at such time. Historical declaration of dividends of
the Company may not reflect our future declaration of dividends.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amounts of dividends
will be subject to our constitutional documents, applicable PRC
laws and approval by our Shareholders. Future dividend payments
will also depend upon the availability of dividends received from
our subsidiaries in China. PRC laws require that dividends should
be paid only out of the profit for the year calculated according to
PRC accounting principles, while the calculation of distributable
profits under PRC GAAP is different from the calculation under
IFRS in certain respects. PRC laws also require our subsidiaries
to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves, which
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Distributions
from our subsidiaries may also be restricted if they incur debt or
losses, or in accordance with any restrictive covenants in bank
credit facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries
may enter into in the future.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

From 2 November 2023 on which the Company’ shares listed (i.e.
the Listing Date) to 31 December 2024, the Group has gradually
used the proceeds from the initial public offering for the intended
purposes set out in the Prospectus. The aggregate net proceeds
from the Global Offering, after deduction of the underwriting
fees and other related expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$448.7 million.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

IR B BER

HPEAYEBEMELEENREER - EF
ERARABEZEBRMANELEE - WK
AR REFRMABESAREAEERA
ERSHEBANEMRARREIRRE - AR F]
HBEEREEIRALRRBEKREEIR » £
SR MR AR E ERREAZHFINE
B - ERaPEDER U REFRRAH
HEFTARIR o RIS IR A IR BURRA 3R
MR BB A RS EMEE N - PEUAR
ME R aRRPEEHERFENER
MBEFIRNBE - FEAR S ERTHA
7 TR B 0 R 5 B B R B 7 S ME R T B9 FH
BHEETHTEAMTR - FEOEZRTRER
I B0 BT /B8 2 B B A% HL R > ) B 88 3 R0 TE
B MASERREREEIR © HE R
fERREIREBLERE - HRBEHMALRK
PIEOB B A BRI AT RERT (L MVERTTIE ERLE
ok EL A t6p a3 B (R ART PR ) 1 7 -~ RIIZR B 3R AP
O A R Y 20 K 7 AT BE S BRI

ERBEMBRBARE
ARREMHBE - E-_=F+—A-RB1LH
HE)E—F-_MF+-_A=+—H &%
ERREBRERMEREACEZLSHAE
RAFBEFREHIE - RIRBEMEHIEL
R (RNBRREERAREMMEEERR) D
B4L8.TEEBT



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has utilized approximately

HK$79.4 million of the proceeds in aggregate for the intended

purposes set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 17.7% of

gross net proceeds from the Global Offering, and the remaining

unutilized proceeds are approximately HK$369.3 million.

RZZBEZNFF+—A=+—0 x£EER
BERERMSREAERADAMERE
FRIT79.4BEBETT (2B EMEHIE
BIFEEW17.7% R T ARBAMBRIENA
369.3BEHBIT ° LMATSFUBARIGHEER

The balance of the proceeds from the listing will continue to  EBREHFE 2 AR LHLOUER - 155
be utilized in accordance with the purposes and proportions 3% :
disclosed in the Prospectus. For details, please see the following
table:
Actual amount
Unutilized utilized Unutilized
Net proceeds  amount as at duringthe amountasat Expected timeline
% of total net fromthe 31 December Reporting 31 December  for fully utilizing
proceeds Global Offering 2023 Period 2024  unutilized amount
i i
LS FHRBE —B-ZH —E-MmE
REFEN AfER +t=A=+-H REWH T-A=+t—-H HADRAEH
BOl FE  HADASE BREASE HABASE WRATHEARH
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(B8#AT) (B8ET) (B&ET) (AE#ER)
Construction, investment or 25% 1121 121 59.6 52.5  Onor before 31
acquisition of plants December 2027
HE  REJMEIR “Z_tF+-R
=+—HgkzAl
Upgrade and expand our existing 15% 67.3 67.3 - 67.3  Onor before 31
plants and production lines December 2027
BARRE RAEERNTHR R RE —Z_t+F+_R
=+—HgkzAl
Open and operate our self-operated 40% 179.5 179.5 - 179.5  On or before 31
stores December 2027
HRkEeEEE “Z_tF+-R
=+—HgzAl
Build product R&D centers as well 10% 44.9 44.9 - 44.9  Onor before 31
as upgrade and purchase related December 2027
equipment
HRERAETLUAR —Z-+F+=R
HEFEEEMRE =+—HgzAl
Working capital and general 10% 44.9 25.1 - 25.1  Onor before 31
corporate uses December 2027
nBELM—RARBE —Z_+F+=R
=+—HgkzAl
Total 448.7 428.9 59.6 369.3
M
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not conducted any B EXFIHETZEEN » AR AR BREHELE

other equity fund raising activities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.
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MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements in the Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual
Report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the Group’s reserves during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2024, the Company had distributable reserves
of RMB254.0 million.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no
debentures issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
repurchased a total of 38,925,600 H Shares on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of approximately HK$78.7
million (before expenses), and all the repurchased shares were
held as treasury shares. As of 31 December 2024, the Company
had not sold any treasury shares and held a total of 38,925,600
treasury shares, which will be used in share schemes, sold for
cash or cancelled to the extent permitted by applicable laws
and regulations, depending on the specific circumstances. The
repurchases were made for the benefit of the Company and to
create value for Shareholders. Details of the repurchases are set
out below:

BE HEREDLWREZE

HEZZ-_MF+A=+—HILEFER -
RARRERFIABRELN78.7TABA T
(KRETFX) HBR4 £38,925,600 88 HAX %
7 - BRINKROEEFIEEFRD - &E =

—HHE+ZA=+—8 ARRHERLE
R EFRG - WE HFFHE38,925,60008 F
HFiRG  ZSEFERNDBEEREEERA
EEER  RIEEEBRANREROEE
HENBREBIRS R T - #TREEH
BANRERBET ARREEEE - BE
BRDBFEBIT -

Purchase consideration per share

BREBERE

Number Aggregate

of Shares Highest Lowest consideration

Month of purchase in 2024 purchased price paid price paid paid

“ENERERD BEROEE B E RS BIEE Fﬁﬁm’d"

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

November +—A 32,978,400 214 1.84 67,507,952

December +—H 5,947,200 1.93 1.81 11,239,432

Total: s 38,925,600 78,747,384
Save disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its B EXFTHETEERI - AR ARETAHEA

subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of Company during the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association or under the laws of the PRC being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Board was not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to any Shareholders by reason of their holding securities of the
Company.
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PENSION SCHEME

Details of the Group’s pension scheme for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements in the Annual Report.

DONATION

The Group’s charitable donations for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to approximately RMB55 thousand.

LIST OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors are as follows:

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao
(Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Meng Xianjin
Mr. An Haolei
Ms. Luo Na

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhengzheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong
Ms. Yu Fang Jing
Mr. Li Jianfeng
Mr. Shi Kangping

Board of Supervisors

Ms. Zheng Min
Ms. Xue Hong (effective from 3 April 2024)
Ms. Zhang Yifan

Notes:

(1) Mr. Zhang Boyuan resigned as the employee representative supervisor with
effect from 3 April 2024.

(2) Mr. Zeng Xinghai resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 14
August 2024.

(3) Mr. Yi Jiayu resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 17 April
2025.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all
the four independent non-executive Directors as of the date of
this report, are independent having regard to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of each of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management are set out on pages 34 to 43 in the Annual
Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, from 1 January
2024 to the date of this report, the changes in information of
Directors and Supervisors required to be disclosed in accordance
with paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.561(2) of the Listing
Rules are as follows:

From 3 April 2024, Mr. Zhang Boyuan ceased to be the employee
representative supervisor of the Board of Supervisors of
the Company. Ms. Xue Hong (B£%8) (“Ms. Xue”), was elected
as an employee representative supervisor at the employee
representative meeting of the Company held on 3 April 2024.
The Company has entered into a service contract with Ms. Xue in
her role as an employee representative supervisor. The term of
office of Ms. Xue has been commencing from 3 April 2024 and will
end on the expiry of the term of the first session of the Board of
Supervisors.

Mr. Zeng Xinghai (“Mr. Zeng”) has resigned as a non-executive
Director of the Company due to work arrangements. With effect
from 14 August 2024, Mr. Zeng ceased to hold any position in the
Company.

Mr. Yi Jiayu (“Mr. Yi”) has resigned as a non-executive Director of
the Company due to work arrangements. With effect from 17 April
2025, Mr. Yi ceased to hold any position in the Company.
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Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”, there
are no changes in any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules in relation to
any Director, Supervisor and chief executive. For details of the
changes of Supervisors and Directors of the Company, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3 April 2024
and 14 August 2024.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of our Directors has entered into service contracts with our
Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts
comprise (a) a term of three years which is equivalent to the term
of the Board; and (b) termination provisions in accordance with
their respective terms. Our Directors may be re-appointed subject
to Shareholders’ approval. The service contracts can be renewed
pursuant to our Articles of Association and applicable rules.

Each of our Supervisors has entered into a contract with
our Company. Each contract contains provisions relating to
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, observation of
our Articles of Association and resolution of disputes by means of
arbitration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and Supervisor has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

None of the Directors and Supervisors waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of Directors’ and Supervisors’ remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report,
for the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at 31 December
2024, there was no transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party to and in which a Director, Supervisor or any entity
connected with any of them has or had at any time during that
period, in any way, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2024 had the Company or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any material contracts with the
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any
material contacts been entered into for the services provided
by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 has any
rights been granted to any Directors to enable them to benefit
from the purchase of Shares or debentures of the Company, and
no arrangement has been entered into by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or holding companies or subsidiaries of the
holding company whereby the Directors have access to the rights
of any other legal entities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the formulation
and review of the remuneration policies and plans for the
Company’s Directors and senior management, and is accountable
to the Board, to whom the Remuneration Committee reports
on its work. The Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics, decides the emoluments of the
Directors.

None of the Directors and Supervisors and the five highest
paid individuals received any emolument from the Group as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements in the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SF0”)) as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register required
to be kept under the section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

EE  ESRSREEAEZHMHR
TEBRSHMAL

FHZESRENTE  FHARNEFLESR
ERABNFHBRREASTR  HEFEA
B REFERETF - - FHZESEH R
ARRMEERE AARBRAELED
LEIER  BEEFZHM -

HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—81LFE &
BMEE EIRFMESNRAMNATAELRSE
BB TS EAINAREB I ARE
E 1% 1) SR B Sk B Bk AR E o

BE_ZT_MF+_A=+—RILFE &
= BEELFMRSNEMLATNEFFS
HNAFHRGA P BEREM IR0 -

EE EERRSTBRAERAAQT
REMABEEZRD - HERDRE
2 EENKRR

HE_Z-_WHE+_H=1—H  AQAE
£ Ex - BaTBRABRERQRSHEEM
HESEE (ERRBBEOIEST1EEFLR
B0 ([ FFREEHRM]) EXVELD) B
D AEERNDREEIZIHEEREE S K
EIEPIEXVEIE7 R8O BAMSGADNGRE
BEERXSHMERAR ([HRAT]) Rk
KE (BIERSRIEES KB GGIAEE X
WEEIIRAEBNERIOAE) JIREFES
REIEGRPIE IS 21E R TR T B 7.2 Bl
Fracss - SRBIZETRAIMREAHNERR
AIRB BRI 2 B ORBIAT -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

Interests in the Company

£
Il
=
P
B

Approximate Approximate

percentage of  percentage of
shareholding  shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Number of class of issued share
Name Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%) capital (%))
EEBER HEBRTRE
BHEH R4 AR AE Y BN
®E R4 85 BEME ROEBE® HABIH(%)" BHOEILL (%)
Mr. Yang Mingchao®®“® Domestic Unlisted Shares  Interest held jointly with 881,420,916 93.97 32.08
other persons, interest in
controlled corporations
15 IR £ 06 BAR kG B4 A\ SRR H R
REEER SR
H Shares Interest in controlled 456,108,299 25.21 16.60
corporations and interest
held in treasury shares
REPEEBER R
H HEFRMHENER
Mr. Meng Xianjin®® Domestic Unlisted Shares  Interest held jointly with 881,420,916 93.97 32.08

other persons, interest in
controlled corporations

mIEREOS BRAR LMD H AR FRFEO#R -
REEEENER
Notes: BT

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,747,360,400 Shares in
issue comprising 937,948,348 Domestic Unlisted Shares and 1,809,412,052
H Shares (including the treasury shares) as of 31 December 2024.

All interests are long positions.

Guoquan Industry is owned to 55.61%, 37.07% and 7.32% by Mr. Yang
Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua, respectively. Mr. Yang
Mingchao and Mr. Meng Xianjin are therefore deemed to be interested in
the 881,420,916 Domestic Unlisted Shares held through Guoquan Industry.

Guoxiaoquan EM is owned as to 80% by Mr. Yang Mingchao as its general
partner. Guoxiaoquan Tech is owned as to 44.09% by Mr. Yang Mingchao
as its general partner. Therefore, Mr. Yang Mingchao is deemed to be
interested in 331,595,457 H Shares and 85,587,242 H Shares converted
from Domestic Unlisted Shares held through Guoxiaoquan EM and
Guoxiaoquan Tech, respectively.

ZEREDNEE T _ONF+A=1+—
HEBTHRMEER 2,747,360,400 B % {5
(B @35937,948,348RBAAR F TR &
1,809,412,052 IR HAR (BIFEFRG)) REGEE
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H o
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LA A55.61% ~ 37.07% ) 7.32%KE < 15
BB R G ER LR AR BRREE
¥FEHR881,420,916 BRRAR ETRDFH#EE
T o
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(5) On 16 July 2019, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua
entered into a concert party agreement which was supplemented on 1
March 2023, pursuant to which Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua have
agreed and confirmed that during the period starting from 16 July 2019
to the date when they cease to be our direct or indirect Shareholder, they
have acted and will continue to act in concert in respect of the management
and operations of our Company by aligning their votes in accordance with
Mr. Yang’'s decisions when exercising their rights as Shareholders of the
Company prior to December 2021 and as shareholders of Guoquan Industry
since December 2021 when their direct interests in the Company were
reflected at the level of Guoquan Industry. Therefore, under the SFO, Mr.
Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua are deemed to be jointly interested in the
Shares held by Mr. Yang in Guoquan Industry.

(6) According to the Outline of Part XV of the SFO - Disclosure of Interests,
any shareholder who controls one-third or more of the voting rights at
general meetings of the relevant listed corporation will also be deemed
to be interested in such treasury shares and the treasury shares must be
aggregated with his other interests in the shares of the listed corporation
in determining his reporting obligations under Part XV. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased a total of 38,925,600
H Shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HK$79 million (before expenses), and all the repurchased shares were held
as treasury shares. As of 31 December 2024, the Company had not sold any
treasury shares and held a total of 38,925,600 treasury shares. Mr. Yang
Mingchao is a shareholder who controls more than one-third of the voting
rights at the Company’s general meeting. According to the above outline,
Mr. Yang Mingchao will also be deemed to be interested in such treasury
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had
or deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, so far as was known to, or could be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by, the Directors, the
interests or short positions of the following persons/entities in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept

FERRRAQXFARGRABERD Z
BERAR

BE_T-_ME+_A=1+—RH HEFM
M EIEHABRERRARE  UTALS
BN RO BB P HRARIEREZ M
EIRGIFEXVERSE 2 K37 B Z RSB RA R T
BRAARNAIREESF L ERGIF 336 1%
AFE E’Ui‘aﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁaﬂﬁ?ﬁ’ﬁ%\ SoRBE (NEFT

\I]]]

\\\

by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO (the interests  HWEHRMER N/ SUAR (10F) RH A
and/or short positions in the Shares, if any, as disclosed in this QAFAIZEZE %%&?Fﬁﬁﬂ(}\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ EE
paragraph are supplemental to those disclosed in relation to the &%) :
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company):
Approximate Approximate
percentage of  percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Number of class of issued share
Name of substantial Shareholder ~ Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held®? shares (%)™ capital (%)
LRl HERTRA
BEN R4 REN BEREN
TERRER RPER EEtE ROBE® BHABIL%)O BOBIL%)
Mr. Li Xinhua® Domestic Unlisted Interest held jointly with 881,420,916 93.97 32.08
Shares other persons, interest in
controlled corporations
FRERLEY BRK EHR 4t A RFA AR -
REEEENER
Guoguan Industry Domestic Unlisted Beneficial owner 881,420,916 93.97 32.08
Shares
REE% BRK EHR ERBEA
Guoxiaoquan EM H Shares Beneficial owner 331,595,457 18.33 12.07
WBRE H& EafEAA
Famous Wealthy" H Shares Beneficial owner 140,439,266 7.76 5.11
Famous Wealthy® Hi& ExlEAA
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,439,266 7.76 5.1
Fund VL.P.¥
IDG China Venture Capital HE REEZER R
FundVL.P. "
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,439,266 7.76 5.1
Fund V Associates L.P.“
IDG China Venture Capital HE REZEZER R
Fund V Associates L.P. ¥
IDG China Venture Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,439,266 7.76 5.1
Fund GP V Associates Ltd.")
IDG China Venture Capital HR REZEEER R
Fund GP V Associates Ltd. “)
Ho Chi Sing® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,439,266 7.76 5.1
Ho Chi Sing® HiR RREZENER
Zhou Quan® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,439,266 7.76 5.1
Zhou Quan® HiR RREZENER
Chongging Langyao® H Shares Beneficial owner 138,776,574 7.67 5.05
BEEHRO HAR EaEaA
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Approximate

Approximate

percentage of  percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Number of class of issued share
Name of substantial Shareholder ~ Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%)™ capital (%)
1 1EE &R HERTRA
HEN R1PIREMN BREREN
TERRER R A3 R BEME ROMBEY BHEIL(%)"Y BOEIL(%)
CMB International Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 139,753,143 7.72 5.09
Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.®
REEBEAEE (R ERDAD  HE REEZENER
CMB Financial Holdings H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 139,753,143 7.72 5.09
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.®!
BREFER ) ERDF HAR REEEEN S
CMB International Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 139,753,143 7.72 5.09
Corporation Limited ©
BREB2BERAF Hfx REEZENER
CMB International Capital Holdings ~ H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 139,753,143 7.72 5.09
Corporation Limited®
BRERSRERERARC HAR REEEEN S
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.®) H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 139,753,143 7.72 5.09
BARTROERDF HAR REEZENES
Chengdu Quanyi® H Shares Beneficial owner 160,983,037 8.90 5.86
K2R HAR EnmAA
Sanquan Food Co., Ltd.® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 160,983,037 8.90 5.86
=2 RmROHARRFC HE% REEZENES
Generation One"” Beneficial owner Beneficial owner 138,747,342 7.67 5.05
Generation One” HEx BRBEEA
Vision Knight Capital (China) H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 138,747,342 7.67 5.05
Fund II, L.P.?
Vision Knight Capital (China) Hi& REEZENER
Fund II, LP.?
Vision Knight Capital (China) H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 138,747,342 7.67 5.05
GPII, L.P."
Vision Knight Capital (China) Hi& REEZENER
GPII, L.P."
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd."” H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 138,747,342 7.67 5.05
VKC (China) GP Il Ltd." Hi& REEEENER
VKC Cayman Il Ltd.” H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 138,747,342 7.67 5.05
VKC Cayman Il Ltd. ? H& REEEENER
Wei Zhe® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 186,770,880 10.32 6.80
EEoe HAR REEEEN S
Generation Pi HK® H Shares Beneficial owner 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
Generation Pi HK® HEx BRBEEA
Generation Pi Investment Ltd.? H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
Generation Pi Investment Ltd. © HEL REEEE R R
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.®) H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.® Hi& RERZENER
GenBridge Capital Fund I GP, Ltd.””  H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.78
GenBridge Capital Fund I GP, Ltd.®  HJ& REBZENER
Joyous Beats Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 373
Joyous Beats Limited® HAR REEEER R
JD.com Investment Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
JD.com Investment Limited® HEL REEEE R R
JD.com, Inc.®¥ H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
JD.com, Inc.® HEx REEEE R R
Max Smart Limited H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
Max Smart Limited HEx REEEE R R
Richard Qiangdong Liu H Shares Beneficiary of a trust (other than 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
discretionary interest)
Richard Qiangdong Liu Hi& ERXEA (BERERRIN)
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.” H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd.©  Hi& REEZENER
Li Mao Chun® H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
Li Mao Chun® HE% REEZERERS
Cheuk Hiu Kwong® H Shares Spouse interests 102,426,380 5.66 3.73
Cheuk Hiu Kwong® HR ERR
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Approximate Approximate

percentage of  percentage of
shareholding shareholding
in the relevant in the total
Number of class of issued share
Name of substantial Shareholder ~ Class of Shares Nature of interest Shares held? shares (%)™ capital (%)
BB SR HERITRA
HEMN R1PREN BREREN
TERRER AR BHEME ROMBEY BHEIL(%)"Y HOEIL(%)
Buyue Ertong 1% Domestic Unlisted Beneficial owner 56,527,432 6.03 2.06
Shares
BN alinERe BRA EWRG EnBAA
H Shares Beneficial owner 56,527,432 3.12 2.06
H& EnBAA
Shanghai Buhuo Private Domestic Unlisted Interest in controlled corporations 56,527,432 6.03 2.06
Equity Investment Fund Shares
Management Co., Ltd.
PETELEERERERRA BRA EWRG NEEEENES
H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 56,527,432 3.12 2.06
Hi NEEEEN S
Li Zhujitoan Domestic Unlisted Interest in controlled corporations 56,527,432 6.03 2.06
Shares
Zhgeon BRA EWRG REEZENER
H Shares Interest in controlled corporations 140,870,534 7.79 5.13
Hi& REEZENER
Notes: Bt 5E

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,747,360,400 Shares in
issue comprising 937,948,348 Domestic Unlisted Shares and 1,809,412,052
H Shares (including the treasury shares) as at 31 December 2024.

All interests are long positions.

Guoquan Industry has been owned to 55.61%, 37.07% and 7.32% by Mr.
Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua, respectively since its
establishment.

On 16 July 2019, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua
entered into a concert party agreement which was supplemented on 1
March 2023, pursuant to which Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua have
agreed and confirmed that during the period starting from 16 July 2019 to
the date when they cease to be our direct or indirect Shareholder, they have
acted and will continue to act in concert in respect of the management and
operations of our Company by aligning their votes in accordance with Mr.
Yang Mingchao’s decisions when exercising their rights as Shareholders
of the Company prior to December 2021 and as shareholders of Guoquan
Industry since December 2021 when their direct interests in the Company
were reflected at the level of Guoquan Industry. Therefore, under the SFO,
Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua are deemed to be jointly interested in
the Shares held by Mr. Yang Mingchao in Guoquan Industry.

ZEHEDNBRE-_ET-_NE+-_A=+—
AEZITHRMAEE 2,747,360,400 8% %
(B B84E937,948,348BEBAAR ETBRMH K
1,809,412,052 8 HAR (RIEETFIRD ) ) BEMS
=

ERERIETE -

MEEXEER IS RIHGHBEE - RE
R EMERELEHEAS5.61% * 37.07% &
7.32% % ©

RZZB-NAFLA+RA  GRBEE  ZRE
FEMFREREFT L - BITHALHE - TR
—RoZHF-A-HER B RAEREMN
FRELLHRALER > B-_F-NEFLATRK
FERETEREMOERKFERRZAH
M BE-EASEERARREEIEZ —XK
7 FRAE-ZT-—F+ - AZATERS
TERARBBR BN - RS ABERLNR
E—BRE  UREBZTZ—F+ZABITER
SERRBEEXRRNENE (ERBEEXER
R ERARBTNE Z D)  RRGHBE
EHPRE —REER - At - REEFRAERK
Bl - T IE AP RE R AP RN B
ERMBEEEFENRNTHRAEGER -
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Famous Wealthy is owned as to 94.61% by IDG China Venture Capital
Fund V L.P., which in turn is controlled by IDG China Venture Capital Fund
V Associates L.P. IDG China Venture Capital Fund V Associates L.P. is
controlled by IDG China Venture Capital Fund GP V Associates Ltd. which
in turn owned as to 50% by Ho Chi Sing and Zhou Quan respectively.
Therefore, under the SFO, each of IDG China Venture Capital Fund V L.P.,
IDG China Venture Capital Fund V Associates L.P., IDG China Venture Capital
Fund GP V Associates Ltd., Ho Chi Sing and Zhou Quan is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Famous Wealthy.

CMB International Capital Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (HBIREIRE
ARERR(FYNBMRAF) controls 0.79% of Chongging Langyao and 0.05% of
China Merchants Bank Growth No. 3 Investment (Shenzhen) Partnership
(Limited Partnership (RIEKRE2FKRE(FINEREE(ERER)) (‘CMB
Growth”) which held 976,569 H Shares. CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (FRIR&mIZAR ORI B R A F) controls 99.95% of CMB Growth and
100% of CMB International Capital Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. CMB
Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CMB International Capital Corporation Limited which in turn owned as to
16.80% by CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited and 83.20% by CMB International
Capital Holdings Corporation Limited. CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited and
CMB International Capital Holdings Corporation Limited are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Therefore, under the SFO, each of CMB International Capital Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., CMB Financial Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., CMB
International Capital Corporation Limited, CMB International Capital
Holdings Corporation Limited and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chongging Langyao and by
CMB Growth.

Chengdu Quanyi is owned as to 98% by Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. (=2 &M
&5 B BRAR]), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Therefore,
under the SFO, Sanquan Food Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Chengdu Quanyi.

Generation One is owned as to 95.45% by Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund
II, L.P. which in turn controlled by Vision Knight Capital (China) GP II, L.P.
as general partner. The general partner of Vision Knight Capital (China) GP
II, L.P. is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of VKC
Cayman Il Ltd. VKC Cayman Il Ltd. is wholly owned by Wei Zhe. Therefore,
under the SFO, each of Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund Il, L.P., Vision
Knight Capital (China) GP II, L.P., VKC (China) GP Il Ltd., VKC Cayman II Ltd.
and Wei Zhe is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Generation
One.

Wei Zhe is deemed to be interested in the 48,023,538 H Shares held by
Suzhou Yizhong Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&M &
HEIXEEAEBLEBRAR)) through Suzhou Weitelixin Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (BRI 4EF A ER EERBRAR).

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

(5)

Famous WealthyB1DG China Venture Capital
Fund V L.P.#H94.61% % - M&EHIDG
China Venture Capital Fund V Associates
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Associates L.P.#HIDG China Venture Capital
Fund GP V Associates Ltd.#%l - M&& 5 5Bl
FiHo Chi Sing&Zhou Quan A 50% %
It - ARIEFESHREE KA - IDG China Venture
Capital Fund V L.P. > IDG China Venture
Capital Fund V Associates L.P.* IDG China
Venture Capital Fund GP V Associates Ltd. *
Ho Chi Sing&Zhou Quan3#1% A Famous
Wealthy#: 8 8D B = o
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Generation One i Vision Knight Capital (China)
Fund I, L.P.BEE95.45% Mz - MiEEMR
Vision Knight Capital (China) GP II, L.P. ({E &%
WAFEA)EH|  Vision Knight Capital (China)
GP II, L.P.BVE@EZ ARVKC (China) GP I
Ltd. ' M{&&BVKC Cayman Il Ltd. 22 EWE
A7) MVKC Cayman Il Ltd. X iEE2E %
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Generation OnefF B MM PG L ©
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Generation Pi HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Generation Pi Investment
Ltd. which in turn owned as to 90.51% by GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P. is controlled by GenBridge Capital Fund | GP,
Ltd. which in turn owned as to 50% by Joyous Beats Limited and 50% by
GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd. Joyous Beats Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of JD.com Investment Limited which is wholly owned by JD.com,
Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange and NASDAQ. Mr. Richard
Qiangdong Liu holds voting rights in JD.com, Inc. mainly through Max Smart
Limited and Fortune Rising Holdings Limited, with 71.7% of voting rights
in JD. com, Inc. as of 31 December 2024. Max Smart Limited is a company
incorporated in British Virgin Island beneficially owned by Mr. Richard
Qiangdong Liu, a sole director of Max Smart Limited through a trust. Mr.
Richard Qiangdong Liu is also a sole shareholder and a sole director of
Fortune Rising Holdings Limited. GenBridge Capital Partners, Ltd. is wholly
owned by Li Mao Chun. Cheunk Hiu Kwong is the spouse of Li Mao Chun.

Therefore, under the SFO, each of Generation Pi Investment Ltd., GenBridge
Capital Fund I, L.P., GenBridge Capital Fund | GP, Ltd., Joyous Beats
Limited, JD.com Investment Limited, JD.com, Inc., Max Smart Limited
and Fortune Rising Holdings Limited, Richard Qiangdong Liu, GenBridge
Capital Partners, Ltd., Li Mao Chun and Cheuk Hiu Kwong is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Generation Pi HK.

Buyue Ertong is wholly owned by Shanghai Buhuo Private Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (/BT RILEESEEBR AT which in turn is
held as to 74.25% by Li Zhujie. Therefore, under the SFO, each of Shanghai
Buhuo Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Li Zhujie
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Buyue Ertong.

Buhuovc Platinum Limited held 54,784,911 H Shares and is wholly owned
by Buhuovc Limited Partnership. The general partner of Buhuovc Limited
Partnership is Buhuovc Inc. which ultimately controlled by Li Zhujie through
his directorship held in Buhuovc Inc.

Shanghai Buhuo Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (£
BARLEESEEERAR) is a general partner of Wuhan Renzhe Buyou
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (FUE({= & T2 RRAER
BABLEBERAE)), Huzhou Bugi Zhigi Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (#1882 s3Ik IER E AR E(BRER)) and Buyue
Ertong which held 3,993,027 H Shares, 25,565,164 H Shares and 56,527,432
H Shares respectively. Li Zhujie owns 74.25% interests in Shanghai Buhuo
Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.

Therefore, under the SFO, Li Zhujie is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Buhuovc Platinum Limited, Wuhan Renzhe Buyou Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership), Huzhou Bugi Zhigi Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Buyue Ertong.

(10)

Generation Pi HK&Generation Pi Investment
Ltd. B2 EMEBAGE - M&EHGenBridge
Capital Fund I, L.P.#A90.51% /I -
GenBridge Capital Fund I, L.P.d3GenBridge
Capital Fund | GP, Ltd.#2#l - M &5 5l
Joyous Beats Limited 2 GenBridge Capital
Partners, Ltd. B 50% /s © Joyous Beats
Limited&JD.com Investment Limited )& &
MEAGE - M#EZEHRID.com, Inc. (—RKNDEE
RFRMEFER ETORR) 2EHEHR  Mr.
Richard Qiangdong LiuEZi@iEMax Smart
Limited &2 Fortune Rising Holdings Limited ¥
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Ltd. * Li Mao Chun & Cheuk Hiu Kwong## %
P Generation Pi HKIS B B R 1D P A ©

THMAR TR EESERBRAREE
HE - mMEERFENERBT74.25% 00 - B
It REBFHFRAEKRA - EETRLBEERE
BHERRARRFUEGWE AR TOMRBED
Rt AP i o

TRAEBERAREAEL4L,784,911IRHRIL
fiBuhuovc Limited Partnership2&HH °
Buhuovc Limited PartnershipfEi&E4 E A
ABuhuove Inc. r MEEBRFNEEBER
Buhuovce Inc B 2 E SR MR ALIEH] -

FETRALEESEBBRARARECESE
RERESHE (BRER)  MINTIE 28R
BREAELE (BREAE) RTHNMRE/ L@
ABA - ME=F5RIFAE3,993,027 ’RHE -
25,565,164 8% Hi% 5% 56,527,432 HAZ »
REBTRAEESLEEERACHEAET4.25%
KoM o

Fik - RBF S RAEGES - FUERRART
RATHRAR  RECETEREREARD

X (BERAR) N TRzSREREABEE
(BERAR) RTHOMRARENRNFOEERE
%o

Annual Report 2024
“ZTMFEFR

65



66

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors
were not aware that any persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had any interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
require to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
kept by the Company.

SHARE SCHEME

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not adopt any
employee share schemes, share option schemes or restricted
share unit schemes.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

As of 31 December 2024, the Company did not enter into any
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the issuance
of shares by the Company or require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the issuance of shares
by the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered
into the following continuing connected transactions, and the
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the agreed
terms, certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Services Procurement Framework Agreement

Parties: Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehousing &
Distribution Technology Co., Ltd. (AEER 2 # AR EHE
fR 2 7)) (“Huading Cold Chain”) (on behalf of Huading Cold
Chain and its associates) and the Company (on behalf of
the Group)

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

BREXPIEEESIN  BE—F_NF+ A
=+—H EFUTHABREEMEMAL
ER (ARREENESTRAERIN) B
AR RO P EBREES KRB EIE
XVEDSR 2 B 37 BRI SRR AN R A FR RO 1
@ EOR B HRIFE N A B ERPIF 336 15%7A
FRARRBIFENESLMOERIOXE

B {35t &

BE-_Z-_NWF+-_A=+—8  ARQRAL
ERMNTRERMDETE - BIREREIT
RHIR DB ITETE ©

=

PR A 4 20 1 o

HE2-_Z-WF+-_A=+—8 ' ARQF
EET A S AT R E BN A T BTG
R A BN - B RAR AR M
YR A BB DR EITRDME

REEZE-_NF+_A=+—HILFE "
REBMITTUTHERERS - BRHE
RIBERTET ETHBORERE LT
HAIBLAENETE -

1. BRBRBERHE
AT AEHERSHEAREMKAR
RE([ERLE]) (RRESLHER
HBBA) RARA] (RRAKE)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEHE

Principal terms

On 22 July 2024, the Company (on behalf of the Group)
entered into the Services Procurement Framework
Agreement (the “Services Procurement Framework
Agreement”) with Huading Cold Chain (on behalf of
Huading Cold Chain and its associates), pursuant to which
the Group agreed to procure cold chain warehousing
and logistics services from Huading Cold Chain and its
associates for a term commencing from 22 July 2024
to 31 December 2026, subject to renewal by mutual
consent. For details of the signing of the agreement and
the transactions, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 July 2024.

In accordance with the Services Procurement Framework
Agreement, the Group will enter into specific agreements
or place orders with Huading Cold Chain and its associates
to set out the specific terms and conditions for the
provision of the cold chain warehousing and logistics
services. The Group will make payments in accordance
with the principles set out in the Services Procurement
Framework Agreement at the time and in the manner and
subject to the conditions agreed in the specific agreement
or order.

The pricing of cold chain warehousing and logistics
services under the Services Procurement Framework
Agreement shall be determined based on normal
commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation in the
ordinary course of business and in accordance with the
following principles:

(i) The pricing of cold chain warehousing and logistics
services shall be determined with reference to
factors including, but not limited to, fulfillment
solutions, optimal route design, shipping mode,
freight costs, delivery areas, warehouse property
type, storage duration, cargo specifications,
volume size, service complexity, and market
competitiveness;

(ii) The price and terms shall be no less favorable to the
Group than the price and terms at which services
would be provided by independent third-party
service providers for substantially the same or
similar transactions during the same period, in any
event.
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Reasons and benefits for transaction

Huading Cold Chain is a stable and reliable supplier of the
Group, possessing specialized expertise and experience in
the cold chain logistics for the consumer retail industry.
The quality and efficiency of the cold chain warehousing
and logistics services provided by Huading Cold Chain
and its associates can meet our logistics requirements,
particularly through their centralized and integrated
cold chain logistics services operations that allow for the
efficient and timely provision of nationwide integrated
digital cold chain warehousing and logistics services at a
relatively low cost. Compared to the third-party providers
of integrated cold chain warehousing and logistics
services, Huading Cold Chain has a superior understanding
of our delivery requirements and is more familiar with our
nationwide store network. Therefore, it can better integrate
with our enterprise resource planning system, which is
critical to our operations. The Company believes that
the entering into the Services Procurement Framework
Agreement with Huading Cold Chain is beneficial to the
Group and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Information on Huading Cold Chain

On 22 July 2024, Huading Cold Chain became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoquan Industry, a
Controlling Shareholder of the Company, since which
Huading Cold Chain became the connected person of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the entering into the Services Procurement
Framework Agreement between the Company and Huading
Cold Chain and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Transaction amount

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual
transactions between the Group and Huading Cold Chain
amounted to RMB127.0 million.
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Annual caps

The proposed annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Services Procurement Framework
Agreement for the three years ended 31 2024 December
2025 and 2026 are RMB140,000,000, RMB225,000,000 and
RMB225,000,000 respectively.

The Company confirms that the signing and execution
of the specific agreements under the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2024 were in compliance with the pricing principles for
such continuing connected transactions.

Procurement of beef and lamb products

Parties: Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shengxian”) and the Group

Principal terms

On 16 October 2023, the Group entered into a procurement
framework agreement with Shanghai Shengxian (the
“Procurement Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
our Group agreed to procure beef and lamb products, such
as whole sirloin steak, thinly sliced snowflake beef and
thick sliced marbled beef, from Shanghai Shengxian for
a term commencing on the Listing Date and ending on 31
December 2025, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

Subject to the terms of the Procurement Framework
Agreement, the Group will enter into specific agreements
or place purchase orders with Shanghai Shengxian to
set out specific terms and conditions. The consideration
payable by the Group under the Procurement Framework
Agreement will be paid at the time and according to the
method to be agreed in specific agreements or purchase
orders.

The terms are to be no less favorable to our Group than
those for transactions between our Group and Independent
Third Parties under the same conditions.
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Reasons and benefits for the transaction

Shanghai Shengxian is a stable and reliable supplier of
our Group. We established business relationship with
Shanghai Shengxian since November 2020. In addition, the
Directors consider that the quality and quantity of beef and
lamb products offered by Shanghai Shengxian can satisfy
our commercial needs, especially the quality standards
and the research and development of new products.

Information on Shanghai Shengxian

Shanghai Shengxian is held by Mr. Yang Ran, the
supervisor of Luyi Heyi, a significant subsidiary of our
Company, which was acquired by the Group in August
2021. According to the Listing Rules, Shanghai Shengxian
is a connected party of our Company at the subsidiary level
from August 2021 to May 2024. Shanghai Shengxian has
ceased to be a connected party of the Group following the
resignation of Mr. Yang Ran as a supervisor from Luyi Heyi
in May 2024, and the transactions between the Group and
Shanghai Shengxian under the Procurement Framework
Agreement will cease to constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Transaction amount

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual
transactions between the Group and Shanghai Shengxian
amounted to RMB24.3 million.

Annual caps

The proposed annual caps of the transactions
contemplated under the Procurement Framework
Agreement for the three years ended 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 are RMB110 million, RMB110 million and
RMB110 million, respectively, except from May 2024, the
transactions between the Group and Shanghai Shengxian
under the Procurement Framework Agreement will cease
to constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules, therefore no need to
be subject to the annual caps under the Procurement
Framework Agreement.
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Waiver Application for Non-Exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

For the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the highest
applicable percentage ratios relating to the transactions
contemplated under the Procurement Framework Agreement are
more than 1% but less than 5% on an annual basis. Accordingly,
the transactions are subject to the announcement, reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are exempt from the circular (including the opinion of
the independent financial adviser) and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
are expected to continue on a recurring and continuing basis,
the Directors consider that compliance with the announcement
requirements abovementioned would be impractical and unduly
burdensome, and would lead to unnecessary administrative costs
to us.

Accordingly, we have applied to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has granted us a waiver
from the announcement requirement in respect of the aforesaid
non-exempt continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.105 of the Listing Rules.

As Shanghai Shengxian was a connected party of the Group at the
subsidiary level from August 2021 to May 2024, the transactions
conducted under the Procurement Framework Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions as of May 2024.
The Company confirms that the signing and execution of the
specific agreements under the above continuing connected
transactions as of May 2024 were in compliance with the pricing
principles for such continuing connected transactions.
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ANNUAL REVIEW CONDUCTED BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 and 14A.71(6)(a) of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above all
non-exempt continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that these transactions had been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

ii. on normal commercial terms or better to the Company;
and

iii. in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

CONFIRMATION FROM THE AUDITOR

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 and 14A.71(6)(b) of the Listing Rules,
the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of above all the continuing
connected translations and the auditor has reported the factual
findings on these procedures to the Audit Committee.

The auditor of the Company had informed the Board and
confirmed that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions:

were approved by the Board;

il were entered into in accordance with terms of relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

iii. did not exceed the annual cap for 2024 disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”.
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Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2024, none of the other related party transactions or continuing
related party transactions set out in note 37 to the financial
statements constituted a disclosable connected transaction or
a disclosable continuing connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules from time to
time in respect of the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates had interests in a business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or is likely to
compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance to
protect the Directors of the Company against any potential losses
arising from his/her actual or alleged misconduct. During the year
and up to the date of this report, permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is
being in force for the benefit of the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company as of the Annual Report and within the knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to
the date of the Annual Report.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 16 December 2024, in accordance with the notice received by
the Company from Guoquan Industry and Buyue Ertong regarding
the proposed conversion of the Domestic Unlisted Shares held by
them into H Shares, the proposal on the converting 937,948,348
Domestic Unlisted Shares held by the aforementioned
Shareholders into H Shares was considered and approved by
the Board. On 25 April 2025, the Company received a filing
notice issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission,
stating the Company has completed the filing with the China
Securities Regulatory Commission regarding the conversion of
the aforementioned 937,948,348 Domestic Unlisted Shares into
H Shares, which is valid within 12 months since 25 April 2025.
At the same time, the Company has also received a letter of
commitment issued by Guoquan Industry. According to the letter
of commitment, based on its firm confidence in the long-term
value and long-term development prospects of the Company,
Guoquan Industry voluntarily undertakes that within six months
from the date of completion of this Full Circulation, it will not sell,
in any manner, the H Shares of the Company converted through
this Full Circulation. On 29 April 2025, the Stock Exchange
granted listing approval for such H Shares. The Company will
complete the relevant conversion and trading procedures of such
H Shares and will make further announcement(s) as and when
appropriate. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 16 December 2024, 25 April 2025 and 29 April
2025.

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, there was no significant
subsequent event which may affect the Group occurred after the
Reporting Period and up to the date of the Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including a review of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.
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AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Ernst & Young has
served as the auditor of the Company. The financial statements
contained in the Annual Report have been audited by Ernst &
Young. The auditor of the Company will retire and being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment as auditor at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. There has been no
change in the auditor of the Company since the Listing Date and
up to the date of the Annual Report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 27 June 2025 (Friday), the notice and circular of which will
be published and despatched to the Shareholders who requested
the printed copy in due course.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 24 June 2025 (Tuesday) to
27 June 2025 (Friday), both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s headquarters
and principal place of business in China at Room 802, No. 3 Lane
187, Xinghong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC (for holders
of Domestic Unlisted Shares), or the Company’s H share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (for holders of H Shares) not later than 4:30
p.m.on 23 June 2025 (Monday), for registration.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 4 July 2025 (Friday) to 9 July 2025
(Wednesday), both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s headquarters and principal place of business in China
at Room 802, No. 3 Lane 187, Xinghong Road, Minhang District,
Shanghai, PRC (for holders of Domestic Unlisted Shares) or the
Company’s H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (for holders
of H shares) not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 July 2025 (Thursday),
for registration.

By order of the Board

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Yang Mingchao
Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
28 March 2025
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EEE®E

During the Reporting Period, in compliance with the relevant
requirements set out in the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Articles of Association and Rules of
Procedures for the Board of Supervisors of Guoquan Food
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,

diligence and dedication, all members of the Board of Supervisors

and abiding by attitude with honesty,

of the Company performed the duties and obligations of

Supervisors, independently perform its supervisory and
monitoring duties to protect the interests of the Shareholders,

which promoted the normal operation of the Company.

WORKS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held two meetings and the
details are as follows:

The “Proposal on the Group’s Annual Report for the Year Ended
31 December 2023”7 “Proposal on the Announcement of the
Group’s Annual Results for the Year Ended 31 December 2023
and “Report of the Board of Supervisors of the Group for the Year
Ended 31 December 2023” were considered and approved at the
fourth meeting of the first session of the Board of Supervisors
held on 28 March 2024.

The “Proposal on the Announcement of Interim Results of the
Group for the Six Months Ended 30 June 2024 and Interim Report”
was considered and approved at the fifth meeting of the first
session of the Board of Supervisors held on 28 August 2024.

COMMENTS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
CERTAIN MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2024

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board
of Supervisors adhered to the principles of fidelity and
accountability to all Shareholders and duly performed their
duties and works according to the relevant requirements set
out in the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Articles of Association and Rules of Procedures for the Board of
Supervisors of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The Board of
Supervisors supervised the regulatory compliance and operation,
financial condition, use of proceeds and internal control, etc. of
the Company through attending shareholders’ general meetings,
board meetings and onsite inspections. The Board of Supervisors
has arrived at the following opinions:
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ESERE

The Board of the Company has achieved standardized operations,
reasonable decisions and legal procedures, and has earnestly
implemented the resolutions passed at the general meeting;
no action in violation of laws and regulations or the Articles of
Association, or to the prejudice of the interests of the Company
and Shareholders taken by the Directors and senior management
of the Company in performance of their duties was found. The use
of proceeds is in compliance with the relevant laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association, and is not detrimental to the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The financial
structure of the Company was healthy and standardized, and a
relatively complete internal control system has been established,
which complies with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association without violation of any laws and regulations.

In the coming year, the Board of Supervisors will continue
to arduously perform its supervisory and monitoring duties
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders honestly and
diligently, and promote the sound and sustainable development
of the Company.

By order of the Board of Supervisors

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Zheng Min
Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
28 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the Code provisions of CG Code as
set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance.

Except for the deviation from Code provision C.5.3 on the
requirement to give at least 14 days’ notice for convening the
fourth regular Board meeting for 2024 and the deviation from
Code provision C.2.1 on the requirement to clearly separate the
roles of chairperson and chief executive officer, the Company
has complied with all applicable Code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024. The reasons
for the deviation are further explained in the sub-sections
“Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer” and “Board Meetings
and General Meetings - Notice of the Fourth Regular Board
Meeting for 2024” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The culture of being “modest, pragmatic, down-to-earth”
and “other-oriented” has been guiding our development and
commitment to providing tasty, convenient and value-for-money
product to people all over the country. Our business model
revolves around serving others in the best possible way we can.
We are devoted to satisfying the diverse needs of consumers and
providing convenient and pleasant consumption experiences
while ensuring product quality and safety. Our employees are the
indispensable link between us and our suppliers, franchisees,
store managers and consumers, forming an integral part of
our corporate culture. We are committed to the continual
development of talent, integration of management, employees
and franchisees into our training system, which promotes
equal conversations and knowledge sharing. We have also been
diligently providing comprehensive support to empower and
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cultivate our franchisees to promote their business growth and
success. Moreover, our management team also places great
importance in serving the society and have been actively involved
in environmental protection, charitable contributions, disaster
relief, and community support. For further information on the
Company’s corporate culture, please refer to the Group’s 2024
Environmental, Social and Governance Report published on the
same day as the Annual Report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board consists of 10
Directors comprising 4 executive Directors, 1T non-executive
Director and 4 independent non-executive Directors as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Mingchao
(Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Meng Xianjin
Mr. An Haolei
Ms. Luo Na

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhengzheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Xiaosong
Ms. Yu Fang Jing
Mr. Li Jianfeng
Mr. Shi Kangping

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section of “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of the Annual Report.
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During the Reporting Period and up to the date of the Annual
Report, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise, and independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the
board of the directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that
all the four independent non-executive Directors as at the date
of the Annual Report, are independent taking into account the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report -
Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations” in this Annual Report,
none of the Directors, Supervisors, and senior management
has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) with any other Directors,
Supervisors, and senior management.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions, and monitors business
and performance.

The management, including executive Directors, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day
- to - day operations of the Group. They meet regularly to review
the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
coordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.

R EHEEREEAFRAY  E5e—
A LEMRAIEIA0MNIE - F£3.10)1KERE
3. 10AIRRIRTE - NABBRZEEL =8B
FHITEE  HPEL— BB IFNTES
AEBEAENSEERKSTEENHER
HEMNHE BEBUERTESEONESS
REBH=pz— -

ARABCEEZBIFATESRELTR
A3 13 RFE LB MERE - X EED
ETHRRNEI NGB LIRS RBAE

RAFHREMERUBBILIFATETIR
BIAL e
BRAFRIEFERE —EF  EFNES

TTBRABRARR R EREAE 2B - 8
Rl MEH R RR | — AR ES

S MBEE  EFERSAEEERERE
hEE HEERESNEBEFEMAHER(BRE

Bt %% KBREMEXR HEBER) -

ESEEIREE
EFECREAREMNERBAE T BEEX
KB BBORKE R EEEBMKRER

BEEE(BRHUTES) BERAEEHRES

ENRRANREE N7 - URBEAEE
WEFEZE THEH AR AEEER
EBRE  REERERMEUMBREE

RE - BRENHEEERS (BRREEER
FESRE BN (BRI - WS TE IR 1%
RRHE MERENAVSARAEENTE -

Annual Report 2024
“ZTMFEFR

81



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERERE

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and act in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for supervising the preparation
of annual accounts in order to give a true and fair view of the
financial position, operating results and cash flow of the Company
during the year. For the purpose of the preparation of the
financial statements for the Reporting Period, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, adopted applicable
accounting principles, made judgments and assessments that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the accounts were
prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have confirmed
that the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 were prepared in accordance with the
requirements of laws and applicable accounting principles.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The review covered all the material
aspects of its internal controls, including the supervision of the
financial and operational and compliance affairs, as well as risk
management.

So far as known to the Directors, there were no any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements
of the Company on a going concern basis. The reporting
responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor on the
financial statements of the Group are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in the Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
and is responsible for performance of the following corporate
governance functions:

. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year. At least 14 days’ notice of all
regular Board meetings is given to the Directors who are given the
opportunity to include other matters in the agenda of meetings.
For other Board meetings, at least 3 days’ notice is given to the
Directors in advance. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and relevant information are dispatched to all Directors
at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the related documents
and be adequately prepared for the meeting.
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NOTICE OF THE FOURTH REGULAR BOARD MEETING
FOR 2024

Pursuant to Code provision C.5.3 of the CG Code, at least 14
days’ notice should be given of a regular board meeting to give
all directors an opportunity to attend. However, during the
Reporting Period, the Company’s fourth regular Board meeting
for 2024 was held on 16 December 2024 with less than 14
days’ notice, which mainly because that at the request of the
Company’s Shareholders, in view of the overall arrangement
for the implementation of the H Share Full Circulation and the
tight schedule for reviewing proposals on the implementation of
H Share Full Circulation and the proposed amendments to the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Company applied to
the Directors for a waiver of the obligation to give advance notice
of the regular Board meeting, and the waiver application was
approved by all Directors. Although the Company did not give 14
days’ notice to all Directors, in order to ensure that the Directors
have sufficient time to review and consider the meeting agenda
and proposals, the Company sent the agenda and related meeting
documents for the regular Board meeting to all Directors on 10
December 2024 (6 days in advance of the meeting date), strictly
complying with the requirement of at least 3 days’ notice under
Code provision C.5.8 of the CG Code. In addition, all Directors
attended the meeting and voted on various proposals. For the
above reasons, the Board believes that the fourth regular Board
meeting for 2024 with less than 14 days’ notice didn’t affect
the attendance of all Directors at the meeting, careful reading
and prudent consideration of the proposals, and effective
decision-making. For details of the proposed implementation of
H Share Full Circulation and the proposed amendments to the
Articles of Association approved by the Board, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2024.

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code provides that Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company held 12 Board
meetings and one general meeting. During the Reporting Period,
the attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings
and general meeting are set out as follows:

RBERE - ARFHABIT T+ _RESE
RN —ABRRE - RBREHHE - 8EF
RESEEEMBERAGWHECENT -

Number of meetings

attended/required to attend

Attendance rate

EHE EHEEERH BRHER
Board General Board General
meetin meetin meetin meetin
BEEgg BRAS Exgg BRRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yang Mingchao HARERE L 12/12 11 100% 100%
Mr. Meng Xianjin TS 12/12 11 100% 100%
Mr. An Haolei Er e 12/12 1/1 100% 100%
Ms. Luo Na A+ 12/12 1/1 100% 100%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yi Jdiayu"®@ RETFHREND 12/12 11 100% 100%
Mr. Zeng Xinghai® % g 5 4 ©) 8/8 11 100% 100%
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng [ ted 12/12 1/1 100% 100%
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITES
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong® DN 12/12 1/1 100% 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing BRI 2+ 12/12 il 100% 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng Rl A 12/12 11 100% 100%
Mr. Shi Kangping MERF A 12/12 1/1 100% 100%
Notes: P&
(1) As Mr. Yi Jiayu and Mr. Zeng Xiaosong were unable to attend the 18th (1) KRFEAE - BENLE  REAARREERA
meeting of the first session of the Board due to personal reasons, Mr. PEE—EESGET/REE  TTBWHBE
Yang Mingchao was entrusted to attend the meeting on their behalf and to ERBEHE - WIRR(REZRITE)NERITRE
exercise their voting rights in accordance with the Power of Attorney. REHE o
(2) Mr. YiJiayu has resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company on 17 (2) ATELZHE  KRXFEEER-_ZE-_AFMNA+
April 2025 due to work arrangements. T HEBERRRIFFRITES -
(3) Mr. Zeng Xinghai has resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company (3) AT L8 QESLEEER_ZE-_WENA+

on 14 August 2024 due to work arrangements.

Pursuant to Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairperson
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.
During the Reporting Period, the chairperson held one meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors was appointed to the Board pursuant to
the respective letters of appointment for a term of three years
subject to the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.
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None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
other than the contracts/letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, and making recommendations
to the Board on appointment, re-election, and succession
planning of Directors.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairperson and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairperson and chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.
During the Reporting Period, the chairperson of the Board and
chief executive officer of the Company were assumed by one
person, Mr. Yang Mingchao, who was mainly responsible for the
strategic decisions of the Company. The Board believes that,
in view of his experience, personal profile and his roles in the
Company as mentioned above, Mr. Yang is the Director best
suited to identify strategic opportunities and focus of the Board
due to his extensive understanding of our business as our chief
executive officer. The Board also believes that vesting the roles of
both chairperson and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of (i) ensuring consistent leadership within the
Group, (ii) enabling more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning and execution of strategic initiatives of the Board, and
(iii) facilitating the flow of information between the management
and the Board of the Group. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make
and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will
continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairperson
of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company
at a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. During the Reporting Period, the
Company arranged trainings for the Directors to reinforce their
understanding of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code, so as to enhance their professional judgment and
decision-making capabilities. In addition to the Group’s external
Hong Kong legal advisor, the Group’s internal Capital Markets
Office also provides relevant training to the Directors. The Board
ensures that Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with Code provision C.1.4 under Section Il of the
Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors
received the following trainings and updates (covering corporate
governance, Listing Rules and other listing related regulations):

ESNFREERRR

AARBBERHBEAESNIEILENTEE
B  MEHM  ARARAESLH T
A hneR R Em AR R EE AR
RIEAR - RS EFEFIEARERE N - B
EBINBEBEZRBERIN  REBRAPER
MGRAENMEFREE@EEI - EFE
BRESARLAEEREAS BN NEH
BUEXER  BAMAARRRAE -EF
BREET(LEERTANFE_HHBARE
EEJIRTFREXC.1.4 °

BE-F-_ME+_A=+—ALFEE "
EFEEEXTTIIEIIRESR CREREE
8~ FRAIREMIBRDER) -

To participate

in continuous
professional

development
Directors BEx SHIGFEEERRY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yang Mingchao BB L V
Mr. Meng Xianjin R ERE v
Mr. An Haolei BEZERE V
Ms. Luo Na g o V
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yi Jiayu® KRFIRAE? v
Mr. Zeng Xinghai® L 5 5 4 V
Mr. Liu Zhengzheng ZIEFEFLE J
Independent non-executive Directors BYFEHTES
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong BEEREL v
Ms. Yu Fang Jing BPEREE Lz + V
Mr. Li Jianfeng 3 e V
Mr. Shi Kangping s it J
Notes: BisE
M Attending training sessions arranged by the Company or other external (1) AR RIS E A INE T R R IEIREE - B

parties, including but not limited to briefings, seminars, conferences
and workshops, or reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,
magazines and relevant publications.

(2) Mr. Yi Jiayu has resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company on 17
April 2025 due to work arrangements, and ceased to hold any position in
the Company with effect from 17 April 2025.

(3) Mr. Zeng Xinghai has resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company
on 14 August 2024 due to work arrangements, and ceased to hold any
position in the Company with effect from 14 August 2024.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To better serve the long-term interests of our stakeholders,
the Board delegates certain matters requiring particular time,
attention and expertise to its committees. The Board has
determined that these matters are better dealt with by the
committees as they require independent oversight and specialist
input. As such, the Board has established three committees
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees
including Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. All the Board committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and Code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The terms of
reference of Audit Committee has been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The primary
duties of Audit Committee are, but not limited to, to assist the
Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, the internal control and risk
management system of the Group, to oversee the audit process
and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Shi Kangping, Ms. Yu Fang Jing and Mr. Li Jianfeng, all being
the independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shi Kangping is the
chairperson of Audit Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four
meetings. The attendance records of committee members during

the Reporting Period are set out as follows:

RBERHE  BERZEER ”TEW@%
ATERZEBNHERHEBFEEHER

Number of
committee meetings

attended/required  Attendance rate of

to attend committee meetings
BHE EHE
SEEBERH ggBdE=s
Mr. Shi Kangping BT 5t £ 4/ 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing Bl 2+ 4/4 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng Xl 4/4 100%
The principal work of the Audit Committee during the Reporting TZZEB R MEBBENETETIERIEUT

Period included the following:

(1)

reviewed the consolidated annual financial statement for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the opinion and
report of independent auditor;

reviewed the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2024;

reviewed the independence and audit scope of the
independent auditor, and reviewed and discussed the risk
management and internal control system and financial
reporting matters of the Group, reviewed the annual cap of
existing continuing connected transactions, and processes
and the re-appointment of the auditors;

engaged Ernst & Young to provide non-assurance services
to the Company and confirmed that the non-assurance
services provided by Ernst & Young will not have any
potential impact on its independence;

other duties and powers authorized by the Board of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the

auditor for 2024 and recommended the Board to re-appoint

Ernst & Young as the domestic auditor of the Company for 2025

in the PRC and as the overseas auditor of the Company for 2025,

subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the Company
met with the external auditor of the Company four times as
required under Code provision D3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The terms of reference of
Remuneration Committee has been published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to review and recommend
to the Board the policies governing remuneration and other
benefits paid by us to our Directors and senior management
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives as
well as to research and formulate the assessment standards
of and evaluate the Directors and senior management, study
and formulate the remuneration plan for the Directors and
senior management, regularly monitor the reasonableness and
appropriateness of levels of the remuneration and compensation
of the Directors and senior management, make recommendations
to the Board and supervise the implementation of the
remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Zeng Xiaosong, Ms. Yu Fang Jing and Mr. Li
Jianfeng, all being the independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zeng Xiaosong is the chairperson of Remuneration Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held

one meeting. The attendance records of each committee member

during the Reporting Period are set out as follows:

RBEHRE - FTHEEERTT —REFH -
?E@EE,\E’J&F%E%%WJQDT

Number of
committee meetings
attended/required  Attendance rate of

to attend committee meetings
BiHiE EHE
SEERARY ZESERHER
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong BN AE 1/1 100%
Ms. Yu Fang Jing Bl 2+ 1/1 100%
Mr. Li Jianfeng Xl 1/1 100%

The principal work of the Remuneration Committee during the

Reporting Period included the following:

M

reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Board;

formulated and advised the Board on the remuneration
packages for directors and senior management members
of the Company;

made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members;

reviewed the performance of duties by the Company’s
directors and senior management members and conducted

performance appraisals and evaluations; and

other matters authorized by the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code provision
B.3.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference of Nomination
Committee has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of Nomination
Committee are, but not limited to, to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the chairperson and the chief
executive officer; and to review the corporate governance policies
and practices of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. The Nomination Committee would review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy in achieving the
objectives set for the benefits of the Company.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Yang Mingchao, being the executive Director, and Mr.
Zeng Xiaosong and Mr. Shi Kangping, both being the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang Mingchao is the chairperson of
Nomination Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The attendance records of each committee member
during the Reporting Period are set out as follows:

RBERE  REZESRTEMREH -
NTREZENBEHRLFESZER

Number of
committee meetings
attended/required  Attendance rate of

to attend committee meetings
BHE EHE
SEEERHY EEESRHESR
Mr. Yang Mingchao SRR A 2/2 100%
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong DR A 2/2 100%
Mr. Shi Kangping MR SR 2/2 100%

The principal work of the Nomination Committee during the
Reporting Period included the following:

(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

(2) assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(3) reviewed the Nomination Policy;

(4) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

(5) reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices
of the Company;

(6) other matters authorized by the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company have adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the
high standard of corporate governance. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve diversity of our Board
through the consideration of a number of factors when selecting
candidates to the Board, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity and length of service. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at the Board level, including gender
diversity, as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage and enhancing its ability to attract,
retain and motivate employees from the widest possible pool of
available talent.

The Company have taken, and will continue to take, steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including
but not limited to the Board and the senior management levels.
The Board is satisfied with the gender diversity of our employees.
Two female Directors, namely Ms. Luo Na and Ms. Yu Fang Jing,
were appointed with effect since July 2020 and October 2023
respectively. Going forward, we will continue to work to enhance
gender diversity of the Board. The Board will take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members from time to
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for appointment of Directors. The Company will also
continue to ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in
due time to ensure gender diversity of the Board. The Group will
continue to emphasize training of female talent and providing
long-term development opportunities for the female staff. For
initiatives on gender diversity at employee level (including senior
management), please refer to the 2024 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Group.
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The Directors range from 33 years old to 54 years old, and
consists of different nationality including Chinese and Australian.
The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including overall management and strategic development, quality
assurance and control, finance and accounting and corporate
governance in addition to industry experience relevant to our
Group’s operations and business. They obtained degrees in
various majors including engineering, economics, and business
administration.

The Board is responsible for reviewing the diversity of our Board.
As of the date of the Annual Report, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Board
will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. We will also disclose in our corporate
governance report a summary of the Board Diversity Policy
together with information regarding the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The Company has also adopted policies and procedures for
nomination and election of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”).
The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria and procedures for
selection and performance evaluation and provides guidance to
the Board on the nomination and appointment of Directors. The
Board believes that a clear selection process facilitates corporate
governance, ensures the continuity of the Board, maintains
the leadership of the Board, and enhances the efficiency and
diversity of the Board. Both the Nomination Committee and the
Board can nominate candidates for Directors. When evaluating
the suitability of recommended candidates and their potential
contributions to the Board, the Nomination Committee may
refer to certain selection criteria such as integrity, professional
qualifications and skills, knowledge, experience, commitment and
related contributions. The Nomination Committee shall report the
evaluation results to the Board on the appointment of suitable
Director candidates and provide relevant recommendations to
the Board to make decisions and formulate a general election
plan which should be proposed at the general meeting for the
Shareholders’ approval.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company has established the mechanism to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members
Further,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to the

being independent non-executive Directors.

Board Committees as required under the Listing Rules and as
far as practicable to ensure independent views and input are
available. The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
independence assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules
with regard to the nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgement. No
equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements

ll be granted to independent non-executive Directors. Last, a
Director (including independent non-executive Director) who has
a material interest in a contract or arrangement shall not vote or
be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving the
same.
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The Company also established channels whereby independent
non-executive Directors can express their views in an open
and candid manner. The Company may also engage external
professional firm for seeking advice when necessary.

Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries,
performance-related bonuses, pension scheme contributions and
other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB11.6 million. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in note 9 to the financial statements in the Annual Report.

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management is determined with reference to their respective
time commitment to the Group and their responsibilities and

ZF’R*Tﬁ@iﬁi#iﬂﬁ%%j%%ﬂﬁﬂtﬂ
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performance. Remuneration paid to the Directors, Supervisors Z%  EENSHEIEEN T MEES W0
and senior management of the Company by band for the year | :
ended 31 December 2024 is within the range below:
Number of
Individuals
Range of remuneration A E AE
Between RMBO and RMB1,000,000 NTFARMKOTE ARY1,000,0007T 7
Between RMB1,000,001 and RMB2,000,000 N ARE 1,000,001 E ARE2,000,0007T 6
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEARWE

Mr. Wang Hui and Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong Willie were appointed
as the joint company secretaries of the Company with effect
from October 20283 and June 2024,
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial work of the

respectively, and are

Group. The primary contact person of Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong
Willie at the Company is Mr. Wang Hui. Both Mr. Wang and Mr.
Cheung’s biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management —
Joint Company Secretaries” in the Annual Report.

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, both Mr. Wang Hui and Mr. Cheung Kai Cheong
Willie confirmed that they have taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’, Supervisors’ and relevant employees’ (i.e. employees
who may have inside information about the Company) dealings in
securities of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all the Directors and
Supervisors, each of them confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards of dealing as set out in the Model
Code for the Reporting Period.

No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by the
relevant employees of the Company were noted by the Company
for the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining sound systems of risk management
and internal controls in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company and also reviewing
the effectiveness of such systems on an ongoing basis and
annual basis. The Board has established a risk management and
internal control system in accordance with the requirements of
the CG Code, which is responsible for independently reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company (covering financial, operational
and compliance controls), and continuously monitoring and
reviewing the effectiveness of its operation once a year. The
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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Features of Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company has established the risk management and internal
control system, comprising the Board, the Audit Committee,
the Board of Supervisors, the management of the Company, the
Internal Audit and Investigation Center and other departments,
pursuant to the CG Code in a bid to guarantee that the Company
has sufficient resources, employee qualification and experience,
training courses and relevant budgets in terms of the risk
management and internal control. All the departments of the
Company are the first line of defense in respect of the risk
management and internal control, the management of the
Company is the second, and the Internal Audit and Investigation
Center is the third. The Board is ultimately responsible for
the establishment and refinement of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and the effective
implementation of the risk management work. The Board is the
top decision-making organ of the risk management and internal
control of the Company.

Structure and Function of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Company reviews the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control each year, assesses the major issues under
control based on internal control elements such as internal
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and internal supervision, and optimizes the risk
management system.

The Company’s internal control system is formed on the
framework of internal control set by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO
Committee). The Company developed a top-down structure for
risk management organization, under which the Board makes
decision about risk management and internal control, the Audit
Committee and the Internal Audit and Investigation Center carry
out supervision work, and the management and all departments
secure and control the effective implementation of decisions.
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Business departments and functions of the Company are the first
line of defense for risk management and internal control, which
are responsible for identification, assessment and management
of risks within business scope to ensure adequate internal
control on effective risk management and hold responsibility
for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls; the
management is the second line of defense, which is responsible
for formulation of, improvement of and supervision over major
policies, procedures and standards of the Company based on the
Company’s strategies, as well as monitoring the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control activities of the
Company, and providing the affirmation of the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control system to the Board, to
support the Audit Committee fulfilling its risk and supervision
functions; the Internal Audit and Investigation Center is the third
line of defense, which is responsible for assessing and reviewing
the effectiveness of policies and procedures relating to the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and
reporting to the Audit Committee and Board on the assessment
and audit results. The Audit Committee will make independent
assessment on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and make reports and
proposals to the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval of the policies and
procedures made by the management, holds the ultimate
responsibility for the establishment and refinement of the risk
management and internal control system as well as the efficient
implementation of risk management work, and plays the role
as the highest decision-making body of risk management and
internal control system.
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Mechanism and Implementation of Risk Management and
Internal Control

For the year ended 31 December 2024, with identification and
assessment of risks, the management implemented the policies
and procedures and also engaged in the design, implementation
and supervision of appropriate internal control measures to
reduce and control relevant risks. As of the date of the Annual
Report, the management reported to the Audit Committee on
the assessment results, while the Audit Committee reviewed
the effectiveness and adequacy of internal control system and
made their recommendations to the Board. The Board reviewed
and discussed with the management on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company
pursuant to the provisions of the Code, so that the management
will maintain and operate the sound system in compliance with
the established procedures and standards. The Board believes
that the existing internal control and risk management system
is adequate and effective and there is no material mistakes and
weakness on risk supervision.

The Company will constantly improve the risk management
policy and procedures, clarify the structure, responsibilities
and authorities of risk management, identify the major risks
obstructing the realization of objectives and keep all risks
under control. The Company will ensure that the achievement
of operation goals, the improvement of operational efficiency,
reliability of financial reports and compliance with the national
laws and regulations.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

. is required to disclose inside information as soon as
reasonably practicable in accordance with the SFO and the
Listing Rules

. conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on

Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the SFC
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. For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside
information in accordance with the Listing Rules and
SFO, the Group has aroused the awareness to preserve
confidentiality of inside information within the Group and
send blackout period and securities dealing restrictions
notification to the relevant Directors and employees
on a regular basis as needed, strictly comply with the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the SFC in June 2012

. the Group has prohibited unauthorized use of confidential
or inside information

Whistleblowing Policy

In compliance with Code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers
and suppliers) with guidance and reporting channels on reporting
any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group
directly addressed to the designated person.

No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material effect on
the Group’s financial statements or overall operations for the year
ended 31 December 2024 has been discovered.

Anti-corruption Policy

In compliance with Code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-corruption Policy. The Anti-corruption
Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance
framework. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the specific
behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and business
partners must follow to combat corruption.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically
to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the
industry best practice.
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For further details of the risk management and internal control
of the Group, please refer to the 2024 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided
by Ernst & Young to our Group during the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately as follows:

ERAEERBREREMNABEHNTE ZH
15 B2 AEE(2024RE - HERER
)

¥ 2 B 32 B

HE-_Z-_WE+-_A=+—HUIFE %
XEEHRIE S AT M AR BB R R IEEET
RFSEFBN T

Amount

-]

RMB

Type of Services liE % kil AR
Audit services ELTARTS 3,300,000
Non-audit services FEEET RIS 983,000
Total et 4,283,000

Note: Non-audit services mainly include the consultancy services for transfer pricing
analysis report and interim review report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual

reports, announcements and circulars.

The annual general meeting of our Company provides opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The chairpersons of the Board Committees of our Company will
attend the annual general meeting to answer Shareholders’
questions. The auditor will also attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintains a website of the
Company at www.zzggsh.com, where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. The implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy
are reviewed on an annual basis. Channels for Shareholders
to communicate their views on various matters affecting the
Company and steps to solicit and understand their views are
considered to be sufficient and effective.

By reviewing the Shareholders’ communication channels as
explained above, the Board is of view that the Shareholders’
communication policy adopted by the Company has been
effectively implemented during the Reporting Period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each issue at general meetings by the
Company, including the election of individual Directors.
All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10%
or more shares of the Company, at the date of deposit of the

requisition.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The Board shall reply in writing regarding
the acceptance or refusal to convene an extraordinary general
meeting within 10 days upon receiving the request in accordance
with the requirements of the laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association. If the Board agrees to convene
the extraordinary general meeting, a notice of such meeting
shall be issued within 5 days after the resolution of the Board is
passed. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to make a response within 10 days upon
receipt of the request, the requisitionist(s) shall have the right to
propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene the extraordinary
general meeting. If the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene
the extraordinary general meeting, a notice of such meeting shall
be issued within 5 days upon receipt of the request. If the Board
of Supervisors fails to issue the notice of general meeting within
the period specified above, it shall be deemed to have failed to
convene and preside over such meeting. The requisitionist(s)
holding 10% or more of the Shares for 90 consecutive days or
longer period may convene and preside over such meeting, the
reasonable expenses incurred for such meeting shall be borne
by the Company, and deducted from the amounts owed by the
Company to the negligent Director(s) or Supervisor(s).

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may supervise the operations of the Company, and
to make suggestions and enquiries to be Board.

Contact Details

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the investor relations of which
contact details are as follows:

Address: Room 802, No. 3, Lane 187, Xinghong Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, PRC

Email: ir@guoquan.cn
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has amended its Articles of Association with effect
from the Listing Date.

The Company has further amended its Articles of Association
on 21 December 2023 due to the partial exercise of the
over-allotment option and the amendment to the Articles of
Association was approved by the Board. In accordance with the
resolutions passed at the 2023 second extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 March 2023, the general meeting of the
Company has authorized the Board and persons authorized by the
Board to amend the Articles of Association for the purpose of the
Company’s Listing. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 21 December 2023.
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As Moutai (Guizhou) Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (FR(EMREESEREEERER)),
the Shareholders of the Company intended to convert all of its

one of

Domestic Unlisted Shares into H Shares of the Company (the
“H Share Full Circulation”), in order to reflect the share capital
structure of the Company upon the completion of the H Share

Il Circulation, the Company proposed further amendments to
the Articles of Association on 22 May 2024. The amendments
were considered and approved by the Board on the same day and
were approved by way of a special resolution at the 2023 Annual
General Meeting held on 27 June 2024, and became effective
thereafter. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company on Proposed Participation in the Plan of H Share
Full Circulation by the Company and Proposed Amendments to
Articles of Association of the Company dated 22 May 2024, the
circular of 2023 Annual General Meeting dated 27 May 2024
and announcement on Poll Results of the 2023 Annual General
Meeting dated 27 June 2024.

As the Company’s Shareholders (Guoquan Industry and
Shanghai Buyue Ertong Venture Capital Partnership (Limited
FEAOMBEREREAREE(BRER)), both

being shareholders of the Company, intended to participate in

Partnership) (

the H Share Full Circulation, in order to reflect the share capital
structure of the Company upon the completion of the H Share Full
Circulation, the Company proposed further amendments to the
Articles of Association on 16 December 2024. The amendments
were considered and approved by the Board on the same day
and will be approved by way of a special resolution at the 2024
Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 June 2025, and will
become effective thereafter. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company on Proposed Participation in the
Plan of H Share Full Circulation by the Company and Proposed
Amendments to Articles of Association of the Company dated 16
December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company from the Listing Date.

The latest Articles of Association is available on both the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
wBERM (L) ROBRAF

HRARFRE (FA (BN REE2EY
TE(ERAR)) BBEMB2ERAKR L
mEHhEHR AR QARHE (THRERE]) -
ﬁ&%$@ﬂ%%%&H%%ﬁ@&m%$
ﬁ%*ﬁ“ R_Z-_MERFA-—+_A
BE—TBITERRER - ZFETERA
BEESEeEZMIE YR 2T _[mFN
AZ+tHBITH_ZEZ=FERFAE L
AR RIRZ RO NGB EL AR - F15
BLHEARRRAZS-_MFRA =T
HHEBR2ENRERBEI RERETAA
ERAEL - ABMA-T-_MFRA=-++tH
M- =—FEREASHRE  URBHA
ZEZNFEANAZT AN =FER
RREZEHREXRRERDE o

HRARAFIRR (RBEXR FTOMA
BIEREARELE (ARAR)) H2EAKE
B BRI A F R TER H AR 2 iR &
IR RRRR T _WF+_A+
NEEFEEFEITHRRIER - ZFBF]
ERFAAKEZTSRALME YRR _-F
THFERAZTERABRTHN T _OFER
RRE FARRIAZRNEAEEIET &
WMo FERL2HARAFRBHRA_T_WHF+

fﬁﬂ—/\EIE’J“/,\ BERBETE RiEZ
BEIRAIERRE -

Br EXCHEFEESN - B LT AERAARINE
RS 4

BT A R BRI R &) 480k K B 3 Fr 48 uh

BE T -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

KB R EIEH PR
EY::

To the shareholders of Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(Established in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

RN —RE2718

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 116 to 219 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BHRENSEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETSE EPINET WEERARE SR
Revenue recognition
WA TR

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of meal
products and related products. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group recognised consolidated
revenue amounting to RMB6,469,810,000.
EEETIEREHEEREMREHER - HE—
F+-_A=+—BIHFE ﬁ%Eﬁ%?é%AAEM
6,469,810,0007T °

i

The timing of revenue recognition of the sale of the meal
products and related products is when the performance
obligation of the sale or delivery of goods is satisfied at a
point in time. We consider revenue recognition is a key audit
matter as there was inherent risk based on the fact that the
Group earned such revenue primarily from selling products
toa large number of franchisees.

HEERE M LAERE @B ARERE B REMIHE R T
an EAE TR — R - i E%II BRAAEME
gg%g%ﬁmﬁ%WA’ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ © B LR ATER 5 B
§ 5 18 o

The accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is
disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements and the
details of revenue are disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements.

ARARAERN ST BORR M B WMER 2.4 5 - WAFIBR
SRS HREE -

We obtained an understanding of the transaction process
of revenue recognition, evaluated and tested the Group’s
internal controls on the revenue recognition process.

BT R T MARERNERIEF  SHEIAAT BEREER
ANHER B2 T B A BRI -

We reviewed and evaluated the revenue recognition policy

by inquiring the management and reviewing sales contracts

on a sample basis.
@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁh%%% B =B R ERAE
R

We performed analytical procedures on the Group’s revenue
by channel, by month, by customer and by product category.
Besides, we recalculated the operational support services
recognised during the year.

HIMRESE %A REPRERERENE BESEENKAL
TAHT o WO - BIEFAE T FAERNGEE IHEIRE

We performed revenue cut-off procedures as well as
tests of details by checking on a sample basis the original
supporting documents, such as sales orders, delivery notes,
receipts and bank slips.
HMmeEMEREHERE  REE - WBEIRITKREZERI
BE X - HUTRABUEIR P RABETAIE

We performed data analysis on consistency between
operational and financial data on revenue recognition and
performed background investigation check on a sample
basis among the franchisees.
A B A FE SR WQM&W$%E2ﬁ%*ﬁHﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B - S AE AR B T B o

We obtained confirmations from customers to check the
accuracy of the revenue and trade receivables on a sample

basis.
BMMEBEFELHMER L - UHERERARE S RKGK
HYLETEIE

We evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the
financial statements.

HAIRHE T MR P BN -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RS E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

R ET M BRREAENE
(5

BAMEE  EHGEAMBERREBELS T
FHEHNRFFREBR M BN B A RR A
RSAHEEE  UHAHARMELNER
AR - #MEm BT ((ERER) &S -
BRUELDASK - RIREW BEMA R - HATE
RAHENABTAEAEMALE ESFE
EREE-

ABEELBATHES  BTRLRERT
BB LR (TOBN X —BAHSR
BULTEAER MR TR o SRR AT L K
SiE3E  MRABEHCHEDRES
ERA LY BEA HBREEDERBEA
BB EEFEL MEEART - AIERmER
B AR A o

ERBERABREAETETNBIED R
ERTERHE  RETEXREREE -
BAIIT

. ask 7l A0 = 4 e P RR R S 8A BR T 28 B
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R R RBITER R AR EL
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. TR EERET AR R EES] - LARE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2025

R ET M BRREAENE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SRERR

Year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—ZE_—MF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-E T =8
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®ET T ARBET T
REVENUE A \ 5 6,469,810 6,094,104
Cost of sales SHERAR (5,053,058) (4,743,163)
Gross profit EF| 1,416,752 1,350,941
Other income and gains, net E U A R s F 58 6 26,134 104,915
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDAL (664,194) (578,820)
Administrative expenses T (454,282) (497,235)
Other expenses HAbFIZ (1,240) (8,652)
Finance costs BARSR AR 8 (4,421) (5,432)
Impairment loss on financial assets, DRVEEREERE
net of reversal IR D 23 797 (2,292)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A A 7 319,546 363,425
Income tax expense FriSfif > 1 (78,308) (100,023)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FAFHE 241,238 263,402
Attributable to: AT &7 81
Owners of the parent ISYNETEZ= DN 230,558 239,636
Non-controlling interests JEIE R A R 10,680 23,766
241,238 263,402
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRaEmEmiEa ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BREF
PARENT
Basic HAR
~ For profit for the year (RMB cents) — FRFB(ARED) 13 8.41 8.94
Diluted &
~ For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FRFE(ARESD) 13 8.41 8.94

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEEHRaER

Year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—ZE-MF+-A=1+—HIFE

2024 2023
—EB-ME —ET=HF
RMB’000 RM'B'OOO
ARETT ARBFIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FARFE 241,238 263,402
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B2 EKaE
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified HieHMa EmoHEBng
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: H2HEEIA
Exchange differences on translation of HEIBINETE Y
foreign operations M N ZER (59) (201)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be HeHMEmsHEBag
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods HEh2HEEBERFE (59) (201)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be HeHmreEm
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent DEEERN
periods: Hb2H (B18) /e 3
Equity investments designated at fair value EERAABEFARE CEEKSE
through other comprehensive income: MR E
Changes in fair value DAEEE (176,968) 31,205
Income tax effect BIEETT8-% 45,110 (7.801)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that willnot ~ HEHMAEEHOEEEREN
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hin 2 (F8), /W3
periods (131,858) 23,404
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, FAEHMEE RS
NET OF TAX HBRFLIR (131,917) 23,203
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FREERELREE 109,321 286,605
Attributable to: AT& TG
Owners of the parent [SYNCIETZE PN 98,641 262,839
Non-controlling interests SRR S 10,680 23,766
109,321 286,605
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRR

31 December 2024 —E & +=-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
—EZF —E=F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—~H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIEE ARET ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment N 14 493,765 440,820
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15(a) 150,750 135,714
Goodwill 5k 16 138,010 138,010
Other intangible assets EtnmpEE 17 50,899 58,233
Investments in associates REZE R BRI E 18 301,626 2,070
Equity investments designated at fair value EERAABETAEMEE
through other comprehensive income WS RERE 19 139,695 253,090
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 20 15,443 24,524
Financial assets at fair value through BARnBEGTABRRN
profit or loss SREE 25 - 209,861
Long-term bank deposits REARITIE K 26 106,046 453,871
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIBE 21 86,793 60,160
Total non-current assets SERBEERE 1,483,027 1,776,353
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories st 22 691,827 719,515
Trade receivables B 5 RIGIE 23 233,804 54,263
Prepayments, other receivables and TERRIE - E A YRR
other assets HtEE 24 324,082 408,668
Restricted cash ZIREHIH & 26 88,838 64,220
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRARBER ABREN
or loss TREE 25 - 211,031
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITEEH 26 1,929,900 1,417,596
Total current assets MEEERE 3,268,451 2,875,293
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBEE
Trade payables B S ERIE 28 647,055 457,297
Other payables and accruals E e RIEREER 29 637,357 577,296
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ &TER7T R E M E K 27 63,510 72,135
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 16,164 17,849
Tax payables FERTHIIE 40,275 43,311
Total current liabilities mEBAEATE 1,404,361 1,167,888
NET CURRENT ASSETS mBEESE 1,864,090 1,707,405
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEARERRBAR 3,347,117 3,483,758
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred income TEIEUA 30 24,697 18,260
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITR
other borrowings H AR 27 4,000 8,139
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(b) 19,040 12,162
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 21 34,559 66,414
Total non-current liabilities SEmEBERE 82,296 104,975
Net assets EEFE 3,264,821 3,378,783
EQUITY m
Equity attributable to owners of the parent [SUNGIE PNy
Share capital %N 31 2,747,360 2,747,360
Treasury shares %D 31 (73,309) =
Reserves & 32 470,321 514,817
3,144,372 3,262,177
Non-controlling interests PR i 120,449 116,606
Total equity k] 3,264,821 3,378,783
B R
Yang Mingchao An Haolei
EF E
Director Director

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—ZE-MF+-A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRSDTREA

Fair value

reserve of

financial

assetsat

fair value

through

other  Exchange Non-
Share Treasury Capital ~ Statutory comprehensive ~fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital shares reserve* reserve* income* reserve* profits* Total interests equity

BAAEE

itAff

2EkEN

SHEEN Ej
B&  ERRH  EAEEr  RERfr  AAEERET  RERE  BEAR 4 FERRE  RoER
(ote31)  (note31)  (note32) (note3?)
(W) (Wa31) (W) (W)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARNTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

Asat 1 January 2024 N-E-mE
-A-R 2,747,360 - 428,709 20,761 31,908 (156) 33505 3,262,177 116,606 3,378,783
Profit for the year ERFHE = = = = = = 230,558 230,558 10,680 261,238
Other comprehensive income ~~ FREB2ERE -
for the year:
Change n fairvalue ofequity ~ RALEEEFA
investments at fair value Afp2 EhEN
through other REgEs
comprehensive income, MEEZY
net oftax (ia) = = = = (131,858) s - (131,869) - (131,858)
Exchange differences on AERIEHM
translation of foreign 35
operations - - - - - (59) - (59) - (59)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ FERZENEEHE
for the year - - - - (131,858) (59) 230,558 98,641 10,680 109,321
Final 2023 dividend paid BRF-5-=F
RRE = = = = = = (143,137) (143,137) - (143,137)
Dividends paid to non- RTHEERER
controlling equity holders FEARE - - - - - - - - (8,347) (8,347)
Capital injection from FakiEs
anon-controllingequity holder ~~ BEAEE - - - - - - - - 1510 1510
Shares repurchased BEERG - (73,309) - - - - - (73,309) - (73,309)
Transfer of fairvalue reserve ~ RALERBEA
upon the disposal of equity Efo2Ekae
investments at fair value HERERER
through other comprehensive A EEEEEH
income - - - - (3,476) - 3,476 - - -
Transfer from retaingd profits ~ ERE &R - - - 2,216 - - (24,216) - - -
As at 31 December 2024 3

tZA=t+-H 2,741,360 (73,309) 428,709 44,977 (103,426) (215) 100276 3,144,372 120449 3,264,821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2024 BEZ—ZE_NF+=-HA=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SENSRTRAA

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other  Exchange Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory  comprehensive fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ reserve*  reserve* income*  reserve*  profits* Total interests equity
BAERE
AL
2ENES
R EAGEr iR DABEEEr  RIRE  ERAE B pERER  EREE
(note31)  (note32)  (note3?)
(Wsr)  (WaEs2)  (REs2)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Asat 1 January 2023 RZZ-=%-A-A 20,993 2,909,451 2,322 8,004 45 (346,867) 2594448 95103 2,689,551
Profit for the year ERFE - = = = = 239636 239,636 23,766 263,402
Other comprehensive income for EREMEENG :
the year:
Change i fair value of equity EARBETA
investments at fair value through A 2ERERN
other comprehensive income, TRiERE
net of tax AfEERY (MRHE) = = - 23,404 - - 23404 - 03404
Exchange differences on translation ~ EEEINERH)
of foreign operations EREE = = = = (201) e (201) - (201)
Total comprehensive income for ER2E
the year lhestrd = = = 23,404 (201) 239,636 262,839 23,766 286,605
Conversionintoajoint stock company BB ARGAERAA 2649007 (2,808,272) - - - 159,265 - - -
Issuance of H shares upon listingon ~~ IAEAERS itk
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange BHR 77360 327530 - - - - 404890 - 404890
Dividends paid to non-controlling TR ER
equity holders FEARRE - - - - - - - (6763 (4763
Capital injection from anon-controlling ~ 3EfEfRiERS
equity holder BEANTE = - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
Transfer from retained profits el - - 18439 - - (18439) - - -
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-f=1-H 2,747,360 428,709 20,761 31,908 (156) 33595 3,262,177 116,606 3,378,783
* *

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

RMB470,321,000 (2023: RMB514,817,000) in the consolidated statements

of financial position.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 BE —Z_ME+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-MEF B S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt s AR®F T AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES LETHFBHESRE
Profit before tax MR ATA)E 319,546 363,425
Adjustments for: DA B IBAS A EE -
Depreciation of property, W - BB &
plant and equipment BAEITE 14 50,525 37,216
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 15(a) 27,483 34,281
Amortisation of other intangible assets HihEp A 17 7,932 9,296
Interest income F B2 WA 6 (38,872) (31,792)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMLEEEN
plant and equipment & 6 - (325)
Loss/(gain) on early termination of leases RATRIEAEREER (Ke) 6 193 (799)
Gain on sublease s A 6 (2,408) -
Realised fair value gains from financial BRARBESABENSH
assets at fair value through profit or loss EEMNCEEABERKE 6 (5,512) (5,402)
Unrealised fair value losses/(gains) on BRARBESABENSH
financial assets at fair value through BEMNRZHANAEE
profit or loss BB (k) 6 92,843 (21,950)
Finance costs B SRR AR 8 4,421 5,432
Impairment losses on inventories, FEREEE -
net of reversal PR # (o] 7 (538) (3,155)
Impairment loss on financial assets, CRIEERERRE
net of reversal kO 23 (797) 2,292
Deferred income recognised in profit or loss  AIEEERRIELTWA 30 (2,063) (1,128)
Share of profits of an associate DAGHEE N B 6 (80) (70)
Dividend income from equity investments JEEERAABERA
designated at fair value through other Hh 2 E R )
comprehensive income ARIERE 2 AR B A 6 (2,000) =
Foreign exchange differences, net SN 2= BB H B 6 (6,140) 7,210
444,533 394,531
Decrease in inventories FERD 28,226 331,044
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 YRR (38 M), (178,744) 77,770
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables  JEIFRIE ~ H b FEUGRIE &2
and other assets Hfth & EE R D 87,754 31,446
Increase in restricted cash SR HIIR LN (24,618) (22,056)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables BHRENFREN,ORd) 189,758 (120,184)
Increase in other payables and accruals H At FEA 3RIR K B At B B A0 64,604 121
Cash generated from operations KEmGRe 611,513 692,672
Income tax paid EAATEH (94,722) (23,727)
Interest received EUCHLE 14,117 9,401
Net cash flows generated from EIRENFTIF
operating activities REeEMEFRE 530,908 678,346
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 BEZ—ZE_NF+=-HA=1+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-E —ET-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEEBFBESRE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE WEKEZEER
plant and equipment FR1S5kI8 4,193 2,947
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWE  WERRZHEER
equipment (105,435) (133,105)
Purchase of land-use rights FEE T Hb (b FE (17,904) -
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMEREE (598) (1,900)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERAABET ABRN
through profit or loss SREE (1,027,600) (1,181,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAREBET ABEDY
at fair value through profit or loss S RBEFTSHNIE 1,244,112 1,025,402
Receipt of government grants for property, AR EA 3 ~ RS SRRk
plant and equipment FEEAR BN B 30 8,500 12,053
Increase in bank deposits with original W R R EIEA B R iE = E A #Y
maturity of more than three months when RITFFIE N

acquired (510,000) (150,000)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original TREV AR S [R B B B R i

maturity of more than three months when =B A KRITIFR

acquired 500,000 -
Interest received from bank deposits with IR REIE R BB =AM

original maturity of more than three RITFERH 2T E

months when acquired 22,547 406
Purchase of equity investments designated BEIETEAABET ALK

at fair value through other comprehensive ZEKEHBRERE

(123,047)

income =
Receipts of finance lease receivables BEAERA 6,422 -
EERAABESARMEERE

Dividend income from equity investments :
e B IR IR E 2 IR B A
2,000 -

designated at fair value through other
FEER MBS DR R R (246,000) -

comprehensive income
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEYFARESREFH (119,763) (548,244)

Purchase of shareholdings in an associate
MERDAFRTRE

HIEEt BERIT R A AR

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings 60,000 120,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB BRITREMER

other borrowings (72,691) (135,052)
Interest paid for interest-bearing bank and FTERITREMEROERNFE

other borrowings (3,008) (4,512)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEaE 15(b) (25,804) (27,635)

Dividends paid to non-controlling equity S TR RS E ARRRE
holders (8,347) (4,763)
Capital injection from a non-controlling equity 2R @ IEIF#EeiEHE AT E

holder 1,510 2,500
Dividends paid AR E (143,137) -
Repurchases of the Company’s shares EAEPAYNE]) ) (73,309) -
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BT RN WIS RIE - 424,268
Payments for listing expenses XA EmRX = (19,378)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from mMEES (FTA),/ Fis

financing activities BeneF58 (264,786) 355,428

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

10 _\éiﬁﬁﬁ%‘%&

Year ended 31 December 2024 BEZ S _NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2024 2023
k11 3 ZT=F
Notes RMB’000 RM}B'OOO
P 3 AR®T T ARETTT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Re MR EEWFEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS 146,359 485,530
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREEREEEY
of year 1,173,274 694,954
Effect of foreign exchange differences, net R EETE T 6,140 (7,210)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRRGRBEEEY
OF YEAR 1,325,773 1,173,274
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRReEEBMEHRIIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTAE R 26 1,929,900 1,417,596
Long-term bank deposits RHISRITTER 26 106,046 453,871
Long-term bank deposits and cash and bank  #R & B F AR R K 51 /R AT
balances as stated in the consolidated RERITHESRUARIR S
statements of financial position MERTTHE R 2,035,946 1,871,467
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of & : REIEIABB=EA®
more than three months RITIFH 710,173 698,193
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FABRERERTIIRA
consolidated statements of cash flows BeNEEEEY 1,325,773 1,173,274
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cupr R B R

31 December 2024 —E & +=-H=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Guoquan Food (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. was registered in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The address of
the registered office is No. 3, Lane 187, Xinghong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai. The Company was listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 November 2023.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”)
were involved in the operation of a franchised retail
network, processing and trading of meal products and
related products in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling shareholders of the Company is Mr. Yang
Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin and Mr. Li Xinhua.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. A2ARR&EEEHRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
The particulars of principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARFBMOT :
Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR 2R
i B R EER BEREQFMH
AR AEUREE LY R A BRASL TEED
Direct Indirect
B &

Shanghai Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (E/SSABRE 24 June 2020 10,000,000 chain management
HEERFERAF) service

FERBEREREERERAR HE/ R E R AR 100% - REHEEEERS

ZE-TE AZTHA 10,000,0007T

Shenzhen Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (FIISREIRTE 12 June 2020 10,000,000 chain management
BAEEREFRAT) service

RBEREBFERERAR BB/ R ARE 100% - REHEEEERRYE

Z2-RERATCH 10,000,0007C

Chengdu Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (&SRB RE 9 May 2020 10,000,000 chain management
HEERFERAR) service

KRB EREERARAR HEl/ R E R AR 100% - REHEREERSE

ZZZTERANA 10,000,0007C

Nanjing Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (F RSB RE 14 August 2019 1,000,000 chain management
BEERERATE) service

HRAERERFERERAR BB/ E R ARE 100% - REHEEEERRYE

“2-NENATHEE 1,000,0007C

Shaanxi Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (RFISAB R [E 26 August 2019 10,000,000 chain management
HEERERLA) service

RERBEREREERERAR HEl/ B R AR 100% - REHEREERY

“Z-AENRZTRA 10,000,0007C

Shanxi Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (Ll TR B R E 16 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
BEEEERAGE) service

LARERERXERERAR HE /Bl AR 100% - REHEEEERYE

“E-RFEARTRA 10,000,0007T

Henan Guoguan Supply Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (A ISR 5 January 2015 10,000,000 chain management
ERERDA) service

ERERERERERAR HE/ HE R AR 100% - REHEEEERSE

—Z-R%—RAA 10,000,0007C

Changsha Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (R HB RE 3 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
HEERERAT) service

RORBRERXERERAA HE/ HE R ARE 100% - REHEEERRE

—Z-ZFEARA=R 10,000,0007C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. A2ARR&EEEH (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R 2R
AR EER BEREARMN
B =EDYE-ES EMRA BEAAL TEED
Direct Indirect
B &

Hebei Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (It R B RE 23 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
BEERERDA) service

MILRBRERXERBR A B/ R E R AEE 100% - REHERERRYE

“Z-TFARZT=RH 10,000,0007T

Jinan Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (Er B RE 8 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
BEERFERAR) service

EERBREREERER A BB/ RE R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS

“Z-ZREAANR 10,000,0007T

Nanchang Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (B ERBRE 15 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
BEERARDNA) service

HERBRERXERERAA HE /B R AEE 100% - REHEREERYE

“Z-TFAATEA 10,000,0007C

Hangzhou Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (f/i{ A B & & 27 September 2020 10,000,000 chain management
HEERFERAA) service

MMhEREREERARAR HE/ R E R AE® 100% - REHEEERRS

“ZCREARZTER 10,000,0007C

Shenyang Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (&5 B RE 8 May 2020 10,000,000 chain management
HEEEBRDA) service

B RBEREREERERAR HE /B R AEE 100% - REHEREERRSE

“Z-TFRANR 10,000,0007C

Beijing Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (Jt RSB R E 22 August 2019 10,000,000 chain management
BXERERDA) service

TRRBREREERERAR HE /B R ARE 100% - REHEEERRS

“Z-NFENAZTZRH 10,000,0007C

Zhengzhou Guogquan Shihui Internet PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Development of
Technology Co., Ltd. (BN SRERE 15 February 2017 1,000,000 information technology
BERBRBRAR)

EMRBREBEMRBRAR HE /R E R AEE 100% - FEEEEW

“T—tF-AtHA 1,000,0007T

Guoquan Investment Management PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Investment holding
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (SBEHREEE (L) 10 September 2020 200,000,000
BRAR)

REREER (L8) BRAA HE /Bl R AR® 100% - REEKR

“Z-ZREAATA 200,000,0007T

Shanghai Guoquan Shihui Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Sale of food products
(DehEREFERRAR) 27 August 2020 2,000,000

LERRREREARA HEl/ BN AR® 100% - Ra#HE

“ZCREN\AZTER 2,000,0007T

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

RAREEER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR 28T
R EER BEREAEMN
B =R DY ES AEMRA BEAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
Guoquan (Shanghai) Import and PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% Sale of food products
Export Trade Co., Ltd. (R (L) 29 May 2020 50,000,000
EHOBHERDA)
B (L8 ELDESERAT B/ R E R AR 100% - Rm#E
ZE-TFRAZTAA 50,000,0007T
Henan Guoxiaoguan Electronic PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Development of
Commerce Co., Ltd. (AE#HNEET 17 May 2019 20,000,000 information technology
BBARLT)
Eh BT FEBERRA HE /Bl R AR 100% - AEEERN
“E-nERATEA 20,000,0007T
Guogquan Corporate Consulting PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of enterprise
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ($B %555 16 June 2021 140,000,000 management service
(L&) BRAT)
RECZEFA(LE) BRAF ﬁl/#lwm AR 100% - RECKEERRB
2 —FXAtRA 140,000,007
Anhui Guoguan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (RBIRERE 24 March 2021 10,000,000 chain management
HEERFERAA) service
THRBREREERER A ¢I/¢IW% AE® 100% - REHEEERRS
—E=— —+mA 10,000,0007T
Wuhan Guoquan Shihui Commercial PRC/Mamland China RMB 100% - Provision of supply
Management Co., Ltd. (NSRBI RE 9 April 2021 10,000,000 chain management
BEERBRAA) service
RERBRERXERERAA B/ R E R AR 100% - REHEEEEERYE
“Z--FWANA 10,000,0007T
Luyi Heyi Meat Industry Co Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB = 51%  Processing and sale of
(BEHM— W%ﬁﬁ 13 May 2020 50,000,000 meat products
Ee%ﬂ HEBRR wE/ hEA ARHE - 51% HWEERHMIREE
“Z-TFRAT=A 50,000,0007T
Luyi Wanlai Wanqu Food Co Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB = 51%  Processing and sale of
(BEZENKALRBEBAR) 7 February 2021 50,000,000 meat products
BEEAXAZRM EL\ G E/ dEA ARHE - 51% HWHEERHMIREE
ZE-—%ZRtH 50,000,0007T
Guoguan Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China RMB = 100%  Investment holding
(REGEER(LE)ERRAR) 6 April 2022 2,000,000
(formerly known as Guoquan
Investment (Hainan) Co., Ltd.)
(REIRE () BR A A)
RECEER (H8) BB HE/ R E R AR® - 100% ®EZR
(RIiBABRE (B8) BARAR) ZZC-FWARA 2,000,000
Guoguan Shihui Commercial Hong Kong HK$ 100% - Provision of supply chain
Management (Hongkong) Co., Ltd. 2 September 2022 4,400,000 management service
(REREFEER(EE)ERAF)
RERERZEE (BE) BRAA ﬁé - 4,400,0007%7T 100% - REHEEEERYE
—E-C —H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

RAREEER (&)

(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name* place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R 2R
AR EER BEREARMN
B =EDYE-ES EMRA BEAAL TEED
Direct Indirect
B &

Luyi Chengming Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB 74.79% 2.5%  Processing and sale of
(“Luyi Chengming’, (BE&EHR M 29 October 2019 55,555,556 sauce and condiment
BRAA) products

EERERRMERAF EF/;{JEM Iy AR 74.79% 25% BEHREREONIREE

—Z- AZThA 55,555,556 7T

Sichuan Chengming Food Co., Ltd. (Z9)Il  PRC/Mainland China RMB = 77.29%  Sale of sauce and
ERRRARAA) 14 June 2018 1,000,000 condiment products

M) EBRmARAR B/ R E R AEE = 77.29%  EHIGHREmEES

—2—\FAtHmA 1,000,0007C

Luyi Chengming Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB = 77.29%  Provision of supply chain
Management Co., Ltd. (B &% 14 October 2020 1,000,000 management service
BEERERAA)

BERERHEERERAR EF/EFEH@+ AR - 77.29%  REMHEEEERRG

ZZCZET AR 1,000,0007T

Guoquan Huanhuan Food Hubei Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB = 60%  Processing and sale of
(BEEERM(HIL)BRAR) 29 January 2024 15,000,000 aquatic products

REEERR (L) BRAF HE /el AR = 60% KERHMIREE

—Z-mE-A-thA 15,000,0007C

Aiguoquan Technology Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB = 70%  Development of

(Henan) Co., Ltd. (B SABRIZES 14 March 2024 1,000,000 information technology
LN

EREMBER (T8) BRAF #/*Wtﬁ+ AR = 70%  FBESKIM

—T-NF=A+MA 1,000,0007T

Taijiang Miaomiao Sour Soup Food PRC/Mainland China RMB = 39.42%  Processing and sale of
Co., Ltd. (AT HEEBSRAEBAR) 11 June 2024 20,000,000 sauce and condiment

products

AIEEERSRRBRAF ¢ﬁ/¢gmﬁ+ ARE - 39.42%  EHRARRMNIREE

ZZCMERAT-H 20,000,0007T

Guangyuan Chengming Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB = 77.29%  Processing and sale of
(BxmEHAERMBRAR) 25 December 2024 20,000,000 sauce and condiment

products

ErmEBRmERAR EF/EPEHE B AR - 77.29%  EBHRARROMNIREE

ZEMETZAZTHEA  20,000,0007T
& The English names of the PRC companies above represent * A B A A AR TR

management’s best efforts in translating the Chinese names of

these companies as no English names have been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards,
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee

which comprise all standards and

interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial information has been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCl”) which have been measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

RS

A BRI IRBBEERERE S
ZRIRR ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%i&%@‘ﬁ 4|
BREHEERS /EE'Jﬁ%ﬁ(FI e
aJr/&ﬁ'J@%@J)&Eﬁf’% FHERI R
BEBKEZE E.?ttVEE’\]E’EEJJ&aé#LA&
BRRBGRPINEERE

iR e M5 E R RIBE LA E Bl 4R
B EBRAABEFABRENESHE
ENREERAABESAEMEEE
@ ([Hf 2 E ke ]) BERE R
Sh - TR AS(EERE - REMH
BRAARE [ARE]) 25 B3
BRI MESREONBESRER
B TRIE

= S
mamE

RAEVBBRRBERARRRENER
Eﬁééki:-gfmiﬂ-fﬂz-i——lﬂ
Jtifgzﬁﬁ&i&%% - B A BEEA

NAEERKEREG CER (BHEE

BHER) - WAKBEBR2HKRE
NEEMEALBEEBISAZER

BRENTREHRRE T ZENZE
BRI AIAKEHEZER ZE
B4 (AR T AKBEIEERNE
TTRREEZREN) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRS
Accounting Standards for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of these revised IFRS Accounting
Standards in the reporting period has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures
set out in these annual consolidated financial statements.

2.1

2.2

mREE (1)
REEE(E)
HEERERBR = BEHEE

Z—HEXZEBREBE  AEESE
AL EDEHRIRET - WEK
EENEZHBRR B ERGE
BABRAR Z AR

AN B R LM B A R Z b
A I ERZMNB AR ZEEEE
(BREEE) - AfF - TAEERE
m MEN R EEE  RERREE
A&z AABEREZEFEAMAL
EXZBHNEE - AATREMEHE
Wi MR A EE L BHIEASE
EEEHERBEEEKABMERY
HREESHHEABIIREFE
(WEE) -

B BERNBERIKE

REE B BAEE 0I5 MR RN A
TREIEFTRIR T B RE G ER] -

BRI ISR R EEMEA
F165RIET HEAE
BRR & a2 BESEA
B8RS TRE) L IETE
([ZFE=FF
£57 1)
BRR & a2 HZZEEIE R
B8RS BB &
([=F==F
1£571)
ERSERE75 HEFHRETH

LEIRE RS
HERIE7HRAEET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRS Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these new and revised IFRS Accounting
Standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®
IFRS 18 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9 and
IFRS 7

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity’

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7,
IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 77

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Accounting Standards
- Volume 11

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

s Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and amended standards upon
initial application. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements
for presentation within the statement of profit or loss,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within the
statement of profit or loss into one of the five categories:
operating, investing, financing, income taxes and
discontinued operations and to present two new defined
subtotals. It also requires disclosure of management-
defined performance measures in a note and introduces
new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of
financial information. The new requirements are expected
to impact the Group’s presentation of the statement of
profit or loss and disclosures of the Group’s financial
performance. So far, the Group considers that the new and
revised standards are unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE

2.4

EXREFBER ()

EBAoREE

EB At ARSI R - BRHE
TIAKE BB AABETSE - ZD
REERTEEEENEENKEAR
HOAREE - ARERFEWET A
BEAANAENRAE  RAREETN
BER B T R R A R R VAR
Mo NEXBEHT  AEEEER
BRAAREEHEKES A ERFE
EREIGLEH] - ST ERBKRET R3E
2RSS o JFIERER AP A H Al
RER DR AR EBERE - WEHR
AR ELRSBFX

BB A REERRE R
BREAR-—REEBRE  MMEY
BEEL NN BEEANTRE - A&
BETHEMBE—BES -

EASEKE-—BHELR 28RBS
KRR~ AU B AR 4B IR B IR 4
B - L ERENSREERS
& MEHBEAENSBERIER - H
BIEFWEE S EE DT HRARLT
HETHEETHEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December 2024. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets and equity
investments at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of the reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and the entity, or
any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Buildings

BF

Leasehold improvements
HEWEEE

Machinery equipment
MR

Motor vehicles

AE

Office equipment

NS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software

Software is started at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 3 to 10 years based on the Group’s past
experience purpose on usage of the software and the
authorised period for such uses.

Trademarks and patent rights

Trademarks and patent rights acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost). Trademarks and
patent rights with finite useful lives are stated at their
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 to 20 years. The Group determines their useful lives
with reference to the patent protection periods and the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the assets.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. When no
internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Qfﬂce premises and plant
WMRMERKE
Leasehold land

HELTH

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE

2.4 EXREFHE(H)

HE (&)

AREBERAENA (B)

(b)

HEERE

RSB MREEHARK
EHHEENFRERAEE
BfE - HEMNKRBRERNK
(SEEEEHNA) BITAE
ERBRIGRIE - BURRIEH
N KA B EKIBIN KR TR
HRERSREEER O
B HENKNTBEAKES
BREETENBREEENT
FEERERERRAEETTE
RIFTHERERR - AR
MER R - TEURRIEEH
MR A FHENRE IR
BN RO FEFRGEOEER
FER R

Rt BEHENRHRER - &
REERENETZEE - &
AEEfEREHEENMR BN
HERREFE - KFKHEH
% MERBSRBANEINRER
THEMIEER - HEDRIRET
FEH R E SR = Eoh - 1
FEREN Mg
EfRES (a0 REEH X
B ENRKBEENRE
) BEHEEERERD
HEEE - MIEMTERER
fERRE(E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial investments

Investments in convertible redeemable preferred shares
and wealth management products are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL
Assets”). FVTPL Assets are measured and recorded at fair
value and any unrealised gains or losses are recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit and loss. Realised
gains and losses from the sale or withdrawal of FVTPL
Assets are determined on a specific-identification basis.

Upon initial recognition, the Group elected to classify
irrevocably certain of its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through OCI when
they meet the definition of equity under LAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statements of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCl are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that considerations
due. The Group initially measures receivables, except
for trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

2.4

EXRSFBER (&)

TREERE (&)

—AE (&)

NHERAENEREE BEARE
THBREBRADE - XIR—BOEE
BE - BERATABSENE SRK

FIRFRIN ©

F—kEER -

F R —

FE=FEER

EERR B 1) HEBIA
KRB RBEE NS R
TA  HEBEEERE
B2 AESEERS
BitE

BV ERAREER
R B AR IME X IFE
ARENEREENS
BMTAE  HEBERER
EEFERANSET

s

i

— ERERHACELEER

MERNTREE (B
FERBE XA E ARIE
MeERMEE)  HER
BREkEEATERAN

SHEE

Annual Report 2024
—E-mEER

151



152

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE

2.4

EXREFBER ()

TREERE (&)

AL %
HRTEEEZREAKEINE S
FEW IR - REAKERRESH T
HREZMEARBONTER - K
SEAHERBEEFRRRAKS
%o REBEESE  ARETRREER
R - MEESERS B HE
RERNEHEHREEEBAEBRE
B AEERBEELEFEBRER
BT —ERERE - WREBEBHA
LB AV BT RE ME R R AR B INIAR

o

g m

B 5 R HE NS FIH

B85 REMENKBVNIEZAAEE
R - IRIERR - EH REMEN
FORZHER AN - BBRTE
YTERX - ARRESBEARK -

BN

ERNIE AR EBHBAEENR
SRATER o (ERBERIZHEHK AT
Bk PSR (R HARA) REE D
BEZENEMNERRBERMNEX
RERAE LR IBmRAOER -

PRIERSEE A ERITENKGRES
BREREHRRED12EA - TR
EREAERRB AR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the moving
weighted average method and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an in significant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with,
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a) Sale of meal products and related products

Revenue from the sale of meal products and related
products is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(b) Provision of operational support services

Revenue from the provision of operational support
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

2.4

EXRSFBER (&)

WA HER (&)
BEFEHIMA (B)
@)  HEERERRIABEmR

BREMMBBERDHEE I
ARBERTIEEEEREFH
RFEE (— AR EmE)

R

(b) TERAF A IR GIRTE

RESRA HERBRAREE
HEANREREER  BAR
5 IR B Wi R e {58 P 7 5k (B T B2
A FIES -

HAUg A

MR ERMN AT HIZ Rt EERER
MFEBA - MR SESR T AN
HismERHE (ER) BihstR
KRG WALETRESHEERE
FFERIFIR

BRaE

BHAERASEERHBEERIR
%’zﬁl WERE P A SR A R B Y (JABR
BRLEERE)RER - AHRERN
AEBEETAKH (AHHEBEERER
BOEFREBEEF) HER /K

25 o
I

Annual Report 2024
—E_NEER

159



160

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statements
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting
period, but prior to the date of authorisation for issue,
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period, it will assess whether the information affects the
amounts that it recognises in its financial statements. The
Group will adjust the amounts recognised in its financial
statements to reflect any adjusting events after the
reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to
those conditions in light of the new information. For non-
adjusting events after the reporting period, the Group
will not change the amounts recognised in its financial
statements, but will disclose the nature of the non-
adjusting events and an estimate of their financial effects,
or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if
applicable.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial
statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses and deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in note 21 to
financial statements.

2.4

EXRSFBER (&)

NS

ZEVBHREAARBZS - MAR
BHBRRBNINGEERE - NEEE
TRERBBITREEDREEE  mE
ERMHHRARANRBGUAZDER
%ﬁg AEBERNINEZ S
BRXHEENEREERERALR -
mﬁéimﬂﬁ%ﬁmﬁ@%ﬁWE
RHER - WRET AL KB - MHESE
TR SR IR (G R D

EXETHHEREE

REAEE M HmERE  BEER
EHFEMERZIWA X - BE
NABEz S BARBEMEE - UKk%K
BRBZEBEHE - A RER -
SRR AR T REE S AT BE
HARARRFENEELRENREE
EITEANFE -

H e

JERAREE 2 G HEER - RIS
RAb etz 2B SN - BB EEDH T3
HYBRREBRSELEEAN 2
o

BERPIHEE
BEEBIREETI AR B RIAER
A ENE R L Z R - BLAR A

J& SR M) 7B P BE ) AR RO B TR S 1R AN ]
EMEREERA/MR - AT ERAELT
MAEESRIRNEZNEEEH
B - N E R AT A A IR RN R SR B AR B
) 8 B9 7K ST 5 R R 2 B B 7% AR & 5
B o 3 — FRHEE IR RR M T
27 ®

Annual Report 2024
—TMEFR

161



162

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on
the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products, consumer price index, deposit reserve ratio,
inflation rate and rate of unemployment) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the retail sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at 31 December 2024. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other
intangible assets, investments in associates and other
non-current assets are set out in notes 14, 15, 17, 18 and
20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2024 was RMB138,010,000 (31 December
2023: RMB138,010,000). Further details are given in note
16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying values of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2024 was
RMB22,675,000 (31 December 2023: RMB28,373,000).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December
2024 was RMB113,349,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB126,863,000). Further details are contained in note 21
to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses as a whole by the most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. The Group’s
chief operating decision maker is the chief executive
officer of the Group who reviews the Group’s consolidated
results of operations for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Accordingly, no reportable segment information is
presented.

Geographical information

Since all of the Group’s revenue are derived from
customers based in Mainland China during the reporting
period and all the Group’s non-current assets are located
in Mainland China, no further geographical information in
accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

5. REVENUE

(a)

PN
An analysis of revenue is as follows: (@) WAZHAT :
2024 2023
—ECPE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&#WA
Sale of meal products and related HEEREMMEBEER
products 6,312,246 5,940,518
Operational support services REIEE R 157,564 153,586
Total revenue from contracts with EFEHNBIBA
customers 6,469,810 6,094,104
Timing of revenue recognition WA TE R
Goods transferred at a point in time R EREZERNEY 6,312,246 5,940,518
Services transferred over time BE 2 s R RO HE RS T 88 7% 1 AR 75 157,564 153,586
Total revenue from contracts with BEFEGHBERA
customers 6,469,810 6,094,104
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREFIINARE AR #ERS

recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:

WHERE  ZE RN RS
RPN =L

2024 2023
—E-mF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Revenue recognised that was included in ¥R Ei#IET A
contract liabilities at the beginning of BRBEDN
the reporting period: ERERE
Sale of meal products and related HEBREMMABER
products 21,930 22,190
Operational support services A RS RS 70,899 68,950
Total T 92,829 91,140
Performance obligations (b) REHREE

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of meal products and related products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the meal products and related products
and payment in advance is normally required,
except for customers with credit terms, where
payment is generally due within 30 days to 180 days
from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which gives rise to variable
consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

5.

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Operational support services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before rendering the services.
The franchisees are required to pay the Group a
fixed sum of yearly operational support service fee
for each franchised store at the beginning of each
franchise period.

The Group has no revenue contract that has an
original expected duration more than one year.
Thus, management applied practical expedient
under IFRS 15 and does not disclose the aggregate
amount of the transaction prices allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially satisfied as of the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

6. OTHERINCOME AND GAINS, NET

H AW A W25 75 5

2024 2023
—E-NE =S4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFIT
Other income HAplg A
Government grants related to AT B
—income (i) — A 48,313 45,183
- assets (i) — BE(i) 2,063 1,128
Interest income FLEY A 38,872 31,792
Others Eh 13,782 5,476
Total other income R N 103,030 83,579
Gains, net Wz R R
Foreign exchange differences, net SN 2= B 6,140 (7,210)
Realised fair value gains from financial assets ZARBEABEHESHEEN
at fair value through profit or loss BEBAAEERR 5,512 5,402
Unrealised fair value changes on financial BARBEFAEENEMEEDN
assets at fair value through profit or loss RERAAEBEED
- Wealth management products — B ER (31) (36)
- Investment in Dmall Inc. —HEZHEEARAA
(“Dmall”) (Note 19) ([Z8]) higE
(BE19) (92,812) 21,986
Share of profits of an associate SMEEE A RFE 80 70
Dividend income from equity investments EEEALEBERA
designated at fair value through other ot 2 s O AR e
comprehensive income S & 7 B B 2,000 -
(Loss)/gain on early termination of leases FASRATAR LR (B51R), ek (193) 799
Gain on sublease AR Y 2,408 -
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEREKEEBEEN
plant and equipment, net Wz FEE = 325
Total (losses)/gains (B18),/ a2 (76,896) 21,336
Total other income and gains HEA Rk =858 26,134 104,915

@)

The government grants related to income have been received to
reward for the Group’s contribution to the local economic growth.
These grants related to income are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss upon receipt of these rewards and the
related conditions associated with the rewards, if any, are met.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching
to these grants.

The Group has received certain government grants related to the
investments in production plants. The grants related to assets
were recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss
over the useful lives of relevant assets. Details of these grants
related to assets are set out in note 30 to financial statements.

(i) BB R ARB R - (EAK
SEHEWLHEROBERNOEE - &
S HIR AR B0 B B 5% S 22
I E K% S REAR R R (B ) &
REFBIBRERARER - ZFHILER
FEITRO RIS L A IR -

(i) AEEBEWREETREERERESH
RIBATHBh - B4 AR RA RO f Bh A AE RS
BEAEAFHRNELREBERPRE
R ZEHEEBMAMBFEEN
TEIRFMIFES0 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

o

BR 5 A R
AEBRBATFBENS GIA) -

(crediting):
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AREET T ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold* EEFERA* 4,841,516 4,531,610
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREENE 14 50,525 37,216
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 15(a) 27,483 34,281
Expenses relating to short-term leases HIEHAEERNMYT 15(c) 12,117 9,772
Amortisation of other intangible assets** HibvER EEBE 17 7,932 9,296
Employee benefit expense (including directors’, 18 & @FIFA (B HEKEE9
chief executive’s and supervisors’ FEMES  BRITHAER
remuneration as set out in note 9): EETM) :
Wages and salaries TENF® 440,582 377,347
Pension scheme contributions, social welfare BRSHEER  H2EMR
and other welfare*** H A @ Fi|xx* 65,807 59,884
Other employee benefits HftfE B8 21,951 26,151
Research and development costs**** TSRl AR xkxk 12,383 8,537
Listing expenses X - 54,570
Impairment loss on financial assets, SREERERSSE -
net of reversal HBRER 23 (797) 2,292
Impairment losses on inventories, net of reversal ~ FEREEIE - MK EE 22 (538) (3,155)
Auditor’s remuneration A GiE 4,000 2,850
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand ~ HEWE  HE K&
equipment, net RIEEE f KT 6 - (325)
Government grants BUF# 8 6 (50,376) (46,311)
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE 2= 5 $ER 6 (6,140) 7,210
Interest income MEA 6 (38,872) (31,792)
Finance costs BT AAR 8 4,421 5,432
* Cost of inventories sold includes expense relating to depreciation * EEFERABERYE - BFE R&E
of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use E  FRELENENREEXNAES
assets and staff costs, which are also included in the respective MER  MEREELNSEEREBEE
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types ERREERER -
of expenses.
*k The amortisation of other intangible assets is included in 257 Hip B\ EEN#E - I AGEERR
administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses in TGS « SHE N DAY -
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
xRk There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group *kok R M E KA EAEREARER
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. REEARIR B B BHEFOKTE o
Kk kK *kkk

Research and development costs include expenses relating to
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of
right-of-use assets and staff costs, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of
these types of expenses.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—ME+=-H=+—H

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HIEAEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRI

2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Interest on bank and other borrowings RIT R E A AE T E 2,935 4,209
Interest on lease liabilities HEGEFER 1,486 1,627
4,421 5,836
Less: Interest capitalised B BARERE - 404
Total #ET 4,421 5,432

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBSTHABEFHM

REMUNERATION

REBLETRA  FEB QR GEHE
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) k()RR A 7] (#
BEFENDZEM) ROIFE —BREW
RERFEERESITHRABFHMET

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: U
2024 2023
—ETWE B
RMB’000 RM/B'OOO
ARETT ARBET T
Fees we 1,440 288
Other emoluments: EAbEEY
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R AREYRE 7,384 6,970
Performance related bonuses HEWiES 60 3,085
Pension scheme contributions RIKS TR 909 869
Subtotal NEE 8,353 10,924
Total st 9,793 11,212
(@)  Independent non-executive directors (@) BUFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive

AEEXNTEILIERTES

directors during the year were as follows: MEESIT
2024 2023
—E-WEF —To=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Mr. Zeng Xiaosong TEEIA A 360 72
Ms. Yu Fang Jing BPErEE Lz 360 72
Mr. Li Jianfeng TRl 360 72
Mr. Shi Kangping MERETF S 360 72
Total BT 1,440 288

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year.

ARG B O A AR R 3 A At B S
NFEILERITEZNHE

Annual Report 2024

—EomEER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MY

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EENES{THRAEHMH (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors, the (b) HITEE - HHTEE  Re
chief executive and supervisors THRAEBRES
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e RMR BiKE
BWER ENRS SRR HaE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fizE AR®ET T ARETT ARETT ARETT
2024 —TopE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Xianjin Meng mRERE 1,320 - 136 1,456
Mr. Haolei An ZEREE 1,660 - 140 1,800
Ms. Na Luo L 1,200 - 136 1,336
Subtotal et 4,180 - 412 4,592
Chief executive: BETHAR
Mr. Mingchao Yang ZEBLE 1,440 - 136 1,576
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Mr. Jiayu Yi KEFHE - - - -
Mr. Xinghai Zeng TEGLE i = = — =
Mr. Zhengzheng Liu Eliziedita - = = =
Subtotal NGt - - - -
Supervisors: -
Ms. Min Zheng Batt 960 - 136 1,06
Ms. Yifan Zhang RENZT 481 - 123 604
Mr. Boyuan Zhang RIAREE i 39 - 8 47
Ms. Hong Xue ELt i 284 60 9% 438
Subtotal et 1,764 60 361 2,185
Total aast 7,384 60 909 8,353

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S o.
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, the

EERBSITRASHMH (F)

(b) HITES - FATES &S

chief executive and supervisors (Continued) ITTHAERESE (&)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e RMR N | B#he
EWER EaRe ATl LiaE
Notes RMB’000 RMIB'OOO RM/B’OOO RMB’000
Mzt AR%FT AREFT AREFT AREFT
2023 —E-=E
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Xianjin Meng RTERE 1,320 750 135 2,205
Mr. Xinhua Li EMELE iv 330 - & 363
Mr. Haolei An TEREE 1,235 1,250 135 2,620
Ms. Na Luo EFTt 1,000 200 185 1,335
Ms. Jiewen Li FHEXLL v 142 - 29 171
Subtotal g 4,027 2,200 467 6,694
Chief executive: BETHAR
Mr. Mingchao Yang e 1,440 600 135 2,175
Non-executive directors: FRTES :
Mr. Jiayu Vi REFEE = = = =
Mr. Xinghai Zeng TEgLE = - - -
Mr. Zhengzheng Liu BIgFEF R = = = S
Subtotal Nat _ - _ _
Supervisors: BEE:
Ms. Min Zheng Lifng an 960 200 135 1,295
Ms. Yifan Zhang FEALL 403 80 102 585
Mr. Boyuan Zhang RAR T E i 140 5 30 175
Subtotal et 1,503 285 267 2,055
Total aast 6,970 3,085 869 10,924
Notes: MiaE

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Xinghai Zeng resigned in August 2024.

Mr. Boyuan Zhang resigned in April 2024.

Ms. Hong Xue was appointed in April 2024.

Mr. Xinhua Li and Ms. Jiewen Li resigned in March 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director

or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

(i) TEFAEAEN — T _MEN\A
BHT -

(if) RIDREER T _WFWMA
BHET -

(iii) ER TR T U A
R

(v ERERERFRXLLLR
SEC=HZARE

FEEHEBEEERERTRA
BHEXFABRETAHEH
ke
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10.

The five highest paid employees during the year included

no director (2023: two directors), details of whose

remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the

remuneration for the year of the five (2023: three) highest

paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follow:

hEBREHHES

REE  hEaBaTMEETETE
EX(ZZ==F mMBESF) £
FHFEIB B £ 3EQ  BRA QA E
ERBERTHRABZIIRE (ZF
ZEF =R EaiMESNEM
5T

2024 2023

“E-OF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETF T

Salaries e 8,681 6,017
Performance-related bonuses B 3,464 1,473
Pension scheme contribution RIKEFT B 635 267
Total #aEt 12,780 7,757

The number of non-director and non-chief executive

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

FEEMERZRTHRABRNZSH M
BEAB (HEZMENFRIATE
BT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2024 2023
—ETF B
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 3,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,290,001 (ZFERARK?2,290,0017T
to RMB2,748,000) = ARM2,748,0007T) 4 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,748,001 (ZERAR2,748,001 TE
to RMB3,206,000) AE#3,206,0007T) 1 -
Total st 5 3

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

11.

INCOME TAX 1. FiEH
2024 2023
k- 11 3 —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Current - PRC EH —

Charge for the year FARZH 89,044 48,842

Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior AEBREBTIR
years (EBEERE) 2,642 (2,445)
Deferred income tax (note 21) EEFTISFR (FizE21) (13,378) 53,626
Total st 78,308 100,023

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% unless
subject to tax relief and exemption.

Pursuant to “The Announcement on Relevant Tax Policies for
Further Supporting the Development of Smallscaled Minimal
Profit Enterprise and Individual Industrial and Commercial
Households” (Announcement [2023] No. 12) issued by MOF
and National Tax Bureau on 2 August 2023, for a small-
scaled minimal profit enterprise with an annual taxable
profit below RMB3,000,000 (RMB3,000,000 included),
on top of the tax relief policies stipulated under “The
Announcement of Implementation on Inclusive Tax Relief
Policy of Small-scaled minimal profit enterprise” issued
by MOF and National Tax Bureau” (Cai shui [2019] No. 13)
and “The Announcement on the Further Implementation
of Preferential Income Tax Policies for Small-scaled
Minimal Profit Enterprise” (Cai shui [2022] No. 13). That
is, for a small-scaled minimal profit enterprise whose
annual taxable income does not exceed RMB3,000,000,
the taxable income is reduced by 25% and the enterprise
income tax shall be paid at a rate of 20% from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2027.

AEBEZEREENELBNRE
AL B B QR M & & E T RDA
R BB

el e

BRIBPEPZERETE ([REMRER
E]) RIEFEFEFEERED - B
W BN AEBFEME AT
BT ER25% °

BEABRIRBERRER T _=F
NAZBEBH(ERE TN
WMEENERIHFEREBEHRER
BHAE)(AE[2023]1125%) « 5
AMACEFEATTETEBRAR
30087t (EARKI00E L) BEB
5 1 B BUEh K B A 4R S B4 A C I
A BB /NS 2 R 1 R UL S BUR
BB A (B 5[2019]135%) R (AR
H— B IHEEMSHEERER
BIREY (BABI[2022]135% ) 45 5 B0
MBERER L E—TEHERE - 8
HERMWBATSETBBARE300
Br/ N EMAIRE - BATISE
BMA25% W T -_=F—H—Hi
BT +F+-_A=1+—HI%K20%
BB R BN EFTEH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

11.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
HK profit tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the Reporting period, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25%
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled and/or operate to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

11.

Fri&®t (&)
BB

BEBREARTENEVHERREBE
A ET R A B IZ R R 16.5% 5T
REEG EXAKEN—REHERR
BRON - %A ERFTE IS ARG
MER - %MW B AR ERB A EN
52,000,000/ 70128.25% H) Tt X 4%
B MER TR RIZ16.5%H)
T RBH o

ERARBRBATFBORE (BARE
RERZEHB AR, EEME
AUAERAEERR) MHE (RER
BiR) BRI ¢

2024 2023
k- 11 3 —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Profit before tax R F5 BT A1) 319,546 363,425
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BRPBEEMEHNE25%
sHSEVEIE 79,887 90,856
Effect of different tax rate TRBRENTE 97 312
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or HEETERKHMTE RBEMH
enacted by local authority BIRH X (1,989) (1,020)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of THAE BAf TE B
previous periods 2,642 (2,445)
Expenses not deductible for tax R 0] 4,745 4,580
Research and development super deduction  FHEEINET AR (3,052) (1,696)
Tax losses and deductible temporary AR KT IEE 18 & AT 0
differences not recognised R R 2,838 9,436
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BEHEESANRIEEE (6,860) =
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BEAEBENEBRREMNNTRE 78,308 100,023

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2024 2023
—E-mF —T=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Proposed final dividend - RMB0.0746 EEAARE — 8REBRR
(2023: RMB0.0521) per ordinary share AR#0.0746L (ZF==4F :
BRETERARE0.05217T) 200,136 143,137

The proposed 2024 final dividend for the year is based on
the total number of shares of the Group as of 28 March
2025 (excluding treasury shares), which is 2,682,783,200
shares and is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,743,017,000 (2023:2,681,919,000) outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding before the conversion into a joint stock
company was determined by assuming that the paid-in
capital had been fully converted into share capital at the
same conversion ratio as upon transformation into a joint
stock company in February 2023.

13.

BE-ZE-_MEFERAREUREE
BE_Z-_AF=A=-+/\BHHEH
(TEIEERFR) #£202,682,783,200
B B EAE - WAFARBRERER
FERBAS LIERFAIER -

BRAREEREREARLE
R & F

EREARBHNESBIHBRESTAREAR
ANEBEFEEFMBERANFEERTER
A& HY hn#E 9 802,743,017,0000% (=
T =4 :2,681,919,0008%)5+H °
M R AR A BRI E 1T E @R N
BEAHIBREEREABIR_TZ
=FZAKHIARN A GIRERNE
B EBHERARAMETE

2024 2023
—ETWE —E=F

Profit attributable to owners of the parent B ARER AEEFE
(RMB’000) (AR¥FIT) 230,558 239,636

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the basic earnings per
share calculation

SAEESRERRMNERD
BB R 2

2,743,017,000 2,681,919,000

Basic earnings per share (RMB cents)

BRERAN (ARED)

8.41 8.94

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during both current and prior years.

REERBEFRGECRITELE
SHERK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% BEKRZRE

Leasehold ~ Machinery Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF  HENERE  HERR AE HORE HRIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEETn ARETn ARMTn ARETn  ARETn ARETR
31 December 2024 ZBCMETZAZ+-B
At 1 January 2024: RF-RE-A-R:
Cost A 289,690 13,404 104,734 24,116 40,201 37,269 509,394
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERAE
impairment (15,229) (6,767) (9,704) (14,410) (22,464) - (68,574)
Net carrying amount BEEE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17,737 37,249 440,820
At 1 January 2024, net of acoumulated ~ RZF-ME-A-A-
depreciation and impairment TREsERAE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17,737 37,249 440,820
Additions hE 4971 3,516 19,409 3377 27,830 48,560 107,663
Depreciation provided ENGHREE
during the year (17,610) (2,787) (12,919) (4,790) (12,419) - (50,525)
Disposals e (178) (468) (3,092) (59) (396) - (4,193)
Transfers &3 16,657 3,112 32,064 26 449 (52,308) -
At 31 December 2024, net of accumulated R=F-M&+-A=+-A"
depreciation and impairment B2 HERAE 278,301 10010 130,492 8,260 33,201 33,501 493,765
At 31 December 2024: R-Z-RET-R=1+-R:
Cost A 311,140 17,738 152,674 27,451 66,925 33,501 609,429
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERNE
impairment (32,839) (7,728) (22,182) (19,191) (33,724) - (115,664)
Net carrying amount FEFE 278,301 10,010 130,492 8,260 33,201 33,501 493,765

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - - BEKRME (H)
(CONTINUED)
Leasehold  Machinery Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles eq)ujpment in progress Total
BF HEMERE BhRE E BAR EIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
31 December 2023 ZBCZETCAST-A
At 1 January 2023: R-E-=%-f-A:
Cost A 216,465 14,799 55,209 22,450 36,382 50,828 396,133
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERRE
impairment (2,807) (10,152) (1612) (9,709) (14,027) = (38,307)
Net carrying amount BE#E 213,658 4,647 53,597 12,741 22,355 50,828 357,826
At1January 2023, et of accumulated ~ R=F==F-F-H-
depreciation and impairment NBEHFERRE 213,658 4547 53,507 12741 22,35 0828 357806
Additions AE 8,672 4,697 26,703 1,760 6,866 74,135 122,832
Depreciation provided EREHERE
during the year (12,422) (2,218 (8,157) (4,778) (9,641) - (37.216)
Disposals L& = (489) (274) (17) (1842) = (2622)
Transfers &3 64,553 - 23,161 - - (87,714) -
At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated R-F-=F+-A=1+-H"
depreciation and impairment NBEHFERRE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17737 V249 4080
At 31 December 2023: R-BZ=F+ZA=+-R:
Cost A 289,690 13,404 104,734 24,116 40,201 37,249 509,394
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERNE
impairment (15,229) (6,767) (9,704) (14,410) (22,464) - (68,574)
Net carrying amount KEFE 274,461 6,637 95,030 9,706 17,737 37,249 440,820

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s buildings
and motor vehicles with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately RMB124,374,000 (2023: RMB220,199,000)
and nil (2023: RMB225,000) were pledged to secure bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group, respectively
(note 27).

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group
has obtained the property ownership certificates for all
buildings.

RZFB_NF+_A=+—H K&
B AR FENARKE124,374,000
T(ZZEZ=%F : AR®220,199,000
TIRE(ZZTE_=F: ARK
225,0007) W& TEFRAEE D B
BH - EAAEEERRITREME
REIPER (MHsE27) o

RZBE-_NF+—_A=+—HE=Z
—=F+_A=+—H ' XEEER
SBEEFNEEMEEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for items of office premises
and plant used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases
of office premises and plant generally have lease terms

between 2 and 6 years.

15. HE

REBERERA

AEBRELSEMARIYELRRE
HBEFVHERY - AREERAE
TREERAS0FNEE T IEL —
REMK - BEFEREZS I WEE
BEFRIERIFENK - MAVENEE

WS- F2E64F -

(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) (EAEEE
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and the RAFEE  FRAREENERT
movements during the year are as follows: BERESHINT
Office
premises Leasehold
and plant land Total
ENE S
REE HELi st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—H—H 51,218 101,112 152,330
Additions NE 24,966 S 24,966
Depreciation charge wESZH (31,667) (2,614) (34,281)
Early termination of leases RATZIETHE (7,301) = (7,301)
As at 31 December 2023 and HWZ=ZZT=_=F+—-A
1 January 2024 =t+—AkKk
—ZE-MFE—-HA—H 37,216 98,498 135,714
Additions NE 33,273 17,904 51,177
Depreciation charge WweEZH (24,732) (2,751) (27,483)
Early termination of leases RARIEHEE (3,955) - (3,955)
Sublease B (4,703) = (4,703)
As at 31 December 2024 R_T_m&
+=ZA=+—8H 37,099 113,651 150,750

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

15.

LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has obtained
the land use right certificates for all leasehold land
(2023: the leasehold land with carrying amount of
RMB4,024,000 was in the process of obtaining the
certificates).

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s
leasehold land with an aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,509,000 (2023:
RMB89,079,000) was pledged to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 27).

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

15.

HE (&)
AEEERFRA (H)

(a)

(b)

EHELE (&)

R-ZE-_WMFE+=—A=+—
H AEEEREMEEFH
THFERAER(ZTE =% :
BEEEBEAARMK4,024,000
T E i B IETE IR F
=) e

RZTEZMFE+ZA=+—
B AEEREFEAEOA
K#11,509,000c (=T ==
& AR%89,079,0007T) &Y
ETHELHE AERNEEA
BERITRE KRR (HIEE27) o

HEAE

RER - HEARNKEER
ZEIT -

2024 2023

“E-MF —Eo=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEREE 30,011 39,153

New leases e 33,273 24,966

Accretion of interest recognised FNERE

during the year F) 238N 1,486 1,627

Payments BN (25,804) (27,635)

Early termination of leases RARIETEE (3,762) (8,100)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—HB8KAE 35,204 30,011
Analysed into: BUATIER 247 :

Current portion BIHEAER 2> 16,164 17,849

Non-current portion JEBNERER > 19,040 12,162

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 40 to the financial statements.

HE A ERBIH DT M 5
RMTET40HEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

15.

16.

LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBIEREBA (B)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) MHEHEREZBRNESEN
to leases are as follows: T 8
2024 2023
—E-QNE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARETFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,486 1,627
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets f#B#EEEHESTH 27,483 34,281
Loss/(gain) on early termination of leases  IEATAR IFTREHIEE /(Ues) 193 (799)
Gain on sublease LN (2,408) =
Expense relating to short-term leases HGHHE AN 12,117 9,772
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ~ RIBZEERAAEEE 38,871 44,881

(d) The total cash outflows for leases are disclosed in
note 33(c) to the financial statements.

(d) HEMIR &R ARENR ISR
KT EE33(c) i EE o

GOODWILL 16. B8
2024 2023
—E-E TEC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BE+ZA=+—HHK
and 31 December &K&EEE/?TE 138,010 138,010

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of Luyi
Chengming Business for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the Luyi Chengming Business
CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets or forecasts approved by senior management
covering a five-year period. The long-term growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the period is
based on the estimated growth rate of the unit taking into
account the industry growth rate, past experience and the
medium or long-term growth target of the Luyi Chengming
Business CGU.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

16.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The following table set forth the pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections, the forecasted
average sales growth rate and gross profit margin used to
prepare cash flow projections and long-term growth rate
used for the dates indicated:

mE (&)

AR R ()
TREFIE S BT RADATIEER
- ARRERSRERANERT
HHERREREMNEURARAR
BRI RE -

Average sales Average gross

growth rate

profit margin

(during the (during the
five-year five-year Long-term Pre-tax
period) period) growth rate discount rate

FHEE

BRE FHER=R
(AEHRE) (RFEHE) REOBERE BiAIAhR =
31 December 2023 —E-=F+-A=1+—H 13.6% 23.9% 2.2% 19.3%
31 December 2024 —E-MFE+=-—A=1+—H 12.6% 22.1% 2.0% 16.8%

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
Luyi Chengming Business CGU as at 31 December 2023
and 2024. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill of Luyi
Chengming Business CGU:

Budgeted sales amounts — The budgeted sales amounts
are based on the historical sales data and market outlook
perceived by management.

Budgeted gross margins — The bases used to determine
the values assigned to the budgeted gross margins are the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, adjusted for expected efficiency
gains and expected market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific
risks relating to the CGU.

R-E_=FR-_FT_NF+_A=
+—H HAEEARMEBREES
BUMEREBERERTHRR - TX
? MEEEENAER S REEARE
PARMEBRCEEEETHER
BEAANSEEIERE

REHER - REHERTINELH
EEBEMEEEHMBHMRNTERS
g -

REEFE - URBEFER—FM15
BWTPHEMERQER  RETREE
MERFDEMNEE - WHAERUEW
B RIS ERELFHE

PRTRLHR E — BRIR R RN G EL
BUARNEERR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

16.

17.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the Luyi Chengming Business CGU and
discount rate are consistent with external information

sources.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any

reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on

which the recoverable amount is based would not cause

the carrying amount of the Luyi Chengming Business CGU

to exceed its recoverable amount as at 31 December 2024.

mE (&)
AR E R ()

PEEERARBEBREELEMT
SERRNEIZBEINEENRREE
SNERE AR — B

RABEERE  JRESFEATKE
MEZEBRENTAEETREETIET
CEHEHRREBRSEAEMD
REEBHER-_Z-_N&+=-_A=
+—Bmr e £EE -

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HMEEEE
Software Trademarks Patent rights Total
0 [i5p: =V ): st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR% T AR¥T AR®T R
31 December 2024 —E-ME+=A=+—H
Costat 1 January 2024, netof ~ R-T=—MME—[—H#H
accumulated amortisation B - 0Bk 25T # 7,248 50,814 171 58,233
Additions NE 598 - - 598
Amortisation provided FREHEBE
during the year (2,203) (5,711) (18) (7,932)
At 31 December 2024 i S S
+=-A=+—H 5,643 45,103 153 50,899
At 31 December 2024: RZZTZ4F
T-RA=t—8:
Cost DEN 19,107 57,065 190 76,362
Accumulated amortisation G (13,464) (11,962) (37) (25,463)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,643 45,103 153 50,899
31 December 2023 ZEZ=f+ZHA=1+—H
Costat 1January 2023, netof ~R-ZE-=%—H—HH
accumulated amortisation B - kR R 4,331 56,544 189 61,064
Additions NE 6,465 = = 6,465
Amortisation provided FRBHEE
during the year (3,548) (5,730) (18) (9,296)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%F
+=-—A=+—H 7,248 50,814 171 58,233
At 31 December 2023: RZZEZ=F
T-RA=t—8:
Cost B 18,509 57,065 190 75,764
Accumulated amortisation ESE §i] (11,261) (6,251) (19) (17,531)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,248 50,814 171 58,233

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REZEATNIRE

2024 2023

- 11 3 —EC=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Share of net assets EBLEEFE 127,093 2,070

Goodwill on acquisition WHEEENEE 174,533 -
Total share of net assets and goodwill on EIEEEFER

acquisition WERE £ MR 301,626 2,070

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances with
the associate are disclosed in note 37 to the financial
statements.

In December 2024, the Company acquired additional 41%
equity interest in Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. (“Daixiaji”)
at cash consideration of RMB246,000,000. Prior to the
acquisition of the 41% equity interest, the Group held 10%
equity interest in Daixiaji through Guoquan Investment
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was recorded as an
equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income in the prior year. The information
about that equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income is disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements.

According to the 2021 equity investment agreement in
respect of Daixiaji, the 10% equity interest is subject to
a voting rights proxy arrangement. Immediately following
the completion of the acquisition in December 2024,
although the Group will hold a total of 51% equity interest
in Daixiaji, Daixiaji will not be a subsidiary but an associate
of the Group, as Guoquan has only 41% voting rights. The
portion of its net profit attributable to the Group will be
recognised in Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

A& B8 5 WA K BB 2 A )
H B AE BRI BB I A A SRR MY 3£ 37 ©

RZZBZWEF+ZR  AREINRS
HE AR 246,000,000 T EELLE
FRIBTRMAR AR ([EIBL]) B
41%PRHE - RURIE 41 %RRIERT » RS
EEBAARRZENBE A RRBERE
B (/) BARATFAERIERL10%
M BREARENBEFEARARE
ERAABE AL MEE KK
BIRE - BETRAABETALR
fib 2 H W & B IRIE IR B B B R ER
B SRR MIRE19 -

BIEERRCAAN T = —FRE
HEWZE  10%BREIEEERTR
PEARRR - BERE T - ME+ = AUE
ENE  BEAEESFARIBRA
H51%m B - BRBLWIEAE
EHMBAR - MEAEEMEEQ
a - RARBBER41%MITEHR o
AEBEREFFAIETD BRAEE
IREEERPHER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

18. REZELQRNRE (F)

Particulars of the associates are as follows: B N RIMFIBRT ¢
Proportion of
nominal value
of registered Proportion
Place of capital held of voting Principal
Name operation by the Group power held activity
AEE T
HEMER
=18 Feg—$: k1 EELF  FriFRERELA FEEK
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. PRC/ 51% 41%  Processing and
Mainland China sale of paste
products
IERBLERMARAR B MEEMA
H B A3 NI RSHE
Henan Maojiu Xiaopu Business PRC/ 20% 20% Management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China service
(“Maojiu Xiaopu”)
BN EER HE BRI
BRAR ([FBE ] B AT b

The Group’s shareholdings in associates all comprise
equity shares held by the Company, except for Maojiu
Xiaopu, the shareholding in which is held through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Daixiaji, which is considered a material associate of the
Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the
processing and sale of paste products and is accounted
for using the equity method. As at 31 December 2024, the
carrying amount of Group’s investment in Daixiaji was
RMB299,476,000.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. REIEQRMNIKRE (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR R RS B B 7 B R 2 B AR
information in respect of Daixiaji reconciled to the carrying E A REERN R
amount in the consolidated financial statements:
31 December
2024
—B-mE
+=A=t+—H
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Current assets MENEE 219,917
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill EMBEE - TRIENE 249,837
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate W gE e N R EA RS R 342,221
Current liabilities mEaE (224,767)
Net assets BEFE 587,208
Net assets, excluding goodwill BETE  TRERE 244,987
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate: — EAZRERE A& N Al m A ¥R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEBAELY 51%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, AEBEEHE A REEFE
excluding goodwill TEEmE 124,943
Goodwill on acquisition WIEEEMEE 174,533
Carrying amount of the investment HERmE 299,476

19.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not

individually material:

IR B DI AR [ B 2 ) O B AR A A

Ex

BEE2IALAERX -

2024 2023

—E-oME —Bo=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREBFIT

Share of the associate’s profit for the year FEAL R & R R AFE 80 70
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s NIl

investments in the associate REREERR 2,150 2,070

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19.

EERAAEEFAEMZE

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Wz RERE
INCOME
2024 2023
—EZWEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRERE - RAAEE
J&T Global Express Limited (‘J&T Express”) 1% R RIBEIRK AR AR
([BRFE]) 62,784 158,561
Dmall (i) EZ210) 42,995 -
Subtotal INEE 105,779 158,561
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ELTRERE  RANEE
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. (ii) 8RR R AR A A i) - 52,271
Lekou Xiamen Technology Co., Ltd. 20 (EF) RHEAREAR]

(“Lekou Xiamen”) (g0 (&) 1) 33,916 42,258
Subtotal aNas 33,916 94,529
Total et 139,695 253,090

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated BARAEBR A M RERE AR

at fair value through OCI as the Group considers these

investments to be strategic in nature.

’Ii{"*é' : E&EZ%&&TT%&E%#HE?
AABEF AR ME RS -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR YL

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19.
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (CONTINUED)

(i) The Group held convertible redeemable preferred
shares of Dmall and the investment was recorded
as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
in the prior year and up to the date of conversion in
December 2024 (Note 6). In December 2024, in view
of Dmall’s listing in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the convertible redeemable preferred shares were
converted to the ordinary shares and the investment
in Dmall is designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income accordingly.

(ii) In December 2024, the Company acquired
additional 41% equity interest in Beihai Daixiaji
Food Co., Ltd. (“Daixiaji”) with cash consideration
of RMB246,000,000. Prior to acquiring the 41%
equity interest, the Group held 10% equity
interest in Daixiaji through Guoquan Investment
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was recorded
as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income in prior year.
The Group’s investment in Daixiaji transfer from
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income to investments in
associates, upon the completion of the acquisition,
and the accumulated gain recognised in other
comprehensive income of RMB3,476,000 was
transferred to retained earnings. The information
about investments in associates is disclosed in note
18 to the financial statements.

EERQAABEFAHMGEZE
W R ERE (&)

(i)

(i)

AEEFEZEH T ERAELD
BER  BHEKENBAFE
FEE-ZT-NF+ = AR
AEARABZAREE AR
mHeREE (Mie) - R=
ENFE+=F ERZEHR
BRI LT - A ERATIE
EEERERRERR  RNE
B ERE ARANEE
FTAE M2 EE ©

R-DZ-_WE+-F - K
RAEAINBEHEARK
246,000,000 0 W BE 4L /8 3 1R
RERMARAE ([FIEEL])
BN %R - RURIE 41 %
RRIERT - AEEBEBANE R
BEMEARMBIREEE (£
B) BRARBERERLI10%
gt - BRAKRENBTFEEA
IRBETIRANBESAELML
SEW A RIERE - WES
HEKE - AEERZRLH
BERETEAREBENAR
b2 EmREMREREE AR
BEARINKRE REMEE
KWHERNETHaE AR
3,476,000 7T Bl 8% 4 = 28 17 A
B BERBERRNERED
BRI RN KR8 -

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. HiERBEE
2024 2023
—E-NEF —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREF T
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment %1% - /= MR ENTEN KIE 15,443 22,273
Prepayment for other intangible assets HAb R & E BN RIE - 2,251
Total #at 15,443 24,524
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX 21. EEBIE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are FEMIBEENANFEENZEHNT
as follows:
Unrealized
Losses Unrealized loss from
available for loss from financial
offsetting equity  assetsat
against  Deductible investment  fair value
future  advertising designated through
taxable expensesin Lease at fair value profit or
profits ~ thefuture liabilities through OCI loss Accruals Total
RERAR
EfETA
Hh2E RAAEE
MEHRR WENRE TAREN
ERBAE  RRAOR REMA SREEN
BB EEMX  HEEE  BREE KEREE  BEHER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥TR AR%TRT ARMTRT AR®TR ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2024 NZE-ME-A—-AH 28,373 77 7,503 - - 40,558 76,511
Deferred tax (charged)/ FRRGEERR
credited to the consolidated (1), 5T A8
statements of profitorloss ~ EERAE
during the year (5,698) (77) 1,288 - 3,165 1,211 (111)
Deferred tax credited to OCI s AEM2EYEH
EERE = = = 33,850 = - 33,850
Gross deferred tax assetsat ~ R=FZ[UF
31 December 2024 +=ZA=1+—Rf
BRREEESE 22,675 - 8,791 33,850 3,165 41,769 110,250
Losses
available for
offsetting
against Deductible
future advertising
taxable expenses in Lease
profits the future liabilities Accruals Total
A AR
JERBLRE RIRATHRL
BB BERX HEAE BT ER @5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AEETFT AREFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=F—f—H 75,321 307 9,788 37,898 123,314
Deferred tax (charged)/credited ~ FRRGABER
to the consolidated statements  (¥18), /5t A4
of profit or loss during the year ~ #EFEF{IE (46,948) (230) (2,285) 2,660 (46,803)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 i e
December 2023 +ZA=+—Hi
BENIAEERE 28,373 77 7,508 40,558 76,511

As at 31 December 2024, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses of RMB113,349,000
(2023: RMB126,863,000) arising in Mainland China, which
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the tax losses and deductible temporary differences
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

RZE-_NF+_A=+—H ' K5t
AR B R i E A FO B TR S 1R ISR Y IR
ERIBEEAARE 113,349,000
—E-=%F: AR¥126,863,000
TT)  BR—ERFERIE - KR
RIEFRFAAH o

I 4 L B0 TR 5 18 B AT R B 1 = B
RRAELEHAEE  RA/ZEER
AR S E R B EEC A —
BEBOMBLAR - B TNKAIEARE
AR R] A DA SH A TR B 1R R AT
R IEEER ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21. EEHE (&)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year BEHEBERNFEMNESOT
are as follows:
Unrealised
Unrealised  gains from
gains from financial
equity assets at Asset
investments fairvalue  revaluation Unrealised
designated through  arising from  Accelerated  gains from
Right-of-use  at fair value profit or business tax time
assets  through OCI loss combinations  depreciation deposits Total
RERA
ABEA
A2E  RAAEE
Kl FAREN EBaH
REREN LREEN BEW EHERH
RREEE AERUE  ARRKE BEEfN MEHERE ARRUE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE  ARMTRT ARETR ARMTR AR%TR AR%Tr ARETR
At 1 January 2024 W-Z-mE-F-A 6,939 11,260 20,038 34,458 10,070 - 82,765
Deferred tax (credited)/  FRRGABHER
charged to the (FEA)/ 4Bty
consolidated BREHE
statements of profit or
loss during the year 1,287 - (20,038) (2,398) 391 7,269 (13,489)
Deferred taxcharged  REMZENEINRA
to OC! EEHE - (11,260) - - - - (11,260)
Gross deferred R-E-ME
tax liabilities at 31 +ZA=1+—Rf
December 2024 BERHESRES 8,226 - - 32,060 10,461 7,269 58,016
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year BEMIBEERAFEENZEEHNT
are as follows:
Unrealised
gainsfrom  Unrealised
equity  gains from Asset
investments financial  revaluation
designated assetsat fair ~ arisingfrom  Accelerated
Right-of-use  atfairvalue value through business tax
assets  through OCl  profitorloss combinations  depreciation Total
BERAN
{BEA
Et2E  RAREE
Wae  FtAREE EBa0
REREN  SREEN EAM
fRREAE  RERKE  ARRUE BESM MEHERE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT  ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARBTRT  ARETE
At 1 January 2023 WZE==%-A—H 10,311 3,459 14,542 36,963 2,866 68,141
Deferred tax (credited)/charged tothe  FRNGABER
consolidated statements of profitor (3 A) /41B&)
loss during the year LR (3,372) = 5,496 (2,506) 7,204 6,823
Deferred tax charged to OCI REM2EYRENIRR
EEHE = 7,801 = = = 7,801
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZZ=F
31 December 2023 +ZA=1+—A#%
ERFERELE 6,939 11,260 20,038 34,458 10,070 82,765
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21. EEHIE (&)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and HEVNEMMNES ATEEHEBEEE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statements RBEEREE MR EKAEHE -
of financial position. The following is an analysis of the AT A BmE BN AE BRI
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting TRIBESRIEL DT
purposes:
2024 2023
—EoMEF —Bo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R E MBI R A
consolidated statements of financial HERRRIETIR
position BEFE 86,793 60,160
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RS BARAERA
the consolidated statements of financial REVIEETIE
position AaETE 34,559 66,414
22. INVENTORIES 22. ®E
2024 2023
—EWE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Raw materials F’ﬂiﬁﬂ 65,553 87,945
Finished goods EDe 626,479 632,313
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE (205) (743)
Total #Et 691,827 719,515

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the reversal of

inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted to
RMB538,000 (2023: reversal of RMB3,155,000).

BE_Z-_WF+_A=+—HLF
B REERAERNTERR A A
ER#538,0007T (ZE==4 : &R A

R#3,155,0007T) °
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EFEWFEIE
2024 2023
—EoNF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Trade receivables B Z WA 240,309 61,565
Impairment RE (6,505) (7,302)
Net carrying amount BREFE 233,804 54,263

Included in the Group’s trade receivables was an amount
due from a related party of RMB32,501,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB4,000), which is recoverable
within one year.

Advance payment is normally required for the sale to
franchisees in Mainland China except for direct sales
customers where credits are granted. The credit period
is generally one month, extending up to six months for
major direct sales customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to various diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. The
balances of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE

RZZBEZWOF+=A=+—H " iA
NEEE 5 FE WA FE UL BB 7 3K
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F: AR®4,00070) @ AR —F AU
@ °
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NBRIEHIE R EERIEFIR - AR
BEEEHFHPFIABEERREER
K-SR REEECHE
Bl - R EXFTR R AKEHE HE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

B 5 RWRIE (&)

RBERR - B HREFIR (FNERE
BEE) REZAHNKREOTOT

2024 2023

—E-E —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARBT T

Within 1T month MEAR 120,548 30,598
1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 93,410 5,291
3to 6 months 3ZE6fEA 18,287 1,600
6to 12 months 6=1218A 1,559 16,771
1to 2 years 1229 - 3
Total st 233,804 54,263

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

o REWFIEREBERENZEH
I

2024 2023

—E-mF —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBFIT

At beginning of year REA]) 7,302 5,010
Impairment loss, net of reversal (note 7) BEEE - MREE (MHE7) (797) 2,292
At end of year RER 6,505 7,302

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for
all trade receivables. The Group overall considers the
characteristics of the shared credit risk and the days past
due of the trade receivables to measure the expected
credit losses. Majority of the receivables were neither
past due nor impaired and relate to diversified customers
for whom there was no recent history of default and in
general, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

N ER 18 e P B R B 7 R o R L 9 5%
HRENBET AR RREEBRR
Bt - LA B BB UG
HEEAEHEREEEERRERE - A%
EEEZEARCERRNEHALE
ZRWF IR B HIRE - At ETAR
FEER - KEDEBUKAR SR
JNERE - B BT B0 B HE R RC R
ZREFPAR  —RME - HEaHE
B—FRBRETRVRTES - &
2 FE WA AS 3 o
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. EBEZREWREGR)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk EHRASEEARBEETENES
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a ERFENEERBRERSTINT
provision matrix:
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE_WF+-_A=+—H
Past due
B
Within 3to 6to 1to
Current 3 months 6 months 12 months 2years Total
BE AR 3Z6fA  6Z12{8R 182F i
Expected credit loss rate BHREEHEZ 0.44% 6.14% 15.74% 69.53% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FagR(A\RETT) 226,139 7,194 1,912 991 4,073 240,309
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE (ARETT) 1,000 442 301 689 4,073 6,505
At 31 December 2023 RNZZEZ=F+=A=+—H
Past due
Within 3to 6to
Current 3months 6 months 12months  1to2years Total
FIE 3EAM 3Z6fA  6Z12(8A 122F @zt
Expected credit loss rate BEEEERE 1.04% 5.25% 12.01% 64.75% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RELE(AREFT) 30,655 7,004 19,255 993 3,658 61,565
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE (ARBTL) 320 368 2,313 643 3,668 7,302
24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. FEfHE  HttEWRIERH
OTHER ASSETS thEE
2024 2023
—EWF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFIT
Prepayments TR IR 162,392 246,385
Deposits e 31,931 26,656
Receivables due from online payment FEURFE AR A5
platforms & 5KIA 4,684 4,910
Recoverable VAT Al EIE(E T 91,697 104,170
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BAESE 5 SR IE 195 569
Others Eth 33,183 25,978
Total BET 324,082 408,668
Included in the Group’s prepayments, other receivables FTAARSKETAERMIA - B R

and other assets are prepayments to the related

parties and deposits due from a related party of nil and
RMB195,000 (2023: RMB569,000 and nil), respectively,

which are recoverable within one year.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

24,

25.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at the end of the
reporting period, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

24,

25.

BNRE - HttERRERE
& E (&)

P AL LA ER 0 £ A E B AN 4R
HiR D8k B H £ R 0 FEUGTOR A
B - MRS ER - BRBERTER
EH -

BARBEFABRENERE
E

2024 2023
—E-E =&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Current portion BREAER o
Wealth management products (i) IBEAE M) - 211,031
Non-current portion FEENHIER 2
Unlisted convertible redeemable FE E T AR
preferred shares (Note 19(i)) AR BB ST AR (BTEE19(3)) - 209,861
Total wat - 420,892

(i) The Group and the Company entered into a series of wealth
management products agreements with banks in Mainland China.
The investments are principal guaranteed. The expected rates of
return ranged from 1.45% to 2.74% per annum during the reporting
period.

0] REE R AR REFR B A RITAI L —

RIBHERBE - REFRERRAE
B NREHA - BRRBENFEF
1.45%ZE2.74% °

Annual Report 2024
—E-mEER

193



194

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by ET R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

26. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK 26. RHIBTER  RERBITLE

BALANCES AND RESTRICTED CASH BRURZREIIRE
2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Long-term bank deposits RHISRITTER 106,046 453,871
Cash on hand and cash at bank FHELRRITES 1,325,773 1,173,274
Short-term bank deposits G HRIRITIE R 604,127 244,322
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITEERR 1,929,900 1,417,596
Restricted cash ZRRFIRE 88,838 64,220

The long-term bank deposits, cash and bank balances
and restricted cash are denominated in the following

RHIRITHER - HE RRITEHRUR
XRFIBEIATINEEHE

currencies:
2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Long-term bank deposits REIRITFR
RMB AR#E 106,046 453,871
Cash and bank balances denominated in AT EREEHERR & RIRTTA %
RMB AR 1,924,172 1,024,909
usD ETT 7 8
HK$ BT 5,721 392,679
1,929,900 1,417,596
Restricted cash PR HI3R &
RMB AR 88,838 64,220

Cash and bank balances earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank deposits
are made for varying periods of between one year and
three years depending on the cash management of the
Group. The bank balances and deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s restricted cash
of RMB88,838,000 (2023: RMB64,220,000) was mainly
reserved for receipts in advance from prepaid cards
in accordance with relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Commerce of PRC.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
BERm (L&) ROERAE

R MRITEBRES B RTER
KIZF B RRBAE - |ITFHIZ
—FE2=FONTRHPEEL - BFAR
SENREEERME - RITHHRRIF
RERPORY EERCHAEER
HEVIRTT - RERRESFEYHRE
BEREAAEBERS -

R-ZE-_WNE+=-_A=+—H K&
B 7 5 PR #1138 & & A R % 88,838,000
T(ZE2Z=%F : AR®¥64,220,000
7T) + TR R B R RS SR AR M B AR A AR
EE BB EANRIEWK -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. ES{TRHEMER
BORROWINGS
2024 2023
b Sl 113 Z2-CE
Effective Effective
interest interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMIB’OOO
ME ERAIE%) RS ARETRT  BBRAE®%) iR ARETR
Current L
Bank loans - secured BITER — HHEMA 5.00 2025 4,010 4.50-5.00 2024 52,083
Bank loans - unsecured FITER - EER 3.50-3.90 2025 59,500 4.40-4.50 2024 20,000
Other borrowings - secured ~ EftfE3 — 5HE# i - - - 6.90 2024 52
Total - current - 0 63,510 72,135
Non-current FHOH
Bank loans - secured fﬂﬁﬁm BHEA i 5.00 2026-2027 4,000 5.00 2025-2027 8,000
Other borrowings - secured ~ EftfE3 — A i - - - 6.90  2025-2027 139
Total - non-current %E-ﬁw% 4,000 8,139
Total @it 67,510 80,274
2024 2023
—ENEF —ETo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
Analysed into: RATIEBE SN :
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: AEEBNRITERRER ¢
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 63,510 72,083
In the second year RE—F 2,000 4,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FZFRF
(EERME) 2,000 4,000
Subtotal NEF 67,510 80,083
Other borrowings repayable: HibEEBERK
Within one year —&R - 52
In the second year REZF - 52
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FEZFERF
(EEEMSF) - 87
Subtotal NEF - 191
Total it 67,510 80,274
(i) As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank borrowings of (i) R-ZZBE-NME+-A=+—8 ' K&EE
RMB8,010,000 (2023: RMB60,083,000) were secured by certain HERITIE R AR ®S,010,0007T (=%
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets with the —=%: AR¥60,083,0007T) ' 5 5l
carrying amounts of RMB124,374,000 (2023: RMB220,199,000) LARREEAARY124,374,0007T (=
and RMB11,509,000 (2023: RMB89,079,000), respectively. T-=F: AR¥220,199,0007T) &
AR#11,509,000c (ZE=Z=F : A
R#89,079,0007T) K& THE « ME
R SR A R (5 FRRE B (R HEA ©
(i) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s other borrowings (if) RZZBE_=F+-A=+—H &&H

RMB191,000 were secured by certain property, plant and

equipment of RMB225,000.

K E A ETRA R 191,000 A BEA
R¥225,000cHETYE  BE KK
EIEEIR -
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AR YL

31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EZEMNFIER
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end T ARBRERIEZEZEHEINN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as S RN FRIENRR DT
follows:
2024 2023
“E-OF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETIT
Within 1T month MEAR 503,469 404,909
1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 126,454 49,064
3 to 6 months 3&E6fEA 13,707 1,325
6 months to 1 year 6EAZ=1F 2,442 900
Over 1 year BE1F 983 1,099
Total #Et 647,055 457,297
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally ESENFBTE  BERI0ORA
settled within 30 days. "R -
Included in the Group’s trade payables are amounts due to RZFZME+=A=+—H &A
a related party of RMB27,793,000 as at 31 December 2024 AR B E 5 R 5 SRIA A FE A B 7 5K
(2023: RMB4,916,000). BAARY 27,793,000 (=ZFE==
F: AR¥4,916,0007T) °
29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HENFERETEHR
2024 2023
TE-OF —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ARETT ARBETIT
Staff salaries, bonuses and EEEMEE -
welfare payables TELT R Aa A 75,485 97,084
Other payables for property, plant and M - BERFER
equipment E b 5RIE 21,957 26,559
Other tax payables HAb ERTTIR 15,644 13,287
Contract liabilities SHAE i 115,581 92,829
Deposits b i 134,715 133,487
Collection of the sales of franchised AN B2 7 WCER hn B2 5 Y
stores on behalf of franchisees HE®R® iii 684 630
Receipt on behalf of franchisees for A0 83 P UL ER A
prepaid cards TR REIE iv 202,995 169,292
Accrued expenses EETER 38,968 20,676
Other payables E b e~ 5RIE 24,157 23,452
Amounts due to related parties JE -} RS 5 508 v 7,171 =
Total #Et 637,357 577,296

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

29. HtbEARERESER (&)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (i) BHEERMANT :
2024 2023
—ETWEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Short-term advances received I=E=I=V)¢:)4:0)
from customers VEEEE
Sale of meal products and HEBEREMRABER
related products 34,637 21,930
Operational support service fee REEERBE 80,944 70,899
Total contract liabilities AHAaERE 115,581 92,829

The contract liabilities changed during the year due
to fluctuation in operational support service fee
with advanced payments.

The balance represents the refundable initial
deposits received from franchisees upon entering
into franchise agreements.

The amount would normally be repaid to the
franchisees on a daily basis, subject to provisions
set out in the franchise agreements.

Receipt of sales proceeds from prepaid cards
represents the advance receipts from the end
customers who add value to their prepaid cards. The
Group receives the amount on behalf of franchisees
and such amount is settled when the end customers
use the cards to purchase goods in stores.

Included in the Group’s other payables and
accruals are payables due to related parties of
RMB7,171,000 (2023: Nil), which are payable within
one year.

(iii)

& hBERENRBENGA S
BRBROFDTED -

REERTE PR NI B P B AT R AT AE
EEA AREVRRES

RIS AT - %
FRORBEHEAEET N
e

P FERT R UCER B 85 & P15 5E
REEREFPREENRTE
RITEUGRIE - NEE R INER
WERIE » BB R R
FPEERFERENREER®

REH -

FHAAER B H At FE 5 BR0R S R
FHE RO RNBEE D RIB/A

R#7171,000c(ZE ==
F:F) AR—FREM -
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. EZEWA
2024 2023
—B_pmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFT
Government grants BT B 24,697 18,260
Movements in government grants of the Group during the ANEBERERNNBTEDEENT -
year are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
At beginning of year REH] 18,260 7,335
Government grants received 2 UK ER & B 76 BN 8,500 12,053
Credited to the consolidated statement of RENFTAGZEBER
profit or loss during the year (2,063) (1,128)
At end of year RER 24,697 18,260
The Group received government grants for capital REERME  BERERBEREED
expenditure incurred for property, plant and equipment. BARASXWHRBAHE - 25280
The amounts are deferred and amortised over the B & E R 5T AT 8 A BRI A Jo
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 8H ©
31. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 31. BREAREEFER
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital RABIRAREFROESHE W
and treasury shares is as follows: i
2024 2023
TE-MF —EC=F
Issued and fully paid EETW R 2,747,360,400 2,747,360,400
Share capital (RMB’000) B (AREFT) 2,747,360 2,747,360
2024 2023
—EIEF —To=F
Number of shares repurchased (a) RO EE (a) (38,925,600) =
Treasury shares (RMB'000) EFR (ARBFIT) (73,309) -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company (a) BHE-Z-_MF+=-A=+—HLHF
repurchased 38,925,600 of its own shares from the market, out EARBRTHERES FKRH
of which, none had been cancelled as at 31 December 2024. The 38,925,600 - R=T-_WF+=-A=
shares were repurchased at prices ranging from HKD1.81 to +—B  ZERDEETN - RiHEIE
HKD2.14 per share (before expenses), with an average price of BABREKMND1.81BLE2.14BL(F
HKD2.02 per share (before expenses). A% - FHERARFRRM2.028
TL(RETFS) ©

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statements of

changes in equity in financial statements.

(i)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
companies registered in the PRC are required to
allocate 10% of the statutory after tax profits to the
statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the
reserve reaches 50% of the companies registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC
authorities, the statutory reserve may be used
to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the companies. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
equity holders of the PRC subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents
the excess of the consideration received for
subscription of the registered capital of the
Company and costs borne by the controlling
shareholders, Mr. Yang Mingchao, Mr. Meng Xianjin
and Mr. Li Xinhua in prior years.

32.

AEBENFEIEZBRMBRERN
RARmEPHRAZY -

EEE

RBHBERBE - 5 B
B R RIZBRDAEBR B 1R A R
0% BREEERHE  BEM
B R RBREDQBEME
AH)50% ° FFHEABE B
R - RE AR AR T
fa] R T & 1R 248 N1 B HO A
B XERBTAARAF
BB A B RS R TA A DK

B o
o

=ENE

AEENENFRENBES
[E B RIB AR 1 B A & AN P
B e 5 8 7B 48 2 R A R 45 PR R
T REEEERTRES
ARV A RS ©
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31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 33.

OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB33,273,000
(2023:RMB24,966,000) in respect of lease

RERERERMTE

FRFRERS

HE-Z-_mNF+=-A=+
—BLEEFEE AfEEEHEA
EMENEAREERES
BEMEREAEAARKE

agreements. 33,273,0007C (ZE =4 :
AR#¥24,966,0007T) °
(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) WEIHELEEBNEE
activities
Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities
BITR
HAt AR HEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZT-_=F—H—H 95,629 39,153
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREL (19,564) (27,635)
New leases FHE B - 24,966
Accretion of interest recognised FARERAF S ILE
during the year 4,209 1,627
Early termination of leases RAMRIETRE S (8,100)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZB=F+"A=+—AK
1 January 2024 —E-_&—HA—H 80,274 30,011
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEH (15,699) (25,804)
New leases e 3 - 33,273
Accretion of interest recognised F AR T S IR
during the year 2,935 1,486
Early termination of leases RATRIEAE - (3,762)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZT-—WMF+=-A=+—H 67,510 35,204

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—ME+=-H=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

33. FERTRERME (B)

(c) HMERSRHLRE
AARERERERNEER

consolidated statements of cash flows is as follows: SmHAAZEMT -

2024 2023

—E-EF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Within operating activities LR 12,117 9,772
Within financing activities BEEEN 25,804 27,635
Total st 37,921 37,407

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, which are secured by the assets of the Group,
are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

36. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

34. BAREE
R-E-_NME+-_A=+—0H ' &&
EEIREARAREE -

35. EEEH

AEBEAREERAN BRITEHE
KA BN SR M 527

36. HIE
AEBRBEHRNELAEDT ¢

2024 2023
—E-E =&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Contracted, but not provided for purchase REEME  BE&
of property, plant and equipment BRBDETHEREERIE 16,761 41,307
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by ET R

31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties:

37. BEAEXRS

5
(a)

RAFE -

AREBERR T B IA TR

BB LNRS

2024
—EB-mE

RMB’000
ARBT T

2023
—E=F
RMB'000
ARBT T

Sale of goods

Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (i)

= 5,237

= 5,237

Purchase of goods

Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. (i)

24,332 108,287

24,332 108,287

Purchase of services

Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehouse
Distribution Technology Co., Ltd. (ii)

Travel Story (Chengdu) Culture and
Tourism Co., Ltd. (iii)

Henan Travel Story Travel Agency
Co., Ltd. (iii)

Luyi Chengming Industrial Zone
Management Co., Ltd.

R
T E SR A IR
BRAF() )
ELWTS&Z$(}5JZ%‘B)S<HK
BRAR
/Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁli 1T#E
BRA Tln
A=Y 9E
F%I@:ﬁﬁﬁﬁé NS

(“Chengming Management”) (iv) ([&

BAEE]) (iv)

N/A
TERA
N/A
TERA
N/A
221 TERA

126,963
1,648

N/A
TEH 31

128,832 31

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. has been identified
as a related party of the Group from August 2021 to May
2024 as it was held by a supervisor of Luyi Heyi Meat
Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary acquired by the Group in
August 2021. Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. ceased
to be a related party of the Group in May 2024 as the
supervisor resigned from Luyi Heyi Meat Industry Co., Ltd.
in May 2024.

The sales to the related parties were made according to
commercial terms mutually agreed by the counterparties.

Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehouse Distribution
Technology Co., Ltd. has been identified as a related
party of the Group as it has been controlled by Guoquan
Industrial (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a controlling shareholder of
the Company since July 2024.

Travel Story (Chengdu) Culture and Tourism Co., Ltd. and
Henan Travel Story Travel Agency Co., Ltd. have been
identified as related parties of the Group as Mr.Yang
Mingchao has have significant influence over these
entities since May 2024.

Chengming Management was identified as a related party
of the Group from August 2022 to May 2023 as it was
controlled by Mr. Yang Mingchao’s close family member.
Chengming Management was subsequently disposed to
independent third parties in May 2023 and ceased to be a
related party of the Group since then.

The purchases and services from the related parties
were conducted in the ordinary course of business and
based on commercial terms mutually agreed by the
counterparties.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37. B¥AX % ()
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of (b) AEEEEEEASHH
the Group
Compensation of key management personnel of AEBEXTEZEEASHM (B
the Group, which comprises the remuneration of BEEHI) R EmRKRMI 9
the directors, is disclosed in note 9 and note 10 to K10 EE -
financial statements.
(c)  Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EREEEAHIKREELER
2024 2023
—E-QNE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFIT
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIA
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd.(v) ERIBRRBER AT (V) 32,501 N/A
TEA
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. LERERRERAR N/A 4
THEA
32,501 4
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B 75 SR IE
(trade in nature) (B5H"E)
Deposits b
Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehouse AFEESLER IR 195 N/A
Distribution Technology Co., Ltd. BRAA TEA
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. FERERMERAR N/A 569
THEA
Total amounts due from related parties FE UK B 77 SRR 4R EE 195 569
2024 2023
—EB-ME T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Amounts due to related parties FE{<T RS 75 SR IE
(trade in nature) (B5H"E)
Trade payables Z S FIE
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. ERBERRBERATR 19,040 N/A
TiEA
Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehouse EESSERRRE 8,753 N/A
Distribution Technology Co., Ltd. BRATE TEA
Shanghai Shengxian Food Co., Ltd. EEEERMERAT N/A 4,916
THEA
27,793 4,916
Other payables H A B FRIE
Henan Huading Cold Chain Warehouse A FERREA R 5,836 N/A
Distribution Technology Co., Ltd. R TERA
Travel Story (Chengdu) Culture and IRATHUEE (AR iR 1,246 N/A
Tourism Co., Ltd. ARAA TERA
Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. L5 RBEARERAT 80 N/A
e
Henan Travel Story Travel Agency AR BRI THR AR TAL 9 N/A
Co., Ltd. BRAA TERA
7,171 N/A
TEA
Total amounts due to related parties FE 1< RS 77 SR IE 4R EE 34,964 4,916

v) Beihai Daixiaji Food Co., Ltd. has been identified as a
related party of the Group as it has been an associate of

the Group since December 2024.

Amounts due from the related parties were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit
terms, and amounts due to the related parties were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 30

days.

(v) AL SR IBERRERAR
BN+ -ARALSE
EME A AR - BERARER
TEAREBERNREE S

e BB T SRIB A - %
ERREEHEE  MENEH
B RASERR  RERA
MR30BAERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR MYRE

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

38.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. REREIHNERMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REERR  SESRITANEREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as LUNNE
follows:
2024 —T-F
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets at
through fair value
profit or loss through OCI
RAAEE
BAAEERA FFARMRE
BENSREE WENSREE
Financial
Equity assets at
Mandatorily investments  amortised cost Total
B
AT EH
Bl RERE SREE gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Equity investments designated at ~ #EERANLBEA
fair value through OC B 2 E RS HRERE - 139,695 - 139,695
Long-term bank deposits RERITER - - 106,046 106,046
Trade receivables B SRR - - 233,804 233,804
Financial assets included in FTATBRE
prepayments, other receivables H AR K
and other assets AthEENSRAE = - 69,993 69,993
Restricted cash XRHRE - 88,838 88,838
Cash and bank balances RBeRBITHEH - - 1,929,900 1,929,900
Total ot = 139,695 2,428,581 2,568,276
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
BB ERAET RN
SREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade payables B S ER I 647,055
Financial liabilities included in FHAE A FETRIE K
other payables and accruals B ERNERA R 430,647
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMBER 67,510
Total FoH 1,145,212

BERm (L&) ROERAE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER R

31 December 2024 —ZE=—ME+=-H=+—H

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38.

RERSSHERT A ()

(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RB|ERR - SHESBTANKREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as W (&)
follows: (continued)
2023 —E-=4F
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
assets at Financial
fair value assets at
through fair value
profit or loss through OCI
BRAAERE
BROABERA SAREE
BRAGHEE UaNeREE
Financial
Equity assets at
Mandatorily investments  amortised cost Total
i *
bl FRERE SREE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBETFT ARETT ARETT
Equity investments designated EBERANBETA
at fair value through OCI Hin 2 Ea iR & - 253,090 - 253,090
Financial assets at fair value BRAAEBEFTABEN
through profit or loss SREE 420,892 - - 420,892
Long-term bank deposits RERIER - - 453,871 453,871
Trade receivables B S EMGIR - - 54,263 54,263
Financial assets included in SR
prepayments, other receivables H A REUIE K
and other assets AthEEMESRAE = = 58,113 58,113
Restricted cash XBHHEE - - 64,220 64,220
Cash and bank balances Be R - - 1,617,596 1,417,596
Total Fohs 420,892 253,090 2,048,063 2,722,045
Financial liabilities THEasE
Financial liabilities
atamortised cost
R 24
cRAR
RMB'000
AREFT
Trade payables B SRR 457,297
Financial liabilities included in FTAEMENZIER
other payables and accruals Bt ERNERAE 374,096
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMER 80,274
Total st 911,667

Annual Report 2024
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31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, restricted cash, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
management of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the board of directors. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the board of
directors for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values.

The fair value of long-term bank deposits has been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The carrying
amounts of long-term bank deposits approximate to their
fair values.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER R

31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of wealth
management products by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of

instruments with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. For the fair value of the unlisted
equity investments at fair value through OCI, management
has estimated the potential effect of using reasonably

possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

39.

ERIAENAIABERIAE
EE&R (&)
AEMBENIFLETRE - BIFER
MRITRITRIEMER - ARERE
A A BOUER KRS T AMTI5F
% {EFRMEER & ERR
B EROAABEE -

EBRERENAABEERTIS®R
B - MRAABEFFAHEMEEKE
MIELEMBRERENAREENS -
ERECDATERAEATHERT
B (ERHERANEARE) &R

B2 88
= °

Annual Report 2024
—E-mEER

207



208

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2024

and 2023:

Valuation
technique

fEERM

Significant

unobservable input

BERTAIBE
WARE

30. EWMIBENAREERAAE
BEER (&)
UTER_E_NFR_E_=F+
ZA=t—H2BMIAFHENSEART
ARG ABBERERELCLHBES

#r

Range/weighted
average

gE A nEFI9E

Sensitivity of fair value
to the input
DNABEHEA
BENBRE

Unlisted equity
investment at fair
value through OCI

BARBERAEAM
2 WERIFE LT
R E

Discounted
cash flow
valuation
model

MIRBESRE
HEEE

Valuation
multiples

AR

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

BERm (L&) ROERAE

Weighted average
cost of capital

INHEF I B AR AR

Long-term
growth rate

RHpERE

Discount for lack of

marketability

Rz M mE T

Median EV/EBITDA
multiple of peers

FIT¥EE
EBITDAARfiZER

Average P/E

multiple of peers

EESZCLPE

Discount for lack of

marketability

Rz MBI

2024:13.00%

T
13.00%

2024:2.00%

b S LS
2.00%

2024: 20.80%

—FomEF
20.80%

2023:13.86

—ERo=F
13.86

2023:35.35

—E-=4%F:
35K

2028:15.70% to
20.50%

—E-=4F:
15.70% &
20.50%

5% increase/decrease in
weighted average cost of
capital would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB2,215,700/
RMB2,504,600

IR E AN A I,
5% 18 E 5L
RREERD EN
AR®2,215,70078
AR#2,504,6007TC

5% increase/decrease in
long-term growth rate
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value
by RMB148,900/
RMB146,300

REPIER R 5%
ER AR EEEM, R
AR#148,9007T
AR®146,3007T

5% increase/decrease in
discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB425,600

PrERIg R 5% i E BN
ARBERD M
AR® 425,600

5% increase/decrease in
multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,980,900

EBUEIM 5 5% 158 5
ARBEEN, B
AR®2,980,9007T

5% increase/decrease in
multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,112,900

EBUE M 5 5% 158 5
ARBEEN, B
AR®2112,9007T

5% increase/decrease in
discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB1,067,900

e, m 5% 158 5
ARBERD /HE
AR®1,067,9007T
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2024

30. EMIBENAREERAAE
BEH (E)
N TIAR-_ZE_NER_TE_=F1+
ZA=t—HEMIAFEENEART
ARG ASERENRSLBERES

and 2023: (continued) o (8&)
Valuation Significant Range/weighted Sensitivity of fair value
technique unobservable input average to the input
i ERTABE DNAEEHEA
fh{E R WARE gE MEFISE HENSRE
Financial assets at Option pricing Volatility 2023:51.21% to 5% increase/decrease in
fair value through model 51.49% volatility would result in

profit or loss—
unlisted convertible
redeemable
preferred shares
RARBEABEN HETERR K E)
CHMEE LM
Al g A {E 18 ST AR

Risk-free interest
rate

S A o M)

increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB226,600/
RMB2,304,500

—R-=F: RIRIE R 5%
51.21%%& BEAREEEM, R
51.49% AR¥226,6007T

AR#2,304,5007T

2023: 4.00% 5% increase/decrease in
risk-free interest rate
would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
RMB57,800/RMB58,400

—Eo= R AR, 5%
4.00% BERRBERD N
AR#57,8007T,
AER#58,4007T
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39.

210

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at t 31 December 2024

39.

ERMIEANAAREBERLIAE
EER (&)
REMERBUETREASERTE
B mE2REE/RREEERS
BHREMITESE -

BEASEBEGENEE
RZZE-_WF+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERATIISBETAABEE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXUBE EXTAEE

EREMSHRE WARE BARE
(E—-ER) (E=ER) (B=BR) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET ARETR ARETR

Equity investments designated BERANBETA

at fair value through OCl HEfr 2 aEmRERE 105,779 - 33,916 139,695

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

As at 31 December 2023

TREJIAEEERTANDAEE

HESE -

RZE-_=#+-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERTIREETAREEHNE

Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EWNCIE BAPAIBZE
ERMHRE BARIE BARE
(F—E#) (BZER) (B=ER) @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBFL ARBFT
Equity investments designated BERAABETA
at fair value through OCl Hih 2 EWRMRERE 158,561 - 94,529 253,090
Financial assets at fair value BANBETAERN
through profit or loss SRAE = 211,031 209,861 420,892
Total @t 158,561 211,031 304,390 673,982

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

ERMTANDAEBERAIAE
EHER (&)

NABESR (&)
BN SBEEREE (8)

E=ERAABEHEREAHBD
T

N

s

2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETFTT
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBEABREN
profit or loss CRVEE
At the beginning of year NEY] 209,861 187,875
Total gains recognised in the consolidated REFE B R IER
statements of profit or loss included in FTAE MU A K&
other income and gains, net I 2 F R A = (92,812) 21,986
Transfer out (117,049) -
At end of year RER - 209,861
Equity investments at fair value through OCl R AREEF AEM
EEMEMRAERE
At the beginning of year REY] 94,529 98,838
Total gains recognised in OCI A E fth 2 o R 4B 2 (7,137) (4,309)
Transfer out i (53,476) =
At end of year RER 33,916 94,529

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value during the reporting period.

During the year, the fair value measurement on the
investment in Dmall transferred from Level 3 to Level 1 as
Dmall has become a listed company since December 2024

RB|BERA - NEEL EEFAIRAN
EBEFENSRAE -

FAN - BARZHE T _NF+ A
BKALETAR  WRZENREN
AREBEEFERF_ERELAE [

(2023: Nil). H(ZE—=F ) -
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other interest-bearing borrowings, long-term bank
deposits and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are carried out in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB. The Group does not have material foreign currency
risk. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s assets and
liabilities denominated in HK$ were mainly held by the
Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside
Mainland China which had currencies other than RMB
as their functional currencies. The Company and those
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China also
held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which
foreign currency exposures arise.

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
HERm (L&) ROBRATE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BM¥ERMEEBEZRBUER (#)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShEEE B (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end TRIRPEIRE BAARARNE BT ATF
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in HEB TR ARKERSIER] e
the HK$ and RMB exchange rate, with all other variables HRE (FTEEMESEFTE) -
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/RMB in profit
rate before tax
BT
ARBER RR% A1 Al 7
EH (R  #mCR)
% RMB’000
% AR®ET T
2024 —ToNEF
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ BEARESETRE 5 (251)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ BEARESBTHE (5) 251
2023 —To=F
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ EARBEABTRE 5 (19,548)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ EANRBRAETHE (5) 19,548

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances, other than short-term and

long-term bank deposits, expose to cash flow interest rate

risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest

rate. The directors of the Company consider the Group’s

exposure to interest rate risk in respect of bank balances,

long-term bank deposits and interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings is not significant as most of them are at

fixed interest rates.

FE AR

AEBEORITER (LR REH
RITHER) MHIRITHIHN R KE 3
HORERAERER - ARBESR
RAEERITER - REIRTER
PA R RT BARTT B B A fE FUR RO FI
BB ANEX - TIE KB D % F AR
REEMNEETE -
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BfISEMREREEZRECK (F)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk &R
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEEEERAREERIFNE=F
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers EITRS « AEEMBERARIR
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit EEHETRINEFHABBEER
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances RERRF o N NREEIFEEIERE
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s WoRIE &S 6% - AN SR B FTE ¥ AV IR
exposure to bad debts is not significant. BRI T ERX o
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R R R R FRIEER
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TREIERAEENEEBRERNE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, BExEkEaEERR  TEENE
which is mainly based on past due information unless HE® (RIEEMEUR AT ERANT
other information is available without undue cost or effort, THRERARZNHERTER) &
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. R+ZA=+—HBHFREESHE -
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for Fr2% e ATMEENREAE -
financial assets.
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE_WF+-_A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12881
RHEEBR 2HRNEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE10R & F2fERR $3fEER |EH (@73 @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARET R ARET R ARET R AR®TR
Trade receivables* FEWRE 55008 - - - 240,309 240,309
Financial assets included in STABRE - EftE
prepayments, other receivables  WFBREMEER
and other assets -Normal ** SREE - 7+ 69,993 - - - 69,993
Long-term bank deposits RERITER
- Not yet past due — K@aH 106,046 - - - 106,046
Restricted cash ZRHIES
- Not yet past due — R 88,838 - - - 88,838
Cash and bank balances Be RRTHR
- Not yet past due — XK@ 1,929,900 - - - 1,929,900
Total st 2,194,777 - - 240,309 2,435,086

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BEEMBREEEEZRBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year -end staging (Continued) = B R ARG ER (4B
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZZE_=F+-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A#Y ‘
BHEEER 2HRHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E10888 R E30RER 5l anzs @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
Trade receivables* W E SE* - - - 61,565 61,565
Financial assets included in FTAFENT IR - EftofE
prepayments, other receivables  WHIEREMEEM
and other assets -Normal ** SREE - ER+ 58,113 - - - 58,113
Long-term bank deposits RERITER
- Not yet past due _—ABH 453,871 - - - 453,871
Restricted cash XBHBEE
- Not yet past due — K8 64,220 - - - 64,220
Cash and bank balances ReRBITEH
- Not yet past due — K8 1,417,596 - - - 1,417,596
Total fat 1,993,800 = = 61,565 2,055,365
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified & RAKEREREALE T ENE FIE

approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 23 to financial statements.

i The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

* Kk

WHIRM S « EREEHEEN SRR
TSR FE23 R ER

FEATARN IR - A EUGRIAREME
ENSRAENEELSBERINRRE
BRIER] TEBERRSHEE
M= B R B 156 R R BRE LN ©
B eRMEENEREERRAIY
5] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and

bank balances deemed adequate by management of the

fluctuations of cash flows.

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group to finance the operations and mitigate the effects of

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

B EEEE A FERBR (&)

BN LR R

AEEEEREFAEEEEERS
RAFHE S RIRITHEBKE - AAE
BRNESNBRERSRENBHOF

@,
2

RBEHR - NEBIRALHRBAN
FETENERARIHERAT

2024
ZEIME

Within 1 year 1to5years Over 5 years Total

15R 1255 HB5E Hst

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARBTT ARBFT ARBT T

Trade payables B S REE 647,055 - - 647,055
Financial liabilities included in other 5t AE N FUER

payables and accruals BAERNSRAE 430,647 - - 430,647

Interest-bearing bank and other FEHITR

borrowings H A fER 65,211 4,171 - 69,382

Lease liabilities HERE 17,544 19,064 1,362 37,970

Total FCE 1,160,457 23,235 1,362 1,185,054

2023
—T-=F

Within 1 year 1to byears Total

1R 1255 #st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RME'000

AREFL ARETT AREFT

Trade payables B S ENTIE 457,297 - 457,297
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE A EATFE R

payables and accruals B ERNSRAE 374,096 - 374,096

Interest-bearing bank and other FERITR

borrowings E AR 73,418 8,690 82,108

Lease liabilities HEBRE 19,825 12,624 32,449

Total e 924,636 21,314 945,950

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2024 —E=FE+=-A=+—H

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise equity holders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to equity holders,
return capital to equity holders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is debt divided by the adjusted capital plus debt. Debt
includes interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the

40.

B EE A FERBR (&)

ErEE

AEEEAEENTIERBESHEN
SENFELLZENRERRRER
AREUAXHERER L BRESH
BAEBEHZKIL -

AEBEERBEERAECFEEE
ENRREHEENFAEERERS
REFSIARERER  AEEgH
BRETEZFEANRE  RER
ATPERFEALBITHR - A5H
I 82 BERISNEDE ARF SKATAIR o
REBEZZ-_NF+_A=+—HXK
ZE=FF+ A=+ —BLEFE
REBUWEHEAESENER « BUR
ST ELED -

AEEEREERBLXRERER
EERABELXRABKRUAKHARE
AEBE - AEREEERME
EaE - EAEESRRHEE ARGE

parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting wmeo REHRNEEAGBL RN
period were as follows: I

2024 2023
—E-mEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER 67,510 80,274
Lease liabilities HEAE 35,204 30,011
Debt B 102,714 110,285
Equity attributable to owners of the parent SAREE ABRRER 3,144,372 3,262,177
Gearing ratio BEBRELE 3.2% 3.3%
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31 December 2024 —ZE=—W&E+=-H=+—H

41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ZAATBERRAER
COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
—E-ME “To=F
+=BA=+-R +=A=t+—~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERBE 18,274 17,532
Right-of-use assets ERERE 4,045 9,915
Other intangible assets HiEREAE 5,210 7,006
Other non-current assets HMIEmBEE - 2,251
Investments in subsidiaries RIE R RIIRE 876,421 864,835
Investment in an associate R—REE N ERIRE 246,000 -
Long-term bank deposits RERITHER 106,046 453,871
Deferred tax assets FIERIEEE 9,585 16,206
Total non-current assets FREEELAE 1,265,581 1,371,616
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 496,933 502,961
Trade receivables B SR EIE 362 929
Prepayments, other receivables and FENFA - E A AR R
other assets HihBE 197,833 305,966
Amounts due from subsidiaries BT B A R FRIA 756,889 491,734
Financial assets at fair value through BRAMBEF BN
profit or loss SRVEE - 211,031
Cash and bank balances R RIRITER 1,656,753 1,185,523
Total current assets REBEEHAE 3,108,770 2,698,144
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBEE
Trade payables B SN FIE 555,697 395,478
Other payables and accruals HtENFIERETER 99,068 70,636
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETPIE DRI IA 282,838 192,507
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,330 6,567
Tax payables eI 33,175 28,019
Total current liabilities REBEELEE 974,108 693,207
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 2,134,662 2,004,937
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABERREBARS 3,400,243 3,376,553

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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31 December 2024 —E_IF+=-F=+—H

41.

42.

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41.

AT MBRRE (])

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
—EoME “T-=F
+=A=+-8 +=RA=+-—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 854 2,877
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEEE 854 2,877
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,399,389 3,373,676
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 2,747,360 2,747,360
Treasury shares EFRD (73,309) =
Reserves (note) & (P aE) 725,338 626,316
Total equity EREE 3,399,389 3,373,676
Note: BiEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARIFEFEBRAT ¢
Capital Statutory Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
B E EERE BFFE ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥F T AR¥F T AR®T T
Balance at 1 January 2023 —T-=F—-F—H8#EH 2,909,451 - (146,055) 2,763,396
Profit for the year F PIFIE = = 184,397 184,397
Conversion into a joint stock AR
company ABRAT] (2,808,272) = 159,265 (2,649,007)
Issuance of H shares upon BB
listing on the Hong Kong g
Stock Exchange BEITHAL 327,530 - - 327,530
Transfer from retained profits B BT - 18,439 (18,439) -
At 31 December 2023 and RZB-_=F+-A=+—H
1 January 2024 ;E—ZF-mF—F—AQH 428,709 18,439 179,168 626,316
Profit for the year FERFH - - 242,159 242,159
Final 2023 dividend paid BN =T Z=FREPRE - - (143,137) (143,137)
Transfer from retained profits EERERTRA = 24,216 (24,216) -
At 31 December 2024 RZZZWF+=—A=+—H 428,709 42,655 253,974 725,338
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42, BEHREH
There were no significant events after the end of the WEMRE - EERAER TREIMNE
reporting period that require additional disclosure or EABRNEANSH -
adjustments.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. H#EB#IHREK

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2025.

MHBBRN_—_FT_AF=A-1t/\H

BE=gHEL KBTI -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

Year ended December 31,

BET-A=1+-HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—T-TFE B T —T-=F ZE-NF
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands  thousands  thousands  thousands  thousands
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥ETR
Key Operating Results TERELBYUE
Revenue WA 2,964,743 3,957,804 7173457 6,094,104 6,469,810
Gross profit EH 329,259 355,284 1,248,961 1,350,941 1,416,752
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIEATFNE /(B8) (43,183) (596,468) 332,042 363,425 319,546
Net profit/(loss) for the year FEFNE/(BB) (43,292) (460,861) 240,982 263,402 241,238
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners BREBEAEEHE
of the parent (E18) (43,292) (461,990) 229,907 239,636 230,558
Non-IFRS measure FEIR B REERGE
Adjusted net profit/(loss) for the year FEEERHEINE /(BE) IR
(non-IFRS measure) BB RS ERFE) (26,877) (450,599) 256,785 317,972 241,238
Core operating profit/ (loss) for the year ~ FRZLEAFE /(EE) (F:H
(non-IFRS measure) BB REERFE) (26,877) (450,599) 213,160 301,482 310,847
At December 31,
R+=A=+-8
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
B et k- S S — 11
RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in RMB in
thousands thousands thousands thousands  thousands
ARETTL ARETT AREFRT ARETT ARETR
Key Financial Position TEFHRR
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 106,673 762,556 1,671,642 1776353 1,483,027
Total current assets RBEEBE 1,068,594  1957,192 2,409,028 2,875,293 3,268,451
Total current liabilities MBEELEE 488,016 583,358 1,303017 1,167,888 1,404,361
Total non-current liabilities BB ELE 16,872 21,664 88,102 104,975 82,296
Total equity e 670,379 2,114,726 2,689,551 3,378,783 3,264,821

GUOQUAN FOOD (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
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